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BLACK'S GUIDE TO KILLAENEY

APPROACHES TO IRELAND

The hours of passage given below are of course only approximate.

The lowest saloon fares for the single journey are alone

quoted. For further details, see the sailings bills of the

different Companies or the useful list of, steamers at the

end of " Bradshaw."

1. To DuiJLix AND Dlsthict

1 Hours Single

j

Route. of
Passage.

steamer Company. Sailings. Saloon
Fare.

Holyhead to Kingstown . 2f City of Dublin Steam
Packet

2 daily * IDs.

1

Holyhead to Kingstown . 3 L. &N.W.R. . Daily t 10s.

!
Holyhead to Dublin (N. 3i ... Daily t 8s.

1
Wall)

Liverpool to Dublin 8 City of Dublin Steam
Packet, and others

Daily t 13s. 6d.

Tedcastle Line 4 a week 7s.

Glasgow to Dublin . Burns (Royal Mail) via
Belfast

2 daily t 25s.

via Greenock, direct . 4 a week 13s. 6d.

Laird Line 2 a week 13s. (id.

Heysham to Dublin 9 Laird Line 2 a week 12s. 6d.

London to Dublin 3 days British and Irish Steam
Packet Comxjany, Ltd.

2 a week 26s.

Portsmouth to Dublin

.

56 B. & LS.P Co. 2 a week 24s. 6d.

Southampton to Dublin 50 2 a Aveek 24s. 6d.

Plymouth to Dublin . 30 2 a week
i

20s.

Falmouth to Dublin . 22 2 a week 18s.

Silloth to Dublin . 12 Dublin' Silloth, and Lsle 2 a week 10s.
1

of Man Steamers.

* Sunday inclutled. t Sundays ex cepted.

(i)



APPROACHES TO mELAlUB—contimced

2. To South and West Ireland

Fishguard to Rosslare
Fishguard to Waterford
Fishguard to Cork
Bristol to Cork
Plymouth to Cork
Liverpool to Cork
London to Cork
Southampton to Cork
London to Waterford
Liverpool to Waterford
Bristol to Waterford
Glasgow to Sligo

Glasgow to Waterford
Cork

Liverpool to Westport
j to Ballina

Glasgow (and Westport

20

28

30

Great Western Railway

City of Cork Steam Packet

Clyde Shipping Co.
Waterford Steamship Co.

Laird Line
Clyde Shipping Co.

Laird Line

2 daily
Daily

3 a week i5s.

1 a week 15s.

1 a week 20s.

3 a week 17s. 6d.

1 a week 20s.

1 a week
1 a week 20s.

3 a week 15s.

2 a week 15s.

2 a week 12s. 6d.

2 a week 17s. 6d.

2 a week 17s. 6d.

1 a week 12s. 6d.

Alternate
Saturdays 12s. 6d.

For further information see pp. 133, 138.

(ii)



BLACK'S GUIDE TO IRELAND (KILLARNEY
SECTION)

[The Official A. B.C. Irish Hallway Guide (Oflice, Bachelor's Walk, Dublin), and
'Falconer's A. B.C. Irish Guide (Upper Sackville Street, Dublin); post
free, 5(/. each, are reconiniended.]

Page in SUMMER STEAMERS
this hook

122. Blackwater Steamers.—A steamer runs between Youghal and

Cappoquin from early in June to Sept. 30. The times of

departure, between 8.30 a.m. and 7 p.m., in each direction, vary-

according to the tide, and on certain days there are no sailings

from one end.

Fares (ordinary). Single, 2s. and Is. 6d.

Return, 3s. and 2s.

For details apply Secretary, Youghal and Blackwater

Tourist Steamship Co., Ltd., Youghal.

131. Waterford Steamers.
To Belfast, Sat.

,, Bristol, Tues.

„ Cork, Thurs.
,, Dover, Sat., 4 p.m.

,, Fishguard, daily, 5 p.m.

,, Glasgow, Men. Wed., about
1 P.M.

To Liverpool, Sun. Wed. Fri.

,, London, Sat.

,, Newhaven, Sat.

,, Plymouth, Wed.

,, Southampton, Sat., 4 p.m.

98. Goold's Cross Station to Cashel.— Car leaves, if passengers

offer, at 9.45, 11.48 a.m.; 12.53, 4.24, 5.48 p.m.

Fares 2s. 6d. each way.

142. Bantry to Killarney ("Prince of Wales Route"—by Motor
Char-a-bancs).

148.

p.m. ! a.m.
Bantry . . . dep. 7.0 Killarney . dep. 9.30
Glengarriffe . . arr. 8.0 Kenmare arr. 11.15
Dep. next morning A.M. P.M.
from Glengarriffe . 9.30 M dep. 3.15

Kenmare . . arr. 11.15 Glengarriffe arr. 5.0

p.m. >> dep. 5.45

,, . . . dep. 3.0

Killarney . . arr. 5.15
i

Bantry arr. 6.45

Macroom to Glengarriffe (by Motor Char-a-barIC).

A.M. p.m.
Macroom . . dep. 10.15 Killarney (see above).

P.M. Glengarriffe . dep. 3.0
Keimaneigh . . arr. 12.0 Keimaneigh . arr. 4.45

,, . . dep. 12.45 >> dep. 5.30
Glengarriffe . . arr. 2.30 Macroom arr. 7.15
Killarney {see above).

(iii)
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SUMMER CARS—continued

165-6. Cahirciveen to Parknasilla

(Grand Atlantic Coast route—by Motor Char-a-banc).

165-6.

P.M. A.M.

Cahirciveen . . dep. 1.45 Parknasilla . dep. 9.30

WatervillK' . . arr. 2.40 Waterville . arr. 11.30

„ . . dep. 2.55
dep.

P.M.

12.0

Parknasilla . . arr. 4.55 Cahirciveen . arr. 1.0

Parknasilla to Kemnare (by Motor Char a-banc).

A.M. P.M. P.M.
Parknasilla . . dep. 9.5 12.30 1.45

Kenmare . arr. 10.20 1.45 3.0

A.M. A.M. P.M.

Kenmare . dep. 10.20 11.30 4.10

Parknasilla . . arr. 11.45 12.45 5.25

For Fares and other details of above Motor Services apply to Tourist

Development (Ireland), Ltd., 30 Molesworth Street, Dublin.

(iv)
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PROM DUBLIN TO CORK.

This route,—the main line of the Great Southern and "Western

Railway,—which leads through a very pleasant stretch of low-

land country, lies for 165 miles in a south - west direction.

The counties passed through are, generally speaking, well

cultivated. Abundance of sheep and of cattle crop the green

pastures, and give a look of prosperity and wealth. The scenery

on both sides of the railway line affords at times picturesque

views of mountain ranges, full rivers, and luxuriant plains.

The railway touches many towns of great antiquarian fame

and interest, runs through the world - celebrated Curragh of

Kildare, and skirts the Bog of Allen.

Clondalkin, 4J miles from Dublin, possesses a fine round tower,

the nearest one to the metropolis. The tower, 85 feet high,

stands at a convenient distance from the railway, and is sur-

mounted by a conical top. It can be ascended from the

inside by a series of ladders. It possesses a singular pro-

jecting base nearly 13 feet in height, similar, according to

Petrie, to that at Roscarbery ; and both, in this respect,

resembled the castle of Brunless in Brecknockshire. It has no

"dressings" to the apertures, and is considered one of the

earliest. The church of Clondalkin was founded by St. Mochua
in the 7th century, and was for some time a bishop's see. There

is a handsome modern church and convent, and a monastery with

about twenty monks, who devote their lives to the education of

youth. Clondalkin has been remarkable for some centuries for

its paper-mills, and has at present the largest and most modern

in Ireland.

From Celbridge (Hazelhatch) Station, lOJ miles, a good road

goes direct north-west to Maynooth through the pretty village

of Celbridge, which is If mile from the station. It was here

that Miss Yanhomrigh lived, whom Dean Swift named ''Van-

essa *
; and in Marley Abbey, her residence, took place the well-

known scene between them. This lady had written to the

Deau asking him whether the report of his marriage with
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** Stella" was true. In reply, Swift hurried hither, and angrily

confronting Miss Vanhomrigh, dashed down the letter before

her, and went without a word. She died soon after.

Naas (pop. 3836 ; Hotels: Royal, Railway, Commercial ; Naas

Railway Station 20 miles from Dublin) is a thriving market

and fair town, with a military barracks, town hall, and neat

court - house. Naas was the seat of the Leinster kings. Of

its still earlier greatness the Rath is the sole relic left.

Norman and later monasteries were built, but they have all

disappeared.

The name Naas (pronounced Nase) is derived from " Nas, a fair or meet-

ing-place."

It is 20i miles from Dublin by road, from the Curragh 8, Blessington 8,

and less than 15 from Kippure, the lofty northern bastion of the Wicklow
hills.

The Hill of Allen, 676 feet, is seen to the right from the

railway before reaching Newbridge Station. It is situated in

the Bog of Allen, originally of very great extent, but now partly

reclaimed.

Newbridge (Hotels: Albert, Crown) is the most convenient

station for the Curragh of Kildare (2J miles), one of the finest race-

courses in the kingdom, and '*used as a race-course from the

earliest ages " (Joyce). It is also an important military camp, the

headquarters of the 7th Divisiou. The plain of the Curragh

is the property of the Crown, and contains about 6000 acres of

beautiful green pasturage. Sir Wm. Temple about 1600 was the

means of obtaining a Government grant of £100 to be run for

annually on the Curragh race-course with the view of encouraging

the breed of Irish horses. It afforded parade ground for the

Volunteers in 1783, and for the United Irishmen in 1804. A
large number of mounds and earthworks are still to be seen

on it.

There is a Golf-Course at the Curragh, largely used by mem-
bers of the garrison and others.

The Curragh is "the Newmarket of Ireland, for here are the training-

stables for Punchestown, Fairyhouse, Leopardstown, Baldoyle," etc.

Kildare (pop. 1576 ; Kildare Hotel) is not the county town.
It is, however, of considerable historic interest. The convert

Bridget, in the 5th century, erected the Nunnery of St. Bridget,
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Kildare's holy fame, in which the nuns for seven hundred years

maintained the ** inextinguishable fire," until Henry de Londres,

Archbishop of Dublin, extinguished it in 1220 ; it was afterwards

rekindled, but finally put out in the reign of Henry YIII. In

638, Aod Duhhi or Black Hugh, retired from the throne of Lein-

ster to take up his abode in the Augustinian Monastery, and

afterwards became Abbot and Bishop of Kildare, one of the few

instances on record of a crown and sceptre being resigned for a

mitre and crosier. The 13th century Cathedral has been care-

fully restored by Mr. Street. The unusual form of the nave

walls and the south transept deserve special notice. The new
top of the central tower is uncommon.

The Carmelite Abbey is situated on the south side- of the

town. The original founder was Lord William de Vesci (1260)

;

the completion of it was left to Gerald Fitz-Maurice O'Faley. De
Yesci also founded, in 1290, an abbey for white friars. In the

churchyard, close by the cathedral, is a fine specimen of a Hound
Tower about 103 feet in height. The original conical top has

been removed, and the tower is now surmounted by a sort of

parapet or battlement. Miss Stokes places it among the earlier

buildings of the kind, and notes that the "dressings" of the

windows and doors are of the same stone as the rest ; but its date

has been hotly disputed.

Monasterevan (pop. about 800) is so called from an abbey

founded by St. Eimhin, or Evin, in the 7th century. Moore

Abbey, on the site of the older establishment, is now the resi-

dence of the Moore family (Earl of Drogheda), which came to

Ireland in Elizabeth's reign.

Portarlington (Refreshment Rooms
;

pop. 1943 ; Hotels :

Brown's ; Fenelly's) is an ancient borough situated on the river

Barrow. Lord Arlington, to whom the estate was granted by

Charles IL, formed the port on the river, from which the town

was named Portarlington. It gives the title of Earl to the Dawson
family, the demesne of which is Emo Park. French Huguenots

settled here at the close of the 16th century and built many fine

residences.

Maryborough ('^Marrbro"; pop. 2957; Hotels: Hibernian,

Aird's, etc. ), named after Queen Mary, in whose reign the county

was formed, is the assize town. Between Maryborough and

Stradbally (east) is the **Rock of Dun-a-maise," which was for-

merly completely covered with fine oak trees, but is now quite
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bare. Its name means **the fortress of Masg," who was one of

the ancestors of the Leinster people. This was the site of the

castle of MacMorrough, King of Leinster. It was frequently

taken by the Irish, and again recaptured by the English.

Dr. Ledwick thus describes the spot. *'The rock is accessible only on

the eastern side, which, in its improved state, was defended by a barbican.

From the barbican you advance to the gate of the lower ballium (312 feet

diameter). You then arrive at the gate of the upper ballium, which is placed

in a tower ; and from this begin the walls which divide the upper and lower

ballium. On the highest point was the keep, and the apartments for

officers."

This place was originally the royal residence of Laoisach Hy-

Moradh. The foundation of the fortress is ascribed to Laigseach,

early in the 3rd century. The Hy-Moradh family became united

with the Hy-Morraghs, and hence the fortress passed into the

royal family of Leinster. With Eva, daughter of Dermot, it

passed into the hands of Strongbow ; and his daughter brought

it as a dowry to William Earl Marshall, who succeeded his father-

in-law as Earl of Pembroke. The castle, of which there are now
only slight remains, is ascribed to the latter occupier. In 1325

the hereditary proprietor, O'More, got possession, and kept it

for four years ; and again, in the time of Edward III., his family

held it for two years. The town is somewhat overshadowed by
the presence of its terrible Lunatic Asylum.

From Ballybrophy (66| miles from Dublin) a branch line to

Limerick passes

Roscrea (pop. 2825 ; Hotels: Portarlington Arms, etc.), a very

ancient market-town, made in 620 into a bishopric, which in the

12th cent, was united to Killaloe. It is surrounded by a rich

tract at the foot of the Slieve Bloom Mountains. The western

gable of the church, with its round-headed door, is probably part

of the 11th century abbey built on the foundation of that of St.

Cronan of the 7th century. The *' Shrine of St. Cronan," a

broken cross with a carving of the Crucifixion, stands in the

churchyard. Near the church there is a Round Toiver, of similar

date to that at Kildare. In 1136 its summit was displaced by
lightning.

The Book of Dimma, now in Trinity College, Dublin (page 8), belonged to
the Abbey of Roscrea.

One of the towers of the castle of King John still stands, as
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also the castle erected by the Ormondes in the reign of Henry
VIII., and now the depot attached to the barracks. A portion

of the Franciscan friary founded in 1490 is now part of the

Roman Catholic church.

Birr or Parsonstown, 12 m. north of Roscrea, is famous for the

gigantic reflector telescope erected here by Lord Rosse in 1842.

It is 6 feet in diameter and 60 feet long.

Templemore (pop. 2774 ; Hotel: The Queen's Arms), a some-

what decayed town, has a large well-built new church. Adjoin-

ing the town is the Priory, the seat of Sir John C. Carden, Bart.

,

one of the most beautiful in the county. The mansion is

modern, but the entrance is through a portion of an ancient

castle of the Knights Templar. The grounds, which are well

wooded, and adorned by a fine sheet of water, are open to the

public. On the southern side of this lake are the ruins of a

large square keep, while the northern shore is ornamented by a

portion of a monastic church, exhibiting in its western wall a

fine Gothic window.

The Devil's Bit Mountains, so called from a gap in the summit,

are for some miles conspicuous objects from the railway to the

north-west of Templemore. Primitive Hibernian geology told

how his grim Majesty bit out a part of the ridge and deposited it

in the plain, afterwards to become the *' Rock of Cashel."

Rejoining the main line, we go on to

Thurles (pop. 4411 ; Hotel: Hayes'), an ancient town, origin-

ally called Durlas O'Fogarty. In the 10th century it was the

scene of the defeat of the Irish by the Danes. The original

castle is supposed to have formed part of the preceptory of the

Knights Templar. A second castle was afterwards built by

James Butler, one of whose descendants was created Viscount

Thurles. A well-preserved tower of this castle stands at the

bridge. The town is the seat of the Roman Catholic archdiocese

of Cashel. The Cathedral of St. Patrick was erected at a cost of

£45,000. There are a large Catholic College and an Ursuline

convent. In the college was held, in 1850, the Synod of Thurles,

composed of all the Roman Catholic bishops of Ireland.

Holy Cross Abbey is 4 miles from Thurles, near the line of

railway, and 9 from Cashel (only small inns in village).

There is much left of this interesting ruin. It is well worth
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a visit, and, were it not so shut up amid the buildings of the

village, would be more popular than it is. The best view of the

group is obtained on the opposite side of the river, with the

weir in the foreground.
'* As a monastic ruin," Dr. Petrie writes, " the abbey of Holy

Cross ranks in popular esteem as one of the first, if not the very

first, in Ireland ... its architectural features are of remark-

able beauty.

"

Whilst approaching the east end you get the effect of the chief

and most uncommon feature of the building—the windows.

A late Norman church (1182) was built here by King O'Brien,

but beyond the north and south walls of the nave, pierced with

early arches, there is scarcely anything left of that building.

What we have now is the much later structure built upon the

Norman foundations.

Of its most striking ornaments— the varied windows—the

most beautiful is the east window of " reticulated " (net-work)

tracery. It is as fine as that at Reading, though, of course, not

to be compared with the more elaborate beauties of Westminster

cloisters. The west window is very effective, and reminds us of

the west window at Galway ; it is also of later style. ^ The east

windows of the south chapel have very graceful tracery.

The visitor's eye will next be caught by the curiosity of the

church, the double colonnade dividing two arches in the south-

east chapel. Notice the twisted fluting on the shafts. Its use

is unknown.^

The interior of the church in its best day must have been

certainly very handsome, for, although the nave walls are bare

of any decoration, with early arches and square piers of the

simplest description, it is adorned with a fine west window ; and
moving farther east, beyond the centre tower, you have much
more elaborate work in the choir^ rich in carving, lit with a

finely traceried window, and ornate with sedilia and transept

chapels. It contains a late tomb (*' perpendicular ") in the most
favoured position, right of the altar, but to an unknown occu-

pant. It may, perhaps, be that of a 15th century Countess of

Ormonde.

Both north and south transepts have eastern chapels, and

1 The douhU form of this "honeycomb" kind of tracery, and a rare in-
stance, is to be seen at Limerick (page 179).

2 Can this have been the shrine of the great relic of this church!
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from that on the north side a staircase leads up to the substantial

tower.

Of the cloisters and monastery buildings, where the Cistercian

brotherhood lived, there are only the scantiest remnants.

The title of its dedication is attributed to the possession of a piece of the

pretended true Cross, presented by Pope Paschal II. to Murtagh, monarch of

all Ireland, in the year 1110. This relic, set in gold and adorned with precious

stones, was preserved in the abbey until the Reformation, when it was saved

by the family of Ormonde. It is said to have been finally delivered to the

Roman Catholic hierarchy of this district.

The abbot, as Earl of Holy Cross, was a peer in parliament

;

he was, moreover, vicar-general of the Cistercian order in Ire-

land. Great multitudes, including many important persons,

made pilgrimages to the abbey in its prosperity, but at the

Dissolution it was granted, with all its valuable estates, to the

Earl of Ormonde at the annual rent of £15.

8i miles beyond Thurles is Goolcfs Cross station. See pink page.

Cashel (pop. 3000 ; Hotels : Stewart's, Corcoran's), 6J miles

from Goold's Cross, was once the residence of the kings of Munster.

A synod was held there by St. Patrick, who is said to have

founded the church. For a long time it was the seat of an

archbishopric, now united to that of Emly, Waterford, and Lis-

more. It is still the seat of a bishopric.

In the town is a very handsome modern cross to the memory

of Archbishop Croke.

The country round is a rich and extensive plain, out of

which the Rock of Cashel rises with great boldness and abrupt-

ness to the height of about 300 feet, and, but for the absence

of sea, might remind the imaginative of certain features of the

romantic situation of St. Michael's Mount. On its summit is a

magnificent assemblage of ruins, which, *' though roofless and

window!ess and greatly shattered, still stand up in almost their

original height from their splendid platform." They consist of

a cathedral, Cormac's chapel, monastic buildings, a round tower,

and a great stone cross.

The most ancient are probably the Round Tower and Cormac's

Chapel.

The Cathedral.—This is in the early '* Pointed" style, and

of later date than the above-mentioned chapel. Under the
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tower are handsome and lofty arches, and a groined roof. Note

the good early arcading of the chancel, and the depressed tops

and curved bases of the clerestory lights.

In the year 1495 the turbulent Earl of Kildare, desiring to

destroy Archbishop Creagh, set fire to the cathedral. It is re-

corded that ** he readily confessed his guilt, and added * that he

never would have done it, but that he thought the archbishop

was within at the time.' The candour and simplicity of his

confession convinced King Henry that he could not be capable

of the intrigues and duplicity with which he had been

charged ; and when the Bishop of Meath concluded the last

article of the impeachment with the words, * You see all Ireland

cannot rule this gentleman, ' the king instantly replied, ' Then
he shall rule all Ireland,' and forthwith appointed him to the

lord-lieutenancy of that kingdom." The cathedral is a con-

spicuous object for many miles round. Divine service continued

to be performed within it until the time of Archbishop Price,

who in 1752 removed the roof from the choir and converted the

whole into a ruin.

Cormac's Chapel was probably built by Cormac McCarthy,

King of Munster and Bishop of Cashel, about the year 1127

A.D. ; though its foundation, and the tomb it enshrines have

been generally assigned to Cormac MacCullinain or Cormac

O'Cillen, the earlier dignitaries, of the 10th century. It is

probably the richest and most interesting, and certainly the

best preserved of all the ancient Romanesque churches in Ire-

land. Both the doorways, with their elaborate mouldings and

uncommon ^^/'^^^i^^^'^^-sculpture, are fine specimens, and the use

of the rosette ornament should be noticed. But the chief

features are (1) the roof chambers or overcrofts ^ enclosed between

the barrel vaulting of both nave and chancel and the steeply-

pitched roof above. The same construction will be found in the

chapels at Kells and Glendalough, though these were built some

200 years before. (2) The two towers also are rare additions
;

their rude simplicity and girding bands may be compared to the

Saxon work of Monk Wearmouth tower (1075) in Durham. The

elaborate carving on the mouldings and walls within affords

good specimens of Norman designs. Besides the richly-worked

sarcophagus^ there is the tomb of Cormac^ from which came the

fine bronze crozier, covered with ** Limoges work," now in Dublin
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Museum. In the latter museum may also be seen the silver

*' paten" and early bell discovered in this chapel.

The Round Tower, between 80 and 90 feet in height, is con-

sidered by Miss Stokes to be earlier than those at Glendalough

and Kilkenny. Over the doorway is the early arch, and though

the stones are cut and cemented, the ''dressings" of the

windows are of the same material as the walls. It will be

noticed that this, unlike the other buildings, is of sandstone.

In the same enclosure of this weird, dead city is the ancient

Cross. The stone below it is known as the coronation stone of

the Kings of Munster—a sort of ' * Lia Fail " of the south. On
the side a carving of concentric circles can be still traced, and

tradition has it that it was a ''Druid's altar" ; it may be the

oldest stone-work in the place, and among the most ancient

carvings in Ireland.

Parts of the dormitory and other portions of the Monastic

Buildings remain near the Cathedral.

Of the two 13th century religious houses once standing in

the town below, ruins of one, the Dominican Priory, still exist,

At the bottom of the rock is the extensive ruin of

Hore Abbey.—The tower and gables of this (Early Pointed)

church are seen about half mile to the right on leaving the

gate of the *'Cashel" enclosure. It was originally a Bene-

dictine monastery, but in 1272 David MacCarvill, Archbishop ol

Cashel, being, as he told his mother, forewarned in a dream that

the black monks or Benedictines intended to cut off his head,

banished them, and supplied their places with monks of the

Cistercian order, for whom he founded Hore Abbey, and en

dowed it with the forfeited lands of the Benedictines.

Fethard is 10 miles from Cashel to the south-east, about 12

miles from Caher, and 8 from Clonmel. This town is remarkable

for the wonderful preservation of some of its walls and fortifica-

tions, erected in the time of King John. One of the entrances to

the town is through a castellated archway. The abbey, founded

early in the 14th century, has been restored, and is still used.

This is not to be confounded with another town of the same name
in Co. Wexford, p. 133.

Leaving Goold's Cross (p. 98) the Main Line continues
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through the woods near Dimdrum, and beneath the gentle slopes

of the Tipperary hills to Limerick Junction, 107 miles from

Dublin, and 21 j miles from Limerick (N.W.).

At Limerick Junction (Hotel : G. Southern), the line to Cork

is intersected by the Limerick and Waterford line. (The Black-

water and Youghal may be conveniently visited from Mallow

Junction, or after proceeding to Cork.) Shortly after passing

Limerick Junction we obtain good views of the Galtee mountains

in the left-hand distance.

Kilmallock (124J miles) derives its name from an abbey

founded by St. Mochcallog in the 7th century. At an early

period it was a favourite place of residence of the nobility and

gentry, and was formerly surrounded by a great stone wall

fortified with a mound of earth, and having four imposing gate-

ways and towers. Though now practically in ruins, the build-

ings in the time of the Roundheads were extensive. The older

houses are still surrounded with battlements. The Abbey
Church and the Dominican Priory deserve a visit.

Lough Gur^ 10 miles north of Kilmallock, is of great interest

to antiquarians, who will find the prehistoric remains well worth

inspection.

At Charleville (129J miles ; Hotel: Imperial), another railway

junction for Limerick (distance 25 miles), we enter County Cork,

the largest of the shires of Ireland. The western surface of the

county is mountainous, that on the north and east is rich and
fertile. In the south-east the Silurian strata crop up, though old

red sandstone and mountain limestone prevail elsewhere. Copper
and coal are found among its minerals. The chief crops are

wheat, oats, potatoes, etc. The climate is remarkably mild, but

also humid, especially in autumn and winter. The county is

well watered ; small lakes are numerous in it ; the rivers Lee and
Bandon hold their whole course through it, and the Blackwater,

along the greater part of its waterway, aff'ords facilities for inland

navigation by barges as far as Cappoquin in Waterford.

Buttevant (137J) was once called Bothion, afterwards Kilna-

mullagh. *' It giveth name unto that ancient citie which Kilne-

mullah cleped is of old " {Spenser). On a rock above the Awbeg is

Buttevant Castle. The town at one time contained numerous
houses and many mansions of the gentry, but already in Spenser's
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time the *' ragged ruins breed great luth and pittie." The Fran-

ciscan Abbey of Buttevantwas founded inthe reign ofEdward I. by

David de Barry. Judging from the present ruins, it must have

been a house of great splendour. The east window should be

observed. Buttevant is now an important garrison town.

Five miles north-east of the station is Kilcolman Castle,

the home of the poet Spenser, where he wrote a considerable

portion of the Faerie Queene. Doneraile Park, once the property

of Spenser, is about 6 miles south-east on the road to Fermoy.

Mallow (144^ ; Hotel : The Royal) is a town of 4542 in-

habitants, beautifully situated on the Blackwater, which is

crossed here by a fine viaduct of ten arches. Passengers for the

direct route to Killarney, by the Great Southern and Western

Railway, change at Mallow, which is also a junction for Fermoy,

Lismore, Dungarvon, and Waterford ; also for Limerick. The

town possesses a tepid mineral spring, formerly much frequented,

but now deserted. In the neighbourhood is Mallow Castle, the

seat of Sir Denham Norreys. On the site of the town formerly

stood Short Castle, and on the south of it another built by the

Desmonds, but destroyed during the rebellion of 1641. At the

station there is a good refreshment-room, a fact unusual enough

on an Irish railway to be specially noted.
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CORK.

Hotels.—Imperial, Pembroke Street ; Victoria, Patrick Street ; Moore's^

Morrison's Quay ; Great Southern ; Turner's, 65 George Street ; MetropoU

Temperance, King Street (large) ; Windsor, King Street (smaller).

Railway Stations.—Great Southern and Western, for Dublin and Kil-

larney, Limerick, Queenstown, and Youghal, Glanmire Station ; Black-

rock and Passage (Queenstown by steamer), Albert Station ; Cork and

Bandon for Killarney (Prince of Wales route), Albert Quay Station;

Cork and Macroom for Killarney, Capwell Station; "Muskerry," for

Blarney, Western Road Station.

The City of Cork had in 1891 a population of 96,891, and in

1901 the number had risen to 100,022. It may be reached by

steam-packets from London, Liverpool, Glasgow, Milford Haven,

Bristol, Plymouth, Cardiff, etc. ; and from Dublin direct by the

Great Southern and Western Railway (165^ miles).

It is finely situated on the river Lee, which, after passing

the city, widens out into a beautiful bay, containing the Great

Island, on which is situated the town of Cove, now called Queens-

town. The city of Cork derives its name from corcach^ signify-

ing **a marshy place," and still retains its original name in

Irish. It owes its existence to St. Finn Barr, who (7th century)

established his cell in the district known as Gill Abbey, about

the site where Queen's College now stands. For some centuries

disciples in great numbers flocked to receive instruction at the

institution which he founded.

In the 9th century Cork was frequently plundered by the

Danes, who in 1020 founded the nucleus of the present city,

on an island formed by the Lee, for the purposes of trade. At
the time of the English invasion it was the capital of Desmond
Macarthy, King of Munster, who, on the arrival of Henry II. in

1172, resigned to him the city and did him homage. The
English settlers were, however, held in great detestation by
the native Irish, and the city more than once passed into their

hands.

For receiving Perkin Warbeck, the impostor, with royal
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honours in 1493, the Mayor of Cork was hanged and the city

lost its charter. The charter was restored in 1609. Holinshed,

the chronicler, writing about 1577, thus describes the state of

the city of Cork :

—

" On the land side tliey are encumbered with evil neighbors—the Irish

outlaws, that they are fain to watch their gates hourlie, to keep them shut

at service-time, and at mealea, from sun to sun, nor suffer anie stranger to

enter the citie with his weapon, but the same to leave at a lodge appointed.

They walke out at seasons for recreation with power of men furnished.

They trust not the countrie adjoining, but match in wedlocke among them-

selves onlie, so that the whole city is wellnigh linked one to the other in

affinitie."

During the Protectorate, Cork held out for Charles, but was

in 1649 surprised and taken. In 1690 it surrendered to Marl-

borough. It is a corporate city, being governed by a mayor,

aldermen, and councillors. It possesses a number of very

spacious streets, and there are many fine villas on the slopes

of the hill above the Lee, besides the large residences above the

Harbour. In Shears Street, near the Court House, Maclise first

saw the light of day, and Sheridan Knowles was born in the

adjoining James Street.

The ^'charming gaiety and frankness" of the southern Irish

ladies is proverbial. The author of the Irish Sketch Book was

quite carried away. " I never saw," he wrote, ** in any country

such a general grace of manner and ladyhood'' ; and in this

he did not speak only of the upper classes.

The lines of Spenser, who lived within 30 miles, at Kilcolman,

put the chief physical features of the city in a nutshell :—

** The spreading Lee that, like an island fayre,

Bncloseth Corke with his divided floode."

The principal modern streets are in that portion of the town

known as the island, bounded almost completely by the river.

This island is connected with the shores on either side by

several bridges spanning the stream both on the south and on

the north.

Parnell Bridge is on the south branch of the Lee.

St. Patrick's Bridge crosses the northern branch of the river.

It occupies the site of the old bridge erected in 1798, which was

partially destroyed by a flood in 1851, and it is broader than

any bridge over the Thames except that at Westminster.
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Pakliambnt BRiDaE is on the south side, leading into the

South Mall.

St. Patrick's Street, the pleasantest thoroughfare of the

city, sweeps westwards from St. Patrick's Bridge with a curve

almost as graceful as that of High Street, Oxford ; but the

buildings are quite unworthy of remark. At the upper end of

the street, as now also in Sackville Street, Dublin, is a statue to

Father Mathew.

The well-known " Apostle of Temperance " was a *' Capuchin," devoted

to, and beloved by the poor folk of Cork. He started his great crusade

against drink in 1838, and extended his labours into England and America.

Under the great stress of his work and financial difficulties in 1856 he broke

down. His church was Trinity Church, near Parliament Bridge. Thackeray,

who gives an interesting sketch of him, says :—" With the state of the

country, of landlord, tenant, and peasantry, he seemed to be most curiously

and intimately acquainted. His knowledge of the people is prodigious, and

their confidence in him as great."

Grand Parade is a fine straight street, but has the same
fault as St. Patrick Street. In the centre there was formerly a wide

channel, which was arched in 1780. At the south end there

is a large monument, put up by CorkYoung Ireland Society in 1906,

to commemorate the men who fought ** in the wars of Ireland"

in 1798, 1803, '46, '67^ to recover her "sovereign independence."

The South Mall runs at right angles with the Parade.

Though not the widest, it is one of the most important streets

in Cork, being occupied by professional men and the chief

merchants. About a hundred years ago the middle of this street

was a river, and the south side formed one side of a triangular

island, the other two sides being formed by Charlotte Quay and

Morrison Quay. The Bank of Ireland, the Stamp Office, and

the County Club House, the offices of the Provincial, the

National, the Munster, and the Hibernian Banks, are situated

in this street ; as also the Commercial Buildings, the Assembly

Rooms, the Protestant Hall, and the Cork Library.

Great George Street is the newest street in Cork ; beyond

Muskerry Railway Station it becomes the Western Road.

The Mardyke, once the promenade of the fashionables of

Cork, though now consigned to the tradespeople and shop-

keepers, runs parallel to AVestern Road. It is a mile in length,

is overshadowed by tall elm-trees, and is a favourite promenade.

The Cricket ground adjoins on the north side. To the left we
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have a view of the Queen's College, a handsome structure over

the southern fork of the river. On the southern bank of the
Lee is the city park and race-course, skirted by a picturesque

promenade, the Marina^ forming a beautiful avenue.

For the finest building in Cork, the Cathedral of St. Finn Barr
(Services, Sundays 11.30 a.m., 3.30 and 7 p.m.), leave St. Patrick

Street by the Parade (left), and at once turn right by St. George

Street to South Main Street ; at the far end of latter cross South

Gate Bridge, and turn to the right. The view obtained by this

approach, from the east, is the best of the building as a whole.

An old structure, occupying the site of the ancient building

of St. Finn Barr's foundation of the 7th century, was taken

down, and was succeeded by a new and rather mean cathedral

in 1735. The erection of the present building, due to the

exertions of Bishop Gregg, was finished in 1879.

Here the architect, Mr. W. Burgess, has succeeded in giving

Ireland one of the very best modern churches of the kingdom.

To compare small with great things, the group of spires is,

of course, inferior to that at Lichfield ; it is, Lowever, very

fine. The style is Early French, which ** agrees with Early

English in general character."

Observe how much Mr. Burgess has employed the round or

''rose" window, and the ring-bands upon the smaller pillar shafts.

All the three spires are handsome, and the whiteness of the

stone adds an unusual brightness. The West Front has a most

pleasing effect, which gains richness from the gilded back-

ground with which the principal carvings are relieved. All the

carvings are good. Notice especially the figures round the West
Door ; the eleven figures of the central doorway represent the

*'wise and foolish virgins" of the parable, and the ** Bride-

groom " is in the centre, holding and wearing roses.

Three features of the Interior strike the visitor—the great

height
J
a characteristic French effect ; the marked use oi upright

lines, especially noticeable in the wall shafts supporting the

vaulting ; and the richness of the stone-work, due to the

varied colouring and, to some extent, to the ring bands of the

shafts.

The capitals of the pillars are remarkable for their French

character ; and the pulpit and font for the unusual additions of

brass texts. The interior of the Central Tower is a special
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Baaed on that of Dr. Canlfleld's Handbook to the Cathedral Ckwrch,
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feature ; see the variety of the marbles used, and the brightness

lent by the inland gilt mosaic.

Round the apse^ beyond the choir, runs an "ambulatory"
;

and the stone colouring of the eastern end is very rich, the

prevailing blue of the walls being in contrast with the red

marbles of the nave aisles. The carefully-balanced "toning"

of the windows, the elaborate decoration of the Bishop's Throne,

and the mosaic pavement of the apse all deserve notice.

The entire decoration has been minutely worked out in

sketches by Mr. Burgess, who died soon after the erection of

the building.

Shandon Church (St. Ann's), built about 1725, is approached

from Pope's Quay, west of St. Patrick's Bridge, by the right-

hand turning just short of St. Mary's Church. It is remarkable

for its steeple, and the bells within it, which were rendered

famous by " Father Prout " in his lines

—

** With deep affection and recollection

I often think of the Shandon bells,

Whose sound so wild would, in days of childhood,

Fling round my cradle their magic spells—

On this I ponder, where'er I wander,

And thus grow fonder, sweet Cork, of thee

;

With thy bells of Shandon,

That sound so grand on

The pleasant waters of the river Lee."

The tower—a queer, piebald affair, but a distinct feature of

the town—is of red stone on the north and east faces only
;

and is topped by a curious white turret of three stories, remind-

ing us of a similar effort at Heme Bay in Kent. The bells were

cast by Rudhall of Gloucester in the last century, at the same

foundry from which those of St. Finn Barr's cathedral came.

The place derived its name from the Shan-dun or ''old

fort " near.

In the adjoining graveyard Father ''Prout" (F. S. Mahony)

was buried in 1866. Though ordained, he never permanently

undertook clerical work, but was engaged in journalistic writing

in London. He died at Paris, having acted for many years as

Paris correspondent to the Glohe newspaper.

St. Mary's Roman Catholic Cathedral is a few minutes' walk

away to the north ; and on the side of the Shandon steps, leading

down to Roman Street and Malgrave Road, is the Green Coat School,
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On Pope's Quay is St. Mary's Roman Catholic Church, a classic building

of fine proportions. The facade consists of an Ionic portico, flanked by

square towers in the same style, and stands on a high platform approached

by a noble flight of steps. The interior is of the composite order, and is said

to be the best specimen of its kind in Ireland. The general design is that

of an ancient basilica. Its most remarkable features are the ornate Roman,

esque ceiling, lofty Corinthian pillars, and a Balduchino over the high altar.

At the west end of St. Patrick's Street is SS, Peter's and

PauVs Church (Roman Catholic), a spacious Gothic building

elaborately decorated, and containing the handsomest oak "con-

fessionals " in the country.

On the left hand from Parliament Bridge is the uncommon
and striking facade of Trinity Churchy with white Gothic spire.

The interior is one of the best in the city. This is Father

Mathew's church (p. 105), and the quay has been named Father

Mathevfs Quay in memory of him. On the opposite side of the

river, off George's Quay, is Dunbar Street, in which is St. Finn

Parr's Roman Catholic Church, This contains—under the high

altar—one of the sculptor Hogan's best works, '

' The Dead Christ.

"

For >S'^. Nicholas^ Church turn to right in Douglas Street

and along Abbey Street, a typical ''back street"; and notice

the ancient grey tower on the right hand, a relic of an old city

church (the ''batter" is uncommon). The handsome spire on

ahead is that of ^S'^. Nicholas\ which is only worth visiting for

the sake of the fine piece of sculpture which it contains. This is

above Judge Dennis's tomb, and is the work of Bacon.

The best way to Queen's College is along Western Road.

Opposite the entrance (right) to Mardyke is the gateway with the

legend, "Where Finbar taught, let Munster learn."

The College, opened in 1849, occupies a picturesque site on

a rock rising fully 40 feet above the level of the southern branch

of the stream. Gill Abbey, founded in the 7th century by Gill

Ada, Bishop of Cork, stood near the site. The college build-

ings consist of three sides of a quadrangle, in the Tudor style of

architecture, and is very handsome. It is, indeed, probably the

finest building of its kind in Ireland, and was designed by Sir

William Deane. This, with the two colleges of Belfast and Gal-

way, was founded about the middle of the 19th century as an

incentive to better national education ; it is now attached to the

Royal University at Dublin. The library is good, and the

gardens should be seen.
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The Court-House, with a good Corinthian portico, which
Macaulay considered "would do honour to Palladio," is in St.

George Street. The general effect of the building is less spoilt by
its dome than that of the Four Courts of Dublin.

The Crawford Municipal Technical Institute, situated in

Emmet Place, is a handsome building of red brick and stone,

containing an old and a new portion ; the former coincides with

the old **Cork Institution," founded in 1803, and previous to

that was the Government Customs House. The additional wing

was erected by the late Mr. Crawford at a cost of £21,000, and

the new building was opened by the Prince of Wales, in 1885, as

the '* Crawford Municipal School of Art." The picture galleries,

on the first floor, contain only a few works, the property of the

Corporation, and pictures are obtained on loan from South Kens-

ington and from private collections. In the sculpture gallery, on

the first floor, is a unique collection of casts presented to the city

by George lY., including casts of figures by the Marquis Canova,

a number of busts of celebrities, such as Father Prout, and groups

by Hogan. The School ofArt has established a successful industry

of lace and crochet work, all designed and executed in the school.

In the Carnegie Free Library, near Parnell Bridge, the reference-

room is open from 10 to 10 ; news-room, 9 a.m. to 10 p.m.

It is strange that art should find so little encouragement in a

city that has always been famous for her sons in literature and

the fine arts ; "that has sent to England a number of literary men,

of reputation too ;
" whose '

' citizens are the most book-loving men
that" the above-named critic *'ever met" ; whose streets boast

only of the beauty of *' the bright-eyed, wild, clever, eager faces
"

of the Munster folk ; and that has given birth to no less a

master than Daniel Maclise. Sheridan Knowles, Hogan the

sculptor, Crofton Croker, Barry the painter. Dr. William

Maguire, and Father Francis Mahony were all men of Cork.

St. Joseph's Cemetery is about a mile distant from the town.

It was formerly the Botanic Garden, and was converted into a

cemetery by Father Mathew in 1830. The ground is well laid

out and planted. Among the finer specimens of sepulchral

architecture which it contains is a sarcophagus of Portland stone,

surmounted by a figure of an angel, by Hogan, in white Italian

marble.

To the south-west of the town is the Lough of Cork, a sheet
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of water only interesting as the scene of one of Crofton Oroker's

fairy legends.

" He says that it was once a small fairy well, covered by a stone, concern-

Ing which a tradition had been handed down from remote times, which

predicted, that if the stone which covered the well were not replaced every

morning after the dwellers in the valley had taken from it their daily supply

of water, a torrent would rush forth and inundate the valley, and drown all

the inhabitants. This calamity was at length incurred by a certain princess,

who, neglecting the injunction, forgot to close the mouth of the well, and

caused the destruction of her father and his people."

An interest of a more practical kind is attached to the three reservoirs,

situated about 300 feet above the level of the city, which supply the inhabit-

ants with two and a half million gallons of fresh water from the river Lee.

These waterworks were constructed at a cost of £70,000, which, considering

their extensive character, may be considered as very moderate.

Cork is of considerable importance as a shipping port. It

possesses the largest butter market in the United Kingdom. The
export of pork and live stock is also very extensive. The dis-

tilleries are on a large scale, and the other industries include

woollen and linen manufactures, paper - making, tanning, and

copper and tin manufactures. The city returns two members to

Parliament.
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QUEENSTOWN AND THE HARBOUR OF CORK.

There are three ways of reaching Queenstown—(1) By G. S. and W. Railway,

from Glanmire Station ; time, about ^ hour ; fare, 2nd class, Is. (2) By
train from Albert Street Station to Monkstown, thence per steamer

to Queenstown (total about 50 mins.) ; fare, 3rd class, 8d. (3) Tlie sail

from Merchant's Quay (near St. Patrick's Bridge) to Queenstown should

be preferred if the weather be fine and time not pressing. But the

railway runs for the most part close by the coast and affords fine

views.

The harbour trip is so interesting that the visitor who makes

most use of the steamers will be most repaid. The "Harbour"
proper begins just after passing Monkstown and Rushbrook.

From Queenstown the steamer should be taken to Aghada^ on

the east coast (page 115), and from thence the car to Cloyne

(page 116), Ballycottin, or Roches Point ; or, on the other hand,

frequent steamers to Crosshaven, on the west coast, are available.

Leaving St. Patrick's Bridge by steamer, the Custom House is

passed, near which the two streams of the Lee unite. The
Marina is well seen on the south, and on the north is the wooded

hill of Montenotte, dotted about with villas.

Special bathing tickets are issued from June to September to

Queenstown Baths, by G. S. and W., from Glanmire Station
;

fareSj return, including bath, Is., 9d., or 6d. ; by 7.20 and

8.50 A.M. trains on week days, and 7.45 A.M. train on Sundays.

Cork Harbour.—**From its size, safety, scenery, and situa-

tion, Cork Harbour is admittedly regarded as one of the finest

in the world. . . . This noble expanse of water, divided into an

outer and inner harbour by the islands of Spike, Rocky, and

Haulbowline, is to be seen spreading its broad bosom in a sweep

of 7 miles, encircled by green hills, picturesquely dotted over

with white mansions and villages ; whilst conspicuous in the

background, formed by the Great Island, rises Queenstown in

tiers of terraces, right from the water's edge. Though its his-

torical associations are mainly of a maritime character, on the
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other hand, there is scarcely a type of Irish antiquities, Pagan

or Christian, that is not to be found in the immediate vicinity
"

(T. Coleman, JR. S\ Ant. Handbook, 1898).

Blackrock Castle stands out conspicuously upon the promontory

of Rigmahon. It is supposed to be the place from which William

Penn embarked for America. The Ursuline convent at Blackrock

is one of the most important educational establishments for girls

in Ireland.

After Rochestown, Passage, about 6 miles from Cork, is the

next station on the line. It possesses docks and several large

warehouses.

Glenbrook, half a mile farther, used to be frequented as a

watering-place, but the hotel and baths are now closed.

Monkstown {Hotel: Imperial) is situated about a mile from

Passage, and beyond it the river widens out into a lake. The

castle, which is now a ruin, was built in 1636. Monkstown is

the headquarters of the Royal Munster Yacht Club, and on

certain days of the week the white-winged yachts are a beautiful

sight in the bay. From here one can continue in the train to

Crosshaven, or change to the steamer for Queenstown. In Monks-

town Bay is the fine old H.M.S. Emerald, used as a training-ship,

principally for Irish boys. She was at one time one of the best

fighting ships in the navy. The steamer makes a little round on

the way to Queenstown, calling at Ringaskiddy and Haulbowline.

Ringaskiddy (4 miles south-east) takes its name from the Skiddys,

'•' a Danish-descended family." For Haulbowline see next page.

Queenstown (pop. 9082 ; Hotels : The Queen's, Rob Roy,

Imperial, Columbia), on the south side of Great Island, was

long known as the "Cove of Cork," and received its present

appellation from the visit of Queen Victoria in 1849. The town,

which is built on the face of a hill sloping steeply down to the

shore, and crowned by a magnificent grey granite Roman Catholic

cathedral, is a very striking sight seen from the bay. It is

frequented by invalids on account of the mildness and salubrity

of the climate. It is the *
' Port of Call " for the steamers bearing

the American mails, and is famous for its Yacht Club, the *' Royal

Cork," founded 1720, the oldest club of the kind in the world.

8
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Except the R. Yacht Squadron, this is the only club of which the

commodore is entitled to fly the Union Jack. The admiral in

command of the Irish station has his residence at Queenstown.

St. Colman's Cathedral is a most beautiful specimen.of Messrs. Pugin and
Ashlin's work, built in the " florid Gothic " style. The vertical mouldings,

the ribs of the wooden roof, the diaper carvings, and capitals all give it a

luxuriant richness unequalled in Ireland. Note the remarkable continuation

cf the^iave walls, as screens, across the transepts ; and the unbroken and
elaborate string-course which engirdles the whole building. The rich arcading

and tracery of the apse, as well as the beautiful colouring of the east vAndow,

together with the minute detail of the marble reredos, all combine to make
the eastern end striking in character.

Golf may be found at Queenstown Junction (6 miles) and

Rushbrooke, the western suburb of Queenstown.

I Island is the most conspicuous, and the largest of the

islands in the bay. It is occupied by Fort Westmoreland, which

affords accommodation for a considerable number of men. The

island was formerly used for a convict establishment, and many
important works were executed by the prisoners.

Haulbowline is a smaller island lying just opposite Queenstown.

It contains the naval dockyard, and is the depot for all ordnance

stores. Rocky Island is the smallest of the three islands, and

contains the powder magazine under adequate protection.

On leaving Queenstown for Crosshaven the steamer crosses the

magnificent harbour, which cannot be properly seen between

Monkstown and Queenstown, and at the entrance guarded by the

twin forts, Carlisle and Camden, turns into the mouth of the

Carrigaline river, where stands Crosshaven {Hotel). From the

hill there is a splendid view of Queenstown and the whole scenery

of the magnificent harbour, and even of the Atlantic. It is a

favourite place for pleasure parties. During the season there are

cheap excursions about 2 days a week from Cork. Carrigaline

has a historic record, and like most places in the neighbourhood,

can show the ruins of an old castle.

Trustworthy history passes over the burial on Great Island of

the prehistoric Nemedh, who, it is said, came to these shores

with a band of colonists from the East, but the evidence that St.

Finnbar entered the harbour in the 6th century and founded his
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monastery above Corcach is sufficiently good. To the latter,

some years later, came the fifty noble Romans in search of learn-

ing ; and, 300 years after, the Danish pirates sailed up among
the islands to plunder and to stay, with commerce following in

their wake. It is probably to these invaders that must be attri-

buted the origin of the ancient custom of '* throwing the dart,"

with which the Mayor of Cork in each third year asserts his

rights over the harbour. Among the most interesting events of

local history were Drake's flight up the winding Carrigaline

river before the pursuing Spaniards, and his escape by hiding in

** Duke's Pool " ; the embarkation in 1618 of Raleigh upon that

last fatal voyage to the West Indies, whence he returned,

''broken in brain and heart, to die a traitor's death at White-

hall" ; and the departure westward also of the Quaker founder

of Pennsylvania. It was from the same quay that the " Sirius
"

set out in 1838 to make the first steam passage over the

Atlantic.

The Rev. Charles Wolfe, author of the lines on the burial of

Sir John Moore, beginning

" Not a drum was heard, not a funeral note,"

who died at Cove, of consumption, in 1823, lies interred in the

old graveyard of Clonmell in Great Island. At Roches Point

(4 miles south of Queenstown) there is a signal station for

notifying the passing of ships outward or homeward bound.

EXCURSIONS FROM CORK.

I. CORK TO ROSTELLAN AND CLOYNE.

There are so many steamers and so many possible methods of reaching the
points of interest in and about Queenstown Harbour' that the visitor is

advised to get a railway guide or to ask particulars at his hotel. He
will find in the summer ample means of transit.

This excursion is generally made by taking the steamer to

Aghada pier, 3j miles east of Queenstown ; and from thence by
long car to Rostellan, Cloyne, and Ballycotton, or to Roches Point.

Rostellan Castle was formerly the seat of the O'Briens,

Marquesses of Thomond, whose family titles, on the decease of

the Marquess in 1855, became extinct, except that of the Barony
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of Inchiquin, which descended to Sir Lucius O'Brien, Bart.,

afterwards Lord Inchiquin. The mansion, beautifully situated

at the eastern end of the Cove of Cork, occupies the site of a

castle of the Fitzgeralds, the ancient seneschals of Imokilly. It

contains some old documents of historic interest. The demesne
contains a cromlech on the shore of Saleen creek. Here also is

asilex mine, and clays from which some beautiful ''Rostellan

ware " has been manufactured. Visitors are admitted, on applica-

tion, to the grounds, which will amply repay a visit.

Near Castle Mary is another cromlech. ' * It is an immense
mass of limestone of an oblong shape, one end resting on the

ground, and the other supported by two huge upright stones."

The large stone is 16 feet long by about 8 broad, and 3 to 4

thick.
'

' Adjoining this great altar is a smaller one of a triangular

shape, and, like the other, supported by two uprights in an

inclined position. It is supposed that this lesser stone might

have been used for the purposes of common sacrifice, while the

greater altar was reserved for occasions of extraordinary solem-

nity."

—

Coyne.

Cloyne (5J miles from Aghada) so named from its caves^ is

situated in the valley of Imokilly, surrounded by hills, well-

wooded, and about a mile from Castle Mary. Thus near a

heathen altar a Christian church was erected in the 7th century

by the pious St. Colman, a disciple of St. Finn Barr. Those

portions of the 13th century Cathedral which the pitiless hands

of the 18th century ''restorers" spared have lost much of their

interest owing to the painful additions of the white-washers. In

the north or ''Fitzgerald " Transept, so called from the tomb of

Sir F. Fitzgerald (1613), is the fine figure of the learned Bishop

Berkeley.

The famous author of Princ-iples ofHuman Knowledge^ who held the Bee in

the time of George II., was born at Dysert, and attended the same school

in Kilkenny as Swift. He afterwards obtained a fellowship in Trinity College,

Dublin, became chaplain to the Earl of Peterborough on his embassy to

Italy, and was appointed in 1724 to the deanery of Derry. Bermuda was

visited by him some time after, for the purpose of establishing a college for

native teachers, an undertaking in which he lost a considerable part of the

fortune which had been left to him by Esther Johnson, Swift's Stella.

Berkeley was consecrated Bishop of Cloyne in 1734, and died very suddenly

at Oxford in 1758,
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In the south or ^'Poore's" aisle notice the striking epitaph

which foretells the resurrection of *'the reanimated body" of

Dr. Johnson's friend, Mrs. Piozzi (1804). The handsome east

window of ** reticulated " tracery was put up in 1856.

In the churchyard adjoining the cathedral are the ruins of

a little building called "the Fire House." It is believed that

until the beginning of the 19th century this building contained

the remains of the founder. Near the church is a Round Tower,

almost complete, and originally 92 feet high.

" On the niglit of the 10th of January a flash of lightning rent the conical

top, tumbled down the bell and three lofts, forced its way through one side

of the building, and drove the stones, which were admirably well joined and

locked into each other, through the roof of an adjoining stable."

Since then an embattlement has been added, raising the height

to 102 feet. Ballycotton^ to which the cars go on, is a fishing

village and summer resort on the coast.

II. CORK TO BLARNEY.

Blarney can be reached by the Cork and Muskerry Railway (8| miles)

from station near end of St. George's Street ; also by G.S.W. Railway

(6 miles). Cycling (7 miles) shocking. A good view is obtained on the way
of Carrigroimn Castle, standing picturesquely on a steep limestone rock

on the opposite bank. St. Anne's Hill Hydropathic Establishment is

pleasantly situated 2 miles west of the Blarney railway station, and 6

miles west of Cork. Car hire, 8s. return.

Blarney Castle (6d. each), the last of three on this site, was

built in the 15th century by Cormac McCarthy. It consists now
of the massive donjon tower about 120 feet in hight, and another

lower portion less substantial. It was besieged and taken by
the forces of Cromwell.

A stone in the castle of Blarney has long been endowed by
tradition with the power of conferring on those who kiss it a

remarkable faculty—a sweet persuasive eloquence that none may
resist. The real stone, which is said to have at one time borne

the inscription cormac mac cakthy foktis mi fieri fecit, now
illegible, and had engraven on it a shamrock in high relief, la

about 8 feet from the top of the tower at its north-east angle, but

another more accessible has been substituted at a more con-

venient position for the less adventurous candidates. It is
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clasped with iron bars, and was displaced from its position by

a cannon-ball during the siege of the castle by Cromwell. The
general fame of the stone of Blarney dates from the publication

in 1799 of Millikin's song, the '* Groves of Blarney." We quote

a sample of the song :

—

•' The groves of Blarney,

They look so charming,

Down by the purling

Of sweet silent streams,

Being bank'd with posies

That spontaneous grow there,

Planted in order

By the sweet rock close.

" 'Tis there's the daisy

And the sweet carnation,

The blooming pink,

And the rose so fair,

The daffodowndilly,

Likewise the lily.

All flowers that scent

The sweet fragrant air."

The version published in the Reliques ofFather Prout contains

the allusions to the '* Stone."

"There is a stone there,

That whoever kisses,

Oh ! he never misses

To grow eloquent.

•Tis he may clamber

To a lady's chamber,

Or become a member
Of Parliament.

' - A clever spouter

He'll sure turn out, or

An out and outer,

To be let alone !

Don't hope to hinder him,

Or to bewilder him,

Sure he's a pilgrim

From the Blarney Stone,

The pleasure-grounds surrounding the castle, which were

formerly adorned with statues, grottoes, alcoves, bridges, and
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every description of rustic ornament, are still beautiful, although

since the time of Father Prout, when

"The muses shed a tear,

When the cruel auctioneer,

With his hammer in his hand, to sweet Blarney came,"

their beauty has been gradually diminishing ; the fine old trees

have been felled, and the statues of

"The heathen gods, And Nicodemus,

And nymphs so fair, All standing naked.

Bold Neptune, Plutarch, In the open air," i

have vanished. The Rockclose, adjoining the castle, a few acres

in extent, is adorned with evergreens, and was at one time

embellished with statues erected by the Duke of Ormonde. In

it there is a Druidical altar. The

" gravel walks there

For speculation

And conversation
"

are, however, in good order. The new Castle of Blarney, a

mansion built by Sir George Colthurst, who now owns the estate,

is surrounded with much fine timber. In 1825 Sir Walter Scott,

Mr. Lockhart, and Miss Edgeworth visited the castle.

There is a village of Blarney, with a small hotel, and a woollen

mill which produces the well-known ''Blarney Tweeds." The
mill is worthy of a visit from the tourist.

Blaxney Lake is a sweet piece of water, about a quarter of

a mile from the castle. A tradition remains that at certain

seasons a herd of white cows rises from the bosom of the lake

to graze among the rich pasture which clothes its banks.

Another story is, that the Earl of Clancarty, who forfeited the

castle at the Revolution, cast all his plate into a certain part

;

that ^^ three of the McCarthys inherit the secret of the place

where they are deposited, any one of whom dying communicates

it to another of the family, and thus perpetuates the secret,

which is never to be revealed until a McCarthy be again Lord

of Blarney." It is said that in the lake there is a particular kind

of red trout, which will not rise to the fly.

1 Millikin's " Groves of Blarney."
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On the river Coman, within the pleasure-grounds, is a very-

fine cromlech, and a number of pillar-stones inscribed with ancient
Ogham characters.

III. CORK TO YOUGHAL.

By G. S. «fe W. Railway, 26| miles. Excursions from Cork in the season, at
noon or soon after, about three days a week.

This trip is usually taken in connection with the steamer

journey on the Blackwater, as there is nothing much to bring a

visitor to Youghal on its own account. If it is desired to return

to Cork the same day, it may be necessary to adopt a circular

route by Mallow Junction, and the direction taken will depend

on the time of sailing from Cappoquin and Youghal. Generally

it will be found convenient to proceed first to Youghal. It should

be remembered that the steamer does not begin to run until about

the end of June.

Leaving Cork by Glanmire Station we pass between the

pleasant gardens and woods on the high rocks, and the wide

breezy mouth of the Lee, on the right, banked with large river

residences on the far side, Midleton (12^ m.) originated in a

Cistercian abbey founded in the 12th century. It received its

first charter from Charles II. At Midleton College, founded in

1 696, several persons of eminence have received their education,

including Curran and Egan. There is a large whisky distillery

at Midleton, and near it a ford is pointed out which Sir Walter

Raleigh held single-handed against Fitzgerald, seneschal of

Imokilly, and a numerous band of ''wild Irish rebels," till his

own men came up. The town gives the title to the Brodrick

family. Near Mogeely (l7i m.) is Castlemartyr, the demesne of

which belongs to the Earls of Shannon, and contains the ruins

of an old fortress and some interesting ecclesiastical remains.

Youghal (pop. 5393 ; Hotels : Green Park, Devonshire Arms,

in the town, and Atlantic) is 26| miles east of Cork on the bay of

the same name, at the mouth of the river Blackwater. Com-
mercially, it has decayed somewhat, but an increasing number of

visitors find here a clean and breezy " seaside," with an interest-

ing and ancient port at its back, and with a pleasant sea-front of

some two miles in extent.
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The most interesting building is the old Church. The early

arches of the nave may perhaps survive from the 13th century

building which was built by Richard Bennet on the site of an

older one. Benuet's church was improved afterwards, and made
** collegiate " in 1464 ; but in 1579 the Earl of Desmond wrecked

it, leaving the chancel roofless, and to remain so for hundreds of

years. On the north wall of the nave is the *
' cradle " of the muni-

cipal sword which is now to be seen in Lismore Castle ; and the

ancient font and oak pulpit should be observed. In the south

transept are the 17th century figures of Richard Bennet (who

built the church) and wife, rudely cut ; and, near it, a terrible

pile erected, like that still more hideous monstrosity in St.

Patrick's, Dublin, to commemorate R. Boyle, Earl of Cork, 1620

(observe the angels* hands). The chui'ch has a fine old tower.

Close by is Sir Walter Raleigh's house, Myrtle Grove, where

he entertained Spenser, the poet, and in the adjoining garden

—

perhaps under the existing yews—potatoes and tobacco first

"came to light" in Ireland. Raleigh was Mayor in 1588.

Of the southern or Franciscan Abbey of Youghal nothing is

left, but a gable and walls in the cemetery mark the position of

the Dominican Abbey of 1268. Youghal stream afi'ords good

bathing.

Youghal, a very ancient town, which received its first charter

from King John in 1209, derives its name from the Irish Eochaille^

meaning *'yew wood," from the yew-trees which originally

clothed the hills. After the Anglo Norman invasion it was

colonised by merchants from Bristol. The town was plundered

by the Earl of Desmond after he was proclaimed a traitor in 1579.

Sir Walter Raleigh, after repressing the rebellion, was rewarded

with a grant of land, including the domain now called Myrtle

Grove, where his house, a plain Elizabethan structure, still stands

near the church. The town opened its gates to Cromwell in

August 1649 ; here he made his headquarters for a time, and here

he embarked for England 29th May 1650. In 1690 Youghal
surrendered to a small force from the army of William of Orange.

Some ruins of the Water Gate, through which he entered, are

still to be seen.

Ardmore (Harrco's Hotel), a watering-place on the Waterford

side of the river, about 9 miles east of Youghal, possesses

important ecclesiastical remains, including a round tower, a
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cathedral, an oratory, and a holy well. The monastery and

oratory were founded by St. Declan, who died about the 5th

century and was buried at the " grave.'* Ardmore remained an

Episcopal see till the 12th century. Of the cathedral the chief

features are the 12th century nave, and early chancel entered by

a beautiful and *'very early" arch. Note the stones marked

with Ogham inscriptions, and the arcading on the outer walls of

the building.

St. Declan's stone, a huge boulder with an arched hollow

underneath, is also supposed to possess a miraculous power

of healing. Pilgrims (on July 24) creep beneath it in the belief

that they will receive blessings. The Round Tower^ 97 feet in

height, possesses some curious sculptures.

IV. THE BLACKWATER.

The times of sailing of the Blackwater steamer between Youghal and Cap-

poquin depend on the tide ; on several days in the month there is no sail-

ing. All particulars can be obtained from the Manager, Blackwater

Tourist Steamship Office, Youghal.

For the route from Cork to Youghal, see page 120. The road

distance from Youghal to Cappoquin is 18 miles.

The mouth of this river, one of the largest in Ireland, forms

the harbour of Youghal, which, though a fine and well sheltered

bay, is rendered inaccessible to very large vessels by a bar. The

trip up the river is made in a light steamer specially built for the

navigation. Starting from Youghal quay, we pass under the new

iron bridge 1768 feet in length, connecting the counties of Cork

and Waterford. On leaving the bridge we see on the left the

cliffs crowned by a ruined preceptory of the Knights Templar,

Ehincrew Castle^ founded by Raymond le Gros in 1183.

Immediately the hills rise at either side to a considerable

height, on one hand thickly clothed with firs, on the other,

green and dotted with cottages and tilled patches. Higher up

on the left, in one of the prettiest parts of the river, is the square

keep of Temple Michael, a ruined fortress of the Fitzgeralds.

On the islet of Molana, separated from Temple Michael by an

inlet, are extensive ruins of the Abbey of Molanfides, founded

by St. Fachnan in 501. A statue of the founder is placed upon

a pedestal in the cloister, but it is of comparatively moderr
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erection. The body of Raymond le Gros, a comrade of Strong-

bow, is said to have been buried in the abbey.

Passing by the angle of the stream in which the fine mansion

of Ballinatray is situated, we get fine views along the bending

river. The river, flowing between a noble lawn on one bank and

rich woods on the other, widens out into a lake, called the

Broad of Clashmore, from the village of that name, while the

view forward reaches over miles of a cultivated slope terminat-

ing in a lofty heather-covered peak. From this spot it winds

through a succession of beauties.

The ruins of old Strancally Castle are seen on the left ; ivy-

covered and washed by the stream, they seem almost part of the

rough moss-grown rock on which they stand, directly over the

river. The water here is said to be of immense depth, and ac-

cessible by a subterraneous passage from the castle, known as

the Murdering Hole, because here, it was said, some cruel

Desmond, of days long gone by, used to dispose of the bodies of

his victims.

New Strancally Castle stands a short distance from its pre-

decessor. It is a battlemented Gothic structure embosomed in

lovely woods. Just beyond, a smaller river, called the Bride,

falls into the Blackwater. A little above it is Camjphire, and
nearly opposite, on the right bank, Villierstown. About this

point we have the prettiest scenery on the excursion, and a bend
in the main stream reveals the Knockmealdown mountains.

Dromana Castle, the seat of H. Villiers Stuart, a couple of

miles farther on, is not in itself striking, but is charmingly
situated. It overlooks the river from an eminence of about 60 or

70 feet, and seems barely to peep through the magnificent woods
which fold it round, and clothe the whole river-side with beauty.
Just beneath, a sweet little tributary, called the Finisk, loses itself

in the Blackwater. From the grounds of the castle, which are
freely thrown open to visitors, an artistically conceived opening
in the trees carries the view up towards the mountains, or down
over the broad surface of the river. A small islet in front,

covered with willows and drooping ashes, forms a pretty fore-

ground to the picture of Dromana. Adjoining the site of the
modern building once stood the old castle of the Fitzgeralds.
It was the birthplace of Catherine, Countess of Desmond, who is

said to have reached the age of 140, and to have met her death
by falling from a cherry tree in Affane, near Dromana, where the
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cherry brought by Sir Walter Raleigh from the Canary Islands

was first domesticated. It was said she had been climbing in

search of her favourite fruit.

Higher up on the left bank are the ancient castle of Tourin and

the modern structure of the same name ; the latter the seat of Sir

Richard Musgrave, by whose father, the late proprietor, the

capabilities of the Blackwater as a navigable river were first

tested.

We soon approach Cappoquin (Hotel: Walsh's Commercial

and Family), which from a distance is decked in somewhat

fictitious charms. It lies in a beautiful situation, but on closer

acquaintance is likely to disappoint. It makes a convenient

starting-place for the Blackwater scenery, or Mount Melleray, to

which the car fare is 2s. return. The pleasant village of Lismore

is four miles west.

The Monastery of Mt. Melleray lies on the south slope of the

Knockmealdown mountains, about 4 miles from Cappoquin, and

on the east side of the direct road to Caher and Cashel {no cycling).

The views of the Knockmealdowns obtained from the road are

very good ; and, although ladies are not admitted farther than

the outer Guest House, all should include this short trip in their

programme, if only for the pleasure of the journey.

The interior of the monastery is open to all gentlemen visitors,

casual or otherwise. Those who wish to make a protracted visit

are boarded and lodged in the Guest House within the enclosure.

Lady visitors are boarded in a house immediately outside the

monastic buildings, but they are lodged in a house about a quarter

of a mile from the monastery. Visitors may remain for a fort-

night.

The rules of the order (Trappists) are severely strict, being

exceeded only by the Carthusians in severity. The monks live

exclusively upon vegetable diet, use no stimulating drink ;
in-

dulge in but six to seven hours' sleep ; labour incessantly, and

maintain perpetual silence. The last rule is relaxed in favour of

a few members for essential purposes, such as teaching in the

schools, transaction of necessary business, and reception of visitors,

who are very numerous. The chief (and for some the only) meal

is about mid-day. In the Dining Hall is a portrait of the remark-

able Father Paul, whose history is iuteresting.

The ground upon which the monastery stands was a wild tract

of unreclaimed mountain rented to the community by the late
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Sir Ricliard Keane of Cappoquiii. The community is now com-

posed of natives of Ireland.

Lismore (pop. 1583 ; Hotels: Devonshire Arms; Blackwater

Vale). The Devonshire Arms is put first as it is the largest, but

the visitor is advised to go to the Blackwater Vale, where, in

spite of a poor exterior, he will find a real old hostelry, a bright

garden, and reasonable charges.

The town derives its name from the prehistoric Celtic lis or fort on the

east, and its history goes back to 588, Avhen a bishop already watched over

its welfare. In the 7th century St. Carthagh (' Mocodi ') founded here "one
of the great public schools for which Ireland was at one time famous, and a

monastery which was (afterwards) considered a suitable place of retreat for

religious meditation for kings and princes." The town is said to have pos-

sessed as many as twenty churches at that time, and to have attracted even

king Alfred to its college. For many years it suffered hard under the deadly

hand of the cruel Dane ; but once more it rose to life again in the 12th

century, and soon after could boast of a castle. At the time of the Armada
the town was rebuilt, and ironworks were started by Richard Boyle.

In the 12th century its Castle {open on week-days) was

built on the site of St. Carthagh's College, and here for centuries

was the Bishop's Palace ; it is now one of the six residences of

the Duke of Devonshire, and is one of the most beautifully

situated mansions in Ireland ; indeed, no tourist has seen the

south of Ireland properly who has omitted the views from the

Flag Tower and the Bridge.

The entrance gateway is one of the older parts, and on the

left is Carlisle Tower^ corresponding to King John's Toiver ontYiQ

other side. At the far corner (right) of the courtyard is the Flag

TowtTi a splendid view-point over the Blackwater, and within the

"upper" courtyard (left) is the oldest tower, called "Raleigh's"

(but much earlier than his day). Modern additions were made by

Sir J. Paxton. The oldest wing is that on the north, or moat

side.

Within the entrance hall are the Corporation sword and mace

of Youghal, and the famous Lismore Crosier. This is dated 1101

by Miss Stokes, who says :
— '' Like the Cross of Cong, this relic

is one of the finest examples of the goldsmith's art that has been

found in Ireland." It " consists of a case of pale-coloured bronze

which enshrines an old oak stick, probably the original staff of

the founder of Lismore, St. Carthach," and ''was the crosier of

Bishop Niall," referred to on the inscription

—

Prayfor Niall^ son
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of MacAeducain. This relic was found in a hole within an old

wall, together with the Book of Lismore,

The banqueting-hall is the finest room ; a few pictures hang
in the dining-room ; and from the celebrated window in the

drawing-room can be seen that splendid view of the wooded

Blackwater at which even James the Second started back in

amazement.

The greater part of St. Mochuda's (St. Carthagh's or

Mocodi*s) Cathedral is now modern. The church is easily

recognised by its white spire. It contains some very ancient

sepulchral slabs, notably that of Colgan (850).

The philosopher Robert Boyle and the poet Congreve were

both born at Lismore; and the castle passed to Sir Walter Raleigh

in 1589 {see Mr. Westropps E.S.A.I. paper, 1897).

Lismore is delightfully situated, the woodland walks are

endless, and the roads for cycling star out in all directions. The

salmon-fishing in the Blackwater and its tributaries is let out by

the day, week, or season ; information may be obtained from the

fishery office, Lismore.

The beauties of the Blackwater by no means terminate at

Lismore, and if the tourist have leisure he will be rewarded by

a trip to Fermoy ; the road and the railway follow the river all

the way. From Fermoy he may visit Mitchelstown Caves, about

16 miles distant (page 1^8). He may go by rail to Mallow, and

thence either return to Cork or proceed to Killarney.

Fermoy (pop. 6126 ; Hotels : Royal, Bridge) is an important

military station, with barracks for both infantry and cavalry,

capable of containing 3000 men. The town, which consists of

some good streets, owes much of its prosperity to the enterprise

of a Scotchman, the late Mr. Anderson of Cork, the mail-coach

and barracks contractor. The architectural features of the place

are chiefly the towers and spires of the churches and convents,

some of them very effective. As you approach from the Bridge,

the chief religious and the largest buildings are seen high up

among the trees dominating the town which lies below. They

are—^jfrom left to right—the Presentation convent, Loretto

convent, the College (with tower) and Roman Catholic Church.

There is free trout-fishing on the Blackwater, Araglin,

Funcheon and Bride ; salmon-fishing is preserved.

Mitchelstown, llj miles by rail (page 128), Mallow, 16| miles.
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Tipperary (pop. 6281 ; Hotel: Dobbyn's), the town from

whence the county derives its name, is agreeably situated nearly

3 miles from the Limerick Junction Station, in an undulating

country at the base of Slieve-na-muck hills, a portion of the

Galtee range ; the name is from the Irish * * Tiohraid-Arann^ the

well of Ara^ the ancient territory in which it was situated.

The well . . . was situated in the main street, but it is now
closed up " {Joyce), Tipperary possesses a modern Roman
Catholic Church in the pointed style. New Tipperary, built

during the land war, lies on the fringe of the old town ; and its

sixty houses, many of them fine and solid structures, have proved

very welcome to the increasing population of the district. They
are in the hands of trustees and are kept in good repair. New
Tipperary is now practically part of the old town and shares its

risiug prosperity. Employment is given to a large number of

hands in the creamery and in the soda-water factory. The water

supply of the town has been brought from one of the lakes of the

Galtees, a distance of 7 miles. There are many residences of the

nobility and gentry in the neighbourhood.

Cashel is 12J miles north-east ; Caher, 13J miles south-east

;

the Aherlow river, 6J miles south-west.

Athassel, celebrated for its priory, is situated about a mile

from Golden Bridge, about 8 miles from Dundrum Station, GJ

from Cashel, and 9 from Tipperary. The priory was founded

about the year 1200, by William Fitz-Adelem de Burgo, for

canons regular of the Augustinian order. The choir is 44 feet

by 26, and the nave, supported by lateral aisles, was externally

117 feet in length. The finest remmant of the priory is its door-

way in the transition style of architecture. The founder, who
had been steward for Henry II., died in 1204, and was buried at

Athassel.

Caher (pop. 2058 ; Hotel : Glengall Arms), delightfully

situated on the banks of the fine river Suir, was a '* Quaker town,"

and though now no longer deserving the name, has an appearance

of cleanness and comfort. The name Caher means fort, and un-

doubtedly at a very early period a stronghold occupied the site

of the Castle {open one day a week). This castle occupies
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a commandiug position on the banks of the Suir, and is one of

the finest examples of the old fortresses in Ireland. In 1599 it

was taken by the Earl of Essex, and in 1650 by Cromwell.

There is a handsome mansion-house, and the charming park

attached to it occupies both banks of the river for about 2 miles

below the town. Caher is a convenient station for Mitchelstown

Caves (10 miles).

Mitchelstown {Hotel : Fitzgerald's) is high up among the hills.

It can be conveniently reached from Fermoy by the small branch

line of 12 miles. The town is neat, bare, and bracing in climate.

Its chief reputation rests, perhaps, on the unfortunate contreUTnps which

occurred here between the people and the police during the last Nationalist

disturbances. Crosses in the pavement mark the places where three men
fell under the barracks' fire.

There are two good views, not to be missed—from the station, and from

the front gate of the Protestant Church. The things to see are the < * College,

"

the castle, and the caves. The first, at the far end, is the best bit of the to^vn,

and through it you pass to—
The Castle (grounds open daily, on application at the estate oflBce at the

gate). Bear right from the Gardens, within. This, the property of the

Countess of Kingstown, is one of the most imposing mansions of this

country. Beyond its towers and battlements you get an excellent view of

the graceful Galtee Mountains.

The Caves are about 10| miles north-east (good cars in Mitchelstown),

nearly midway between Mitchelstown and Caher. They are well worth a

visit ; but if you explore them, do not go in best clothes, and start early, as

the best parts cannot all be visited under 3 or 4 hours.

These caves, in the limestone valley between the Galtee and Knockmealdown
mountains, were opened—probably for the first time in their existence—in

1835 by accident. It will be noticed that though apparently possessing only

the one outlet the air is always fresh.

[Tea provided at the cottage. Guide's fee according to extent of time and
party.]

By a long descending and somewhat slimy passage we enter the Hmise of

Commons, where is the " organ "
; then a halt in what is generally the place of

much conversation,—the Lobby. In the next chamber, the House of Lords,

nature has by no means appropriately placed the ** Golden Fleece," a "Rasher
of Bacon," the largest stalactite called the "Tower of Babel," the "Diamond
Rock" and "Turkish Tent"; as well as "Her Majesty's Shawl," and the
" Woolsack. " In the Cathedral is hanging the " Lord Chancellor's "Wig "

; and
the floor of this portion is the lowest of all, and perhaps 350 feet below the

road. The Four Courts is furnished with a " Queen's Bench "
; it is adorned

by "Queen Elizabeth's Ruffle," and not entirely overwhelmed by the

"Avalanche."

If time allows, there are many more wonders to be explored beyond,

notably the Kingston Gallery,
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** In some of the chambers the massive pyramids of stalagmites are orna«

mented with successive tiers of crystallisation of the most fantastic forms,

and when a light is suddenly thrown on them, the beholder could easily

imagine himself in the palace of the Genii of the Mountain."

On no account omit to climb up the little hill which covers the cave and

obtain the splendid panorama of encircling hills. You ascend with the Galtees

behind ; at the top the Knockmealdowns and Coomeragh Hills are a little to

the left, and almost facing ; and farther to the left, away eastward, the solitary

Slievenaman divides the valleys of the Anner (left) and the Suir (right).

Eleven miles south-east of Caher the railway passes through

Clonmel (pop. 10,167 ; Hotels : Hearn's ; Ormonde), whose

gaol has, since 1889, been famous as the temporary residence in

that year of Mr. W. O'Brien, M.P.

Readers need not be reminded of the honourable member's spirited repudia-

tion of an unmentionable but necessary portion of the prison garb, for lack of

which he found himself unpleasantly "left in the cold.
"

The names of Gladstone and Parnell streets smack of political

feeling, and the numerous mills and warehouses, no less than

the encircling array of fine residences in the neighbourhood, are

tangible proofs of prosperity.

Clonmel was the birthplace of the great humourist Sterne in

1713. It stands on both sides of the river Suir, and also occupies

Moire and Long Islands, which are connected by three bridges,

each of three arches.

In 1650 took place the memorable siege of Clonmel by
Cromwell, who, after having suffered a loss of 2000 men, succeeded

in compelling the garrison to capitulate, when he demolished

the castles and fortifications, of which now only the ruins remain.

The church of St. Mary, a beautiful Gothic structure, escaped

without damage. It has lately undergone extensive restoration,

though not in good taste. The steeple is octagonal, embattled,

and 84 feet in height. The Gothic tracery of the east window
has been much admired, being thought by some superior to that

of the windows of Holy Cross. The base of the steeple is square,

and seems to be of a much older date than any other portion of

the building. At the opposite side of the church is another

tower.

The churchyard is in a great measure encompassed by the old

city wall. At intervals on it are observable the remains of

square towers,

9



130 LIMERICK JUNCTION TO WATERFORD

Clonmel possesses extensive flour-mills, a brewery, tanneries,

and an important butter market. It was here that in 1817 Mr.

Bianconi first established his system of cheap and expeditious

car-travelling, which soon extended over the south and west of

Ireland—carrying, as one writer expresses it, * * civilisation and

letters into some of the wildest haunts of the rudest races in

Erin's Isle !

"

Many fine walks are to be had in the neighbourhood of the

town, which is situated in the midst of much beautiful and

highly picturesque scenery. The favourite promenade is Fairy

Hill Road. Heywood affords a pleasant stroll, as also the

Wilderness and the Quay.

Slievenaman (2364 feet), is 9 miles to the N.E. of Clonmel.

Carrick-on-Suir (pop. 6406 ; Hotel : Bessborough Arms) is the

next station after Clonmel. This town is situated in County

Tipperary, but is joined to Carrickbeg by a bridge over the Suir,

the small portion of County Waterford across the river being

specially included in Tipperary for purposes of county administra-

tion ; it is also within a few minutes' walk of the County Kilkenny.

The castle and park adjoining belong to the Butler family. It

was formerly a walled town, and some of the wall still remains.

The woollen manufacture is now extinct, but there are linen and

flax mills. The town gives title of Earl to a branch of the Butler

family, as it did formerly to the Duke of Ormonde.

County Waterford is situated south of the counties of

Tipperary and Kilkenny, bounded on the west by Cork, and on

the south by St. George's Channel. The county is generally

mountainous, crossed as it is by Knockmealdown, Comeragh,

Monavullah, and other hill-ranges, but toward the east its surface

is low and marshy. The area amounts to 461,552 acres, of which

three-fourths are arable, and about 20,000 acres are laid out in

plantations.
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WATERFORD.

RoTELs.^AdelpM and Imperial, on the Mall ; Granville^ on Quay.

Railway Stations.—T/ie Great Southern and Western Railway and Dublin

and South-Eastern (Joint Station), at N. end of Bridge ; and Waterford

and Tramore, about 1 mile from Reginald's Tower.

Mail-Cars to Fethard, Lukeswell, Tramore, and Passage.

Steamers.—For sailings to England, Scotland, Wales, etc., see pink pages.

Constant steamers to Cheekpoint, etc.

Golf at Tramore (page 132).

Pop. 26,769

This ancient city is of great historic interest, and is pleasantly

situated on the Suir, here spanned by the wooden bridge of 39

arches ; but though it possesses remains of ancient buildings

interesting to the archaeologist, it can boast of only one bit of

the picturesque, Reginald's Tower, standing at the corner of

the two main streets, the Quay and the Mall.

From the Bridge turn left along the quay toward The Mall,

After passing the Post Office take next turn farther on, Henrietta

Street, for the Cathedral, remarkable as standing on the site of

the Danish Church of Reginald II., which was an exact copy of

the Danish Crypt of Christ Church, Dublin, a fact stated by

Kingsley in Hereward the Wake, and proved correct by the

accidental discovery in 1894 that a plan of one church coincided

exactly, pier for pier, with the other. The original cathedral

was built in the 11th century, rebuilt 1779, burnt, restored

1818, and the interior redecorated and modernised in 1891. It

contains a monument to James Rice (1456) whereon he is depicted,

according to his wish, as he would look twelve months after

death ! Passing the Cathedral and going back to the Quay by a

small street farther on we see a ruin known as the "French
Church." This is the remains of the Holy Ghost Friary founded

by Hugh Purcell in 1240.

In Reginald's Tower there probably remain parts of the old fort of Reginald

the Ostman, who about the 10th or 11th century landed here and established
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one of the most important Danisli settlements in the country. "Every
important seaport in Ireland owes its existence to those sturdy Vikings' sons.

"

So says Kingsley, who in his Hereward the Wake gives an interesting sketch

of the Danish King's ''house of pine logs " on Waterford Quay, and the con-

temporary manners of the settlers. The latter monarch was the second

Reginald, the son of Sigtryg, who encouraged trade with France and Spain,

and whose "workmen coined money in the old round tower." A century

later Waterford proved itself powerless before the Normans and yielded to

Strongbow. Soon after Henry II. landed here, and at the end of the 12th

century it was fortified and again honoured with a Mint. For successfully

resisting Perkin Warbeck the city received from Henry VII. the motto
*
' Intacta Manet," and from Henry VIII. a Sword of State. Against Cromwell

it was for some time equally successful, but surrendered to Ireton.

Interesting excursions may be made to Gheekpoint Hill

(7 miles), Dunmore (11 J miles), and Dimbrody Abbey, which

dates from the 12th century.

To the south lies Tramore (pop. 1733 ; Hotels : Grand

Marine), accessible by railway from Waterford, 6 miles, standing

on a bay between Great Newtown Head and Brownstown Head
;

and the beach, which is of considerable extent, is favourable for

bathing. There are also two concert halls, a race-course, golf-

links, and salt-water and Turkish baths.

The pleasantest excursion {good cycling) is to Geeat New-
town Head (4| miles) and the Metal Man. Newtown Cove is

about 1J mile ; here turn left under spreading trees, and at once

right. Then along the cliff edge, passing the bathing- places,

you have a delightful "blow." Ahead, on the midmost of three

unpicturesque columns, is seen the unmistakable Jack Tar point-

ing seaward. The views here are very good ; notice the jagged

dark rock of the coast beneath.

Rabbit Burrows lies to the east of the town, and repays the

walk.

Dunmore {Hotel), 11 miles by car from Waterford, is a

picturesque little seaside village on the west side of Waterford

Harbour. It is frequented by bathers and by yachtsmen, has a

good stone pier, and is well sheltered from the weather. To the

south of the pier is a high promontory called the Black Knob

(more commonly '* the Shin-noon ") under which is Merlin's Cave,

of such a depth that a lantern is required to explore its recesses.

WATERFORD TO ROSSLARE.

This forms part of the direct route between England and

Killarney by the G.W.R. crossing between Fishguard and Ross-
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lare, for particulars of wliicli see pink pages. The trains come

through to Waterford from Mallow, passing Fermoy, Lismore,

Duugarvan, etc., before reaching Waterford. At Dungarvan
(hotels) there is a fine harbour well seen as the train crosses it.

Shortly after the line turns inland and eventually reaches the

banks of the Suir at Kilmeaden. A fine view of this great tidal

river is obtained as the railway runs along beside it.

Waterford itself has been described on p. 131. On its way
eastward the train crosses Waterford harbour at a narrow neck

and thereafter strikes the head of Bannow Bay. Clonmincs near

here was once an important town, and contains the remains of

many monasteries. It was probably one of the first settlements

of the Normans.

Fethard (6 miles from Clonmines ; Inn), an insignificant fishing village,

stands on the west shore of Bannow Bay. "Five miles north-east of it are the

remains of Tintern Abbey, founded in 1200 by the Earl of Pembroke, son-in-

law of Strongbow. The legend states that, being in great danger at sea, he
made a vow to found an abbey on the spot where he should land in safety.

His boat found shelter in Bannow Bay, and here he accordingly established

a monastery, which he peopled with monks from Tintern Abbey in Mon-
mouthshire. It is beautifully situated in the demesne of Tintern, which
was granted by Queen Elizabeth to Sir Anthony Colclough, to whose family

it still belongs.

Along the whole of this route one is struck by the splendid

natural harbours of the coast. After Bridgetown we soon arrive

at Rosslare Harbour.

On the steamer route there are four fine turbines, the SL
Patrick, St. David, St. George, and aS'^. Andrew, belonging to the

Great Western Railway of England ; these most comfortable

boats are fitted with every modern appliance, aixd the passage to

Fishguai-d is only 2| hours.

WATERFORD FROM DUBLIN.

The route as far as Kildare is described under Dublin to Cork
(page 92 sqq.). After changing at Kildare the first town of im-

portance is Athy (pronounced with accent on last syllable, as

''a thigh").

Athy (pop. 3599 : Hotel : Leinster Arms) derives its name
from an ancient ford where a Munster chief, Ae, was slain in

battle. The town owes its origin to two monasteries founded in

the 13th century. In the centre of the town, overlooking the

river, is *' White's Castle," built in the 16th century by the Earl

of Kildare, and now used as a barracks. There is also Woodstock
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Castle, above the town and on the river. Near the town is the

ancient '^Moat of decapitation," where 400 of the rulers of the

Pale were massacred by the Irish in the reign of Elizabeth. At
the Rath of Mullinavat, 'Connell held the last of his great
" Agitation " meetings. At the Moat of Ardscul, 4 miles from

the town, the Scots, under Edward Bruce, inflicted a heavy

defeat on the English under Raymond le Gros in 1315.

Carlow (pop. 6513 ; Hotels : The Royal Arms, Club-house,

Imperial), the county town, is favourably situated on the river

Barrow, which is navigable by barges down to Waterford. The
exchequer of the kingdom was established here in 1361 by the

Duke of Clarence, who, moreover, had the town fortified. In the

wars of the Protectorate the Castle was bombarded by the parlia-

mentary forces under Ireton : and was finally surrendered.

Of the 12th century castle nothing now remains save two corner

towers about 60 feet in height, and the connecting wall, the rest

having been blown up with gunpowder by a medical gentleman,

who, in 1814, contemplated converting it into a lunatic asylum.

Carlow contains a Roman Catholic cathedral noted for its

excessive decoration. It contains the celebrated monument to

Bishop Doyle by Hogan.

KILKENNY.
Hotels.—C^t*& Fowse; Imperial; Victoria.

Post-Office.—High Street. Pop. 10,609.

This ancient city, **Faire Kilkenny," as Spenser named it, is

well worth a visit, being unusually rich in historical associations

and archaeological remains. It is situated on the Nore, here

crossed by two bridges, and the Bregen divides Kilkenny into

two parts. Each had formerly its own corporation ; but by the

Municipal Reform Act they were united. It abounds in quaint

unexpected corners, and many is the interesting vista down its

back streets.

Many parliaments were held at Kilkenny in the olden time.

That of 1367 ordained the punishment of death to any English-

man who married an Irishwoman. A rebel or Roman Catholic

Parliament met here in 1642, from which circumstaiice Kilkenny

is called the *'City of the Confederation." The Parliament,

emboldened by assistance brought by the Pope's legate, refused

to make terms with the Lord Lieutenant, and in consequence the

city was besieged and taken by Cromwell in 1650.
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Kilkenny Castle {open Tues.f Thurs., Sat., 11 a.m. to 4 p.m.,

6d. each) was built in 1195, on the site of an older one erected by

Strongbow in 1172, and destroyed in the following year. Picture

Gallery only shown.

"The situation," writes Dr. Ledwich, "in a military view, was most

eligible ; the ground was originally a conoid, the elliptical side abrupt and

precipitous, with the river running rapidly at its base ; there the natural

rampart was faced with a wall of solid masonry 40 feet high; the other

parts were defended by bastions, courtins, towers, and outworks, and on the

summit the castle was erected."

The castle is the residence of the Marquis of Ormonde. The

founder of this family, Theobald Walter, was one of the retinue

of King Henry II., and received the appointment of chief-butler

of Ireland, from which office the family name of Boteler, Le

Botiller, or Butler, is derived. In 1319 James Butler, third Earl

of Ormonde, purchased the castle from the Pembroke family, and

with his descendants it has remained until the present day.

In March 1650, Cromwell, having invested the city, opened

his cannon upon the castle, and a breach was effected ; but the

besiegers were twice gallantly repulsed, and the breach quickly

repaired. Urged, however, by the mayor and townsmen, Sir

William Butler agreed to surrender the city, paying a ransom of

£2000 at short dates, and the soldiers marched out with all the

honours of war to two miles' distance from the town, where their

arms were laid down. On State occasions the magnificent service

of gold plate valued at one and a quarter millions, which was

presented to the first Duke by Charles I., is brought out. This,

and the tapestry for which the castle is famous, are not shown to

visitors. The Picture Gallery contains an excellent collection of

paintings by Vandyke, Lely, Holbein, and many of the great

masters.

St. Canice's Cathedral is the most interesting among the

many ecclesiastical remains in Kilkenny.^

In the 12th century there was a considerable church here, and

its erection probably followed the removal to Kilkenny of the

seat of the See of Ossory, for the Bishop of Ossory had previously

lived at Aghadoe, where St. Canice had founded his monastery

1 Unlike the Roman Catholic cathedral, it is generally locked, and the
key must be sought at a cottage outside the south-east corner of the grave-
yard. The guide, however, is capable and well worth having, innumerable
points must certainly be missed without her assistance.
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in the 6tli century. In the 13th century the church was

enlarged into a fine cathedral, but the latter soon attracted the

spoiler's hand ; and, after many vicissitudes, notably its partial

destruction by Cromwell, it was carefully restored in 1866 (Dean

Yignoles) by Sir Thomas Deane.

The Tower is interesting, and has good vaulting beneath it.

In the comer (left) of the north transept, otherwise known as the

Parish Church, is St, Chiarain's chair ; the Chapter House near

the south transept was originally the Lady Chapel.

The Monuments are particularly interesting and numerous, and

cannot be understood without the local guide, who will point out

items, from the fashion of a lady's hair 800 years ago, to the

representation of the cock which crowed at Peter's denial. The
famous Fitzgerald monument to the eighth Earl and his Amazonian

Countess is in the south transept. All the monuments are in the

home quarried fine black Kilkenny marble. Three ancient features,

viz. the reliquary before the west window, only one of its kind in

Ireland ; the beautiful groining beneath the tower ; and the 13th

century moulding round the chancel windows, must not be

missed. The ancient bishop's chair is in the north transept.

The modern carving on the stalls is good, as is also the beautiful

pavement of various Irish marbles within the communion rails.

Outside the south transept is a Round Tower, of late date, with

door and window facings of a finer stone than the walls.

Among other ancient buildings the chief are the Black Friars,

the Franciscan Priory, St. John^s Churchy with its chapel of

beautiful windows called "the Lantern of Ireland," and the

College^ or Grammar School,

Kilkenny School, called the "Eton of Ireland," enjoyed a

high reputation, and counted among its scholars the famous Dean

Swift, who entered at the tender age of six. "Two of Swift's

contemporaries were educated there. Congreve, two years his

junior, was one of his schoolfellows. Fourteen years after Swift

had left the school it was entered by George Berkeley, destined

to win a fame of the purest and highest kind,^ and to come into

a strange relationship to Swift. It would be vain to ask what

credit may be claimed by Kilkenny School for thus * producing

'

the greatest satirist, the most brilliant writer of comedies, and the

subtlest metaphysician in the English language " {Leslie Stephen).

1 See Cloyne, p. 116.
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At Kilkenny several trials for witchcraft have taken place, the

most remarkable being that of Lady Alice Kettel in 1325.

Twelve miles to the north is Castlecomer^ which gives its name

to the coalfield of that district ; and to the carboniferous lime-

stone of this county the city of St. Canice lends the name of

"Kilkenny marble." The limestone caverns, known as "the

Caves of Dunmore^'' are near the Castlecomer road, 7 miles north

of Kilkenny.

Freshford Church is 10 miles north-west of Kilkenny, and of

much antiquarian interest, chiefly on account of its unusually fine

Romanesque doorway. The proportions of its form, and the

beautiful and elaborate mouldings and carvings, give it a high

place among 11th and 12th century work. Miss Stokes, in

commenting on the importation of continental art into Ireland,

notes that the Byzantine Painters* Guide directed that in

pictures of the Crucifixion, near the Virgin stands St. John, "in

sorrow, his cheek resting on his hand "—just as on St. Moedoc's

shrine, and "the sculptured panels of the doorway of the old

church at Freshford."

Over the doorway are two bands, inscribed in Irish characters, as follows

:

•* A prayer for Niam, daughter of Cove, and Mathghamain O Chairmeic, by
whom was made this church," and " A prayer for Gilla Mocholmoe O Cen-

cucain who made it."

Jerpoint Abbey, IJ mile from Thomastown Station on the

Waterford and Kilkenny Railway, and 12 miles south of Kil-

kenny, is a ruined Cistercian house of much interest. "In
wealth, honours, and architectural splendours," writes N. P.

Willis, * * Jerpoint was exceeded by no other monastic institution

in Ireland. The demesne lands extended over 1500 acres of fertile

ground, and the buildings included the abbey church and tower,

a refectory, dormitory, and offices, which occupied an area of 3

acres. The whole of this was granted at the Dissolution to

Thomas, Earl of Ormonde." It was founded about the 11th

or 12th centuries, and the older parts, the transepts and
chancel, are of the Romanesque order, the rest being of varying

later periods. The central tower is massive and of remarkable

character. "The battlements which crown the tower " are stated

by Dr. James Fergusson to be "identical with many found in the

north of Italy, but very unlike anything either in England or

Scotland, and give a foreign look to the whole," The door is a
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curiosity, and the Early English cloisters, as well as the monu-
ments, should be noticed. The place is said to have been sacked

both by ''Silken Thomas" and Cromwell.

The tourist who is desirous of exploring the varied scenery

with which the banks of the river Nora abound from Kilkenny to

its junction with the Barrow, near New Ross, will find Thomas-
town (pop. 909 ; Hotels: Walsh's, Nore View (temp.)) convenient.

Kells, also reached from Thomastown Station, from which

it is 7J miles distant, is an ancient city, founded by a follower

of Earl Strongbow's, called Geoffrey Fitz-Robert, his object being

to provide a garrison for the subjugation of the Tipperary Irish.

Like most of the other invaders, he sought peace to his conscience

by founding a religious house, which gradually became a place of

increasing importance until dissolved in the reign of Henry YIII.

The Prior was a spiritual lord in Parliament. Portions of the

ruins, comprising the remains of towers and halls, and the

cloisters, still attract some attention to the place. The town of

Kells in the county of Meath, where a monastery was founded by

the famous St. Columbkille, is described page 47.

Waterford (page 131).

TO KILLARNEY.

The two main routes from England to Ireland (midland and

south) are md Kingstown (Dublin) and Rosslare. Either route is

met by a service of fast trains to Mallow on the G. S. and W.
Railway of Ireland. Here there is choice of (1) going on direct to

Killarney ; or (2) going by Cork, Bantry, and Glengariffe. As the

journey (2) md Glengariffe embraces scenery unsurpassed in charm

even by Killarney itself, all who are not greatly pressed for time

are strongly advised to adopt the latter route. It should also be

kept in mind that the views are more striking, vid the Glengariffe

route, in journeying toivards than from Killarney. At Cork a

night may be spent, and we must change stations to continue on

the Cork and Bandon line. The coach drive from Glengariffe vid

Kenmare to Killarney goes through scenery resembling the

Alpine passes in grandeur. Single fares, Cork to Killarney, vid

Glengariffe, 1st 21s., 3rd 16s. The route (3) by Macroom is

described on page 148.



139

PRINCE OF WALES ROUTE TO KILLARNEY.

By the Cork and Bandon Railway (Albert Quay Station).

For many of the places reached by this most enterprising railway com-

bined hotel and rail tickets may be obtained. Get the Company's tourist

programme.
Miles Miles.

Interm. Tot. Interm. Tot.

Cork to Bandon (rail) 20 Glengariffe (road) . . Ill 69i
Dunmanway (rail) . . 17 371 Kenmare (road) . 17| 87i
Drimoleague (rail) , . 8i 46 Killarney (road) . 20 107J
Bantry (rail) . . Ill 571

The route obtained its name in 1858 when the Prince of Wales travelled ovei

It. It will be necessary to stay a night at Glengariffe.

Shortly after leaving Cork the railway is carried over a deep

glen by the Chetwynd Viaduct, 120 feet in length and 100 feet

in height. In crossing, a good view is obtained of the city we

have left, and of the beautiful valley to the west. At Waterfall

(6J miles) the distant Kerry mountains are seen bounding the

western horizon. A mile beyond Waterfall Station we pass, on

the right, the ruin of Ballymacadane Abbey, founded about 1450

for Augustine nuns, and near it an old fort attributed to the

Danes. Emerging from a tunnel about 1200 yards in length,

under Mount Mary, we reach Ballinhassig (10 miles). (From the

station may be seen the aerial ropeway—the only one in Ireland

—

which conveys the bricks from the Ballinphelic works, 3J miles

distant, to the station.) The village about a mile to the east was,

in 1600, the scene of a battle between the English and the followers

of Florence McCarthy. At Kinsale Junction (13J miles) a branch

(of 10J miles) passes south to Kinsale.

Kinsale (pop. 4250 ; Hotels: Kinsale Ai-ms, Sea View), a seaport and im-

portant fishing station, is picturesquely situated on the acclivity of Compass
Hill, on a fine natural harbour forming the estuary of the Bandon. The Danes
are said to have attacked first this point of the coast ; the Anglo-Norman
invaders quickly saw its advantages, and in Edward II. 's reign it was already

an important sea town. The castle of the De Courcys stood here in the

twelfth century. In one respect that family is of unique interest, for the

privilege of remaining uncovered in presence of the monarch, a privilege

last exercised at the court of George IV., was granted to a Do Courcy by
King John for that knight's offer to stand as single-combat champion of

England during the King's quarrel with Franco. The most important

event in Kinsale's history, however, was the seizure of the town in 1601 by

the Spaniards under Juan D'Aguila, and the tough two-months* task he pro-

vided for the English before yielding to Mountjoy. For the unusual

manner in which the English soldiers celebrated their victory see p. 7.
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" Kinsale, though much of it is in a tumble-down condition, bears evidence

of its former importance, and is still a most interesting place to visit, with
its narrow, half-foreign-looking streets, the fine old chvrch of St. Multose,

and the remains of Charles Fort in the middle of its winding harbour. At
one time it imported more tobacco than any other place in Ireland " (J.

CoUmcm). The fine harbour is still used by naval ships, and the Royal Naval

Reserve hold their manoeuvres here annually. It is, besides, the headquarters

of the southern fisheries. The Old Head of Kinsale, the first British land

sightedby travellers from America, is five miles S.W. , and convenientlyreached

by the ferry. The World's End is said to be a Spanish colony. There is a

large barracks near the town, and a dep6t at Charles Fort. At Summer Cove,

about a mile from Kinsale, is a Naval Reserve battery of importance as a

training centre.

The next station is Upton (15^ miles), and beyond Innishannon

(18 miles) the country is well wooded, and the line follows closely

along the winding stream of the Bandon. At 20 miles we reach

Bandon (pop. 2830 ; Hotel: Devonshire Arms), a clean ^nd

well-built town, on the river of that name, founded in 1608 by

the Earl of Cork. It was here that the flax industry was first

started in the south of Ireland by Lord Bernard.

On entering the gates, Dean Swift is said to have written

on the wall

—

" Jew, Turk, or Atheist may enter here, but not a Papist."

Some wag added

—

" Whoever wrote this, wrote it well.

The same is written on the gates of hell."

Bandon was fortified by strong walls and towers, but they were

removed by William of Orange.

About IJ m. west of the town is Castle Bernard, the seat of the

Earl of Bandon, to which there is free admission, except on Sun-

days. Cheap tickets are issued from Cork available by the noon

train, to Bantry in connection with coaches to Harbour View (hotel

and golf links at Kilbrittain), Timoleague, also to Innishannon,

Downdaniel Castle, etc. , the latter a day trip.

From Bandon we follow the course of the river through a

pleasant and well-wooded country, passing the stations of Clona-

kilty Junction (33) (change for Clonakilty and Courtmacsheriy

{Hotel)), Desert (27|), and Balineen (30;^).

After crossing the Bandon river, we have on the left the ruined

Ballynacarriga Castle ; and at Dunmanway (38 miles), formerly

possessing a castle, the country becomes wilder and more un-

cultivated till we reach Drimoleague (56J miles), the junction
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for the lien Valley line (one of the light railways) to Skibbereen

(53f miles) and Baltimore.

Skibbereen (pop. 3208 ; Hotda : West Cork, Hen Valley, and Eldon) is

situated on the Hen, which is navigable for small vessels to the town. It

possesses a Roman Catholic cathedral, and, near the tower, is the Abbey of

Abbeystro^vTy. On the coast (3 miles) is Rossbrin Castle, and near it the

Cappach copper-mills. The scenery between Drimoleague and Skibbereen

is grandly picturesque. There is good salmon-fishing on the Hen. In the

season a coach runs from Skibbereen to Lough Hyne, or to Glandore, in con-

nection with the 9 a.m. train from Cork.

The most enjoyable excursion is to Glandore (8J miles, east). At Leap

(pron. " Lep") there is a tiny hotel. The road thereafter runs by Shepper-

ton Lakes, fishing on reasonable terms. Glandore itself is most beautifully

situated, but is hardly yet sufficiently developed to attract tourists. There

is a primitive hotel.

At Baltimore (Hotel : 8^ miles south-west) is a fishing station instituted by
Lady Burdett-Coutts. There is a piscatorial school here to train the youth

in all matters connected with fishing. Baltimore was sacked in 1631 by
some Algerine pirates, who slew many of the inhabitants, and carried off

200 persons into captivity—an event which has been commemorated in ** The
Sack of Baltimore," a stirring ballad by the Irish poet, Davis.

A steam tram runs from Skibbereen to Schull {15 miles), which

starts westward with the Hen river, and passes through wooded

country to the coast of Roaringwater Bay. Then it runs pleasantly

among sandstone and furze, with good views to the south, to the

queerly-named village of Ballydehoh, where on cattle-fair days

both station and tramcar may be—well, agricultural ! Beyond

the latter there is nothing to remark on until we reach Schull

{Eotel : *Grove House (very pleasant)). This quiet sea-inlet might

well attract many people who want to be in beautiful scenery oft

the beaten track ; sea - fishing and boating can be indulged in

to an unlimited extent, and the hotel, which stands in its own
grounds, is as comfortable as a private house.

Goleen (10 miles west of Schull ; and 21 from Bantry) is a

charming little inlet on the west side of Toormore Bay {Inn : Mr.

O'Cormick's). The excursion is the Mizen Head round (17 miles)

,

by a wild, twisting coast road, affording fine scenery among the

sea lagoons and rocky promontories. It is about 7 miles to Mizen

Head Tower, 4 miles on to Three Castles, and about 6 back to

Goleen (or 12 if the usual return through Crookhaven be taken).

Cape Clear Island, 5 miles from Baltimore, is 3 miles long. Its

coasts are rugged and dangerous, and its inhabitants bold fisher-
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men and skilful pilots. Crookhaven is a signalling station for

ships to or from the Atlantic. Off Crookhaven is the well-known

Fastnet Lighthouse.

After leaving Drimoleague (page 140) we pass bogs and bleached

fir roots ; away to the right is Mount Owen.

BANTRY.

Hotels : of these, Vickery's is the best.

Distances : Cork (rail), 57| ; Glengariffe (road), llj ; Kenmare (road), 29^

;

Killarney (road), 49^ ; Castletown-Berehaven, 33 ; Schull, 17|.

Coaches, etc., To Glengariffe and Killarney, see pink pages. To Castletown-

Berehaven there is a service of steamers and a mail-car.

This, the terminus of the railway, is well situated on "the

finest bay in Ireland, with scenery to match." Of all the

harbours cutting up this wonderful coast between Kenmare and

Cork into rocky headlands, Bantry Bay is the finest. In the

mackerel season the place is alive with fishing boats. Once a

year the Channel Fleet holds here its autumn manoeuvres. A
steamer, the Lady Elsie, plies in the season between Bantry and

Glengariffe, and passengers by rail have the choice of going by sea

instead of coach, the tickets being interchangeable.

Those who have been to Dublin Museum will remember the

skeleton of the whale (65 feet long) hanging there which was

caught in this bay.

In 1796 the French Fleet arrived here the second time " for

the invasion of Ireland ; but England's natural allies, the winds

and the waves, being against them, they failed to effect a landing

and soon set sail, with the exception of one vessel that got

wrecked, and another, the 'Tartare,' which was taken as a prize

of war into Cork." Besides Whiddy Island, between Bantry and

Glengariffe, the Island of Bere (p. 145) gives variety to the Bay
surface.

At Bantry there is '* excellent sea-fishing " (Grant), good

bathing, and some autumn shooting. Entering the little town

(3109 ^oj?.) from the railway, one is struck by the width of the
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bare open space which possesses, at least, one attraction in its big

name of ** Egerton Square."

Descending to the harbour you take the left road for Bantry

House, formerly belonging to the Earl of Bantry {grounds open

daily ; no cycles). A short distance along this road is the severe-

looking gateway, within which a drive leads up to the house. The
latter is no great work of art, but a path leads up to the left

through dainty gardens and up some terraces to a splendid view-

point. All the head of Bantry Bay lies before you, with Whiddy
Island, Glengariflfe, the Sugar Loaf Mountain on the left, and

some fine stretches of local scenery. The title of Bantry, now
extinct, was created in recognition of the services of Mr. White, a

local landlord, at the time of the 1796 invasion (J. Coleman),

The sea or road excursion to Berehaven {see above) and the

road trip to Goleen (p. 141) are well worth doing.

Should the weather be calm, GlengarifFe may be reached by a

delightful sail across Bantry Bay, the unique charm of which is

in this way more fully realised. Pedestrians, instead of following

the car route to Glengariffe and Kenmare, will obtain a more

thorough knowledge of the character of the mountainous region

to the north by turning up at Snave Bridge, 6 miles, and then

either (1) to Sans Souci, and over Priest Leap (2000 feet) to

Kenmare (24 miles) ; or (2) bearing north-east over the hills to

Kilgarvan Station, 24 miles, or Kenmare 33J miles.

For those Vvishing to proceed by the Prince of Wales route to

Killarney there is a car from Yickery's Hotel in waiting at the

station. A halt being made at the station for refreshments,

the journey to Glengariflfe (11 miles distant) is resumed. It

occupies about an hour and a half, and is usually taken leisurely,

that the scenery may be more fully enjoyed. The road bounds
the northern margin of the bay, of which, as we reach higher

ground, we have a delightful prospect, the Chapel Islands and
Whiddy Island being passed on the left, and the picturesque

Caha Mountains, with Sugar Loaf in the foreground, looming
grandly in the distance. About a mile beyond Bantry we cross

the river Mealagh, which, on the left, forms the fantastic falls of

Dunnamark, near which once stood a castle built in the reign of

King John. Here, according to an old tradition, human foot

first trod on Irish ground.

At Ballylickey (3 miles), where we are joined by the road from
Macroom, the Owvane ia crossed, and, a mile and a half farther
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on, the Coomliola, whicli rises in Lough Nambrackderg, a moun-
tain tarn occupying the side of a prehistoric glacier. This region

may be explored by taking the central of the three roads

immediately after crossing the Owvane. On the way to Glen-

gariffe we pass the Knockline Mountain (1561 feet), some miles

to the right, and Cobdhuv (1244 feet), close at hand. Shortly

afterwards we enter the grounds of Roche's Hotel, commanding a

fine view of Glengarifie Harbour and the Caha Mountains. The
car, after stopping to set down passengers, proceeds one mile

farther to its destination at Eccles Hotel, at the head of the

harbour.

Glengariffe {Hotels : *Roche's, very pleasant ; Eccles*, good).

The name means "rugged glen," and refers to the rocks of every

variety of form which crowd it in bewildering confusion. Lofty

mountains of the same wild irregular outline surround it on

the east, north, and west ; while in front is the bay, with its

winding shores stretching out to the open sea, and itself

studded with numerous fantastic rocky islets, whose outlines,

reflected in the depths of the water, add additional witchery

to the scene. ^

The crevices of the rugged rocks are filled with a luxuriant

vegetation, which softens and beautifies their irregular outlines,

and clothes them in a vivid green. The mildness of the climate

permits even geraniums, fuchsias, and myrtles to remain un-

sheltered throughout the year. Several tropical and subtropical

plants are to be found here, which grow nowhere else in Europe,

and the balmy air, with the frequent showers, gives to all the

vegetation a wonderful richness and profusion. The arbutus,

holly, and birch envelop the rocks in luxuriant foliage down to

the water's edge.

"The long promontories which jut out along the southern coast are the

extremities of mountain ridges of Lower Old Red Sandstone. . . . The serried

ridges of Glengariffe, washed by the waters of Bantry Bay, are perhaps the

most striking ; and, when seen from the opposite shore against the glo^v1ng

background of an evening sunset, afford studies of shade and colour for the

painter, not often surpassed in depth and richness of tone amongst the

British Isles " {Professor Hull).

Glengariffe is strongly recommended by medical authoritieg

i There is a glowing description in The Sinntr (Rita).
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as a health resort in winter for all suffering from chest and lung

complaints. Its climate is mild and uniform, and the mountains

protect it on the north-east and west.

The prettiest bit of the village itself is the charming view

of the ruins of CromwelVs Bridge seen from the modern

bridge on the main road. On an island in the bay is a martello

tower.

Both for botanists and geologists, Glengariffe is a district of

especial interest ; and for other persons making a lengthened stay-

there are abundant facilities for boating and fishing, and for

various excursions to the Caha Mountains and elsewhere. The
daily mail-car also passes Glengariffe for Castletown Bere, 22 miles

along the base of the Sugar Loaf and Caha Mountains, by the

shore of Glengariffe Harbour and Bantry Bay.

Repaying excursions can be made to Adrigole Waterfall (about

13 miles) on the little harbour of the same name. About 10 miles

farther west along the northern shore of the bay is Castletown

Berehaven {Hotel), near Bere Island, About 3 miles south-

west along the coast is the old Castle of Dunboy, whose famous

siege in 1602 forms a most memorable incident in Irish annals.

"The retreat, after the fall of Dunboy, of the senior members of

the O'Sullivan-Beave family with many of their followers from

their ancestral lands here, to the north of Ireland, whence they

ultimately emigrated to Spain, is one of the most thrilling epi-

sodes in our national history." This old castle and the coast

form the scene of much of Mr. Fronde's story. The Two Chiefs of

Dunboy, The fine modern mansion is near.

The quiet western port is the headquarters of the Atlantic

Fleet and is visited annually by the Channel Fleet (p. 142).

The car/rom Glengariffe to Killo.rney, after receiving passengers

from Roche's Hotel, starts from Eccles' Hotel in the early

morning. The distance to Killarney {cycling, 6 miles' 'pushing,

then good), is 38J miles, the first stage being to Kenmare (17J
miles), where horses are changed, and a stop of half an hour
made for luncheon. Passing through the village of Glengarifi*e,

we take the road to the right, having on the left Glengariffe

Lodge, formerly one of the seats of Lord Bantry. Beyond this is

the "Eagle's Nest," an inaccessible precipice.

After crossing Grosstery Bridge, opposite the National School,

on the left, the road gradually ascends, and magnificent views

lo
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are obtained of tlie surrounding mountains and Bantry Bay.

Immediately below is the valley of the Proudly, and Barley Lake
on the Caha Mountains is seen above it, glancing in the sun. To
the right, in front, we see the Priest Leap road, leading across

the mountains to Killarney. Gradually ascending the Esk
Mountain in winding curves, we pass under Turner's Eock by a

muddy tunnel about 200 yards in length, connecting the counties

of Kerry and Cork. When we emerge from it a gorgeous prospect

bursts upon the astonished traveller, who beholds in one grand

panorama the beautiful valley of the Sheen, backed by the jagged

tops of Macgillicuddy's Reeks, and Mangerton Mountain and the

summits of the Paps, whose bold, wild forms, seen in a clear

atmosphere, enchant both eye and mind.

We now follow the Sheen to Kenmare, passing on the left

Derrynacaheragh Mountain (1238 feet), and in front of it a Roman
Catholic chapel.

Cyclists will find this one of the grandest descents, in every respect, in

the kingdom. A halt of five minutes should be made near Bunane, beyond

Releagh Bridge, to obtain the beautiful view down the valley from the Iridge

over the falls, just right of the road. Down stream is a river landscape of

rare beauty. In the foreground the falls and the fir-trees ; beyond, more

firs, and soft green meadows ; far away the unusually fine outline of the

mountains over ELillarney; through all the thread of the silvery "Sheen."

If favoured with a September sunset, you will not forget this gem.

As we gradually descend, our view of Kenmare Bay widens

and extends ; and crossing the river, where a road goes off (left)

to Berehaven, by the Lansdowne suspension bridge, we enter

Kenmare.

Kenmare (pop. 1122 ; Hotels : Great Southern, first class

;

Lansdowne Arms), a clean town of two featureless streets, is the

property of the Marquis of Lansdowne, having been founded in

1670 by his ancestor, Sir William Petty. It is finely situated on

the Kenmare river, here spanned by a large suspension bridge.

Its chief attraction consists in its position as the chief southern

entrance to the Killarney district, and the splendid scenery of

the Waterville Promontory.

Coaches run daily to Parknasilla, 15 miles ; Waterville, 37

miles ; Cahirciveen, 47 miles ; Glengariffe, 17J miles ; and Kil-

larney, 21 miles. It is 31 miles to Macroom and IGJ to Sneem.

The Coach for Killarney, after lunch, starts over the bridge

across the Finnihy, and climbs up 5J miles to the summit of the
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Pass between the rocks of Derrygarriff od the right, and the left-

hand shoulder of Boughil. After turning a sharp corner, a fine

view opens out northwards. The richness of the tints, especially

of the purples, of the distant mountains is most striking, if the

sun favours you. Note the rock profiles in the Gap of Dunloe
straight in front, across the Owenreagh river. To the right of

the Gap are the Tomies ; the Reeks are on the left.

Descending, the road arrives at Looscaunagh Lough (8 miles)

and passes along by the shore.

At li miles beyond comes a sudden bend in the road, and there bursts

upon you one of the very grandest scenes that the eye can find in the British

Isles. Once seen in sunny summer weather it can never be forgotten, and
had Mr. Alfred Austin confined his enthusiastic utterance upon the district

to this lovely bit, most would, we think, have agreed with him. " There is

nothing," he says, "in England or Scotland ag beautiful as Killarney . . .

and if mountain, wood, and water harmoniously blent, constitute the most
perfect and adequate loveliness that nature presents, it surely must be

owned that it has, all the world over, no superior."

The road soon passes the Mulgrave Barracks, and \ mile farther

(on left) the Derrycunihy Cascade and Queen's Cottage, then

descends, mile after mile, through the exquisite foliage of ever-

changing trees, and an ever-varying light and shade that plays

over leaf and stem. If any tree preponderates it is the holly, with

a leaf remarkable for its glossiness. Beyond the Tunnel, the

arhUuSf '*so slender and shapely, on the borders of Leane," adds

a new feature to the already luxuriant verdure. The regular

route thereafter takes a sharp turn right, and a smaller road goes

ofi" at an acute angle on the left ; this leads across a chain of

islands coming out at the gates of the Muckross demesne opposite

the Muckross Hotel. Entrance, Is. Cyclists, however, are only

allowed to traverse it in the opposite direction, coming from

Killarney, a necessary precaution as the way is very narrow.

The high road runs between walls without any view of the

lake at all, and any cyclist desirous of seeing more must turn in

at the Muckross gate aforesaid, go the round, and re-traverse the

same strip of main road. For continuation see p. 150, also p,

163.
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MACROOM ROUTE TO KILLARNEY.

By Railway from Capwell Station, Cork, to Macroom ; thence by coach.

Cork. Miles.
|

Miles.

Macroom (rail) . . . 24| ' Snave Bridge (car) . . 56^

GlengarijBfe (car) . . . 62^

Inchigeelagh (car) . . 34^ I Kenmare (car) ... 80

Pass of Keimaneigh (car) . 44| \ Killarney (car) . . . 100

The journey to Killarney by Macroom affords the opportunity of visiting

Gouganebarra and the Pass of Keimaneigh. Well-appointed four-horse

coaches run daily (Sundays excepted) between Macroom and Killarney

vid Glengariffe, etc. Programme from the Cork and Macroom Direct

Railway, Capwell, Cork.

One of the best cycling excursions round Cork is the one here described.

The railway issues special passenger and cycle tickets combined at very

low rates (4s. 3rd class) to carry the cyclist to Macroom and bring him
back from Bantry. As the road frem Macroom through the Inchigeelagh

Valley is nearly all downhill, this is well worth doing. Distance 29

miles.

From Cork the railway follows the course of the Lee.

Ballincollig (pop. 746, 6| miles) possesses powder-mills, cavalry

and infantry barracks, and a ruined old castle, on a rock to the

left. Shortly after passing Kilumney Station {9| miles) we see

on the right the extensive ruin of Kilcrea Abbey, founded for the

Franciscans in 1465. Beyond Dooniskey we cross the river Lee,

and obtain a view of Coolcower Bridge on the left, above which

the Laney and Sullane join the Lee.

Macroom (Hotel: Williams), an old market town, is the

terminus of the railway. It is built on a slope at the base of

Sleveen Hill, hence the name Magh-crom-tha, in Irish meaning

** inclining plain." It possesses the square keep of a castle, said

to have been built by the Carews in the reign of King John. It

claims to bo the birthplace of Sir William Penn, father of the

founder of Pennsylvania. It was taken by Sir Charles Wilmot,

one of Elizabeth*s Generals, in 1602. Here, in May 1650, the

titular Bishop of Ross, in preparing for the relief of Clonmel, was

defeated by Lord Broghill and taken prisoner.

Killarney may be reached from Macroom by a direct route,
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following first the valley of the Sullano to Ballyvourney, and

descending by Gleu Flesk, the total distance being about 36 miles.

The usual way is, however, to proceed vid Bantry Bay and Glen-

gariffe— the Inohigeelagh route being that usually chosen. After

turning to the left we enter the Garra Valley by the river Toon,

with its *' tangled watercourses " winding through the moor. To
the right, above the valley, are the rocky ledges called the

Grianan ; and after passing the ruined tower of Dundareirke, a

fortress of the McCarthys, on a precipitous rock at the junction

of the Toon and the Lee, we journey through a succession of

steep and rugged glens, until we reach Inchigeelagh (10 miles

from Macroom) ; the Hotel, an angler's resort, is good. The

trout-fishing on Lough Allna, IJ mile up the Lee, is free, and

salmon-fishing can be obtained occasionally.

At Bealanageary (15 miles) the left road is followed for 3

miles ; then at the road-fork a digression is generally made to

visit the lough of Gouganeharra, above on the right.

On this wild water are the ruins of the cell of St. Finnbarr, who is said to

liave given his name to the spot.

The 20th mile brings you to the '*Pass of the Deer," or

Keimaneigh, one of the impressive passes of Ireland. Lord

Bantry, with a small following, at the beginning of the 19th

century, made a fruitless attempt to dislodge Captain Rock, who,

with a gang of wild marauders, had occupied the pass.

As we descend, Bantry Bay opens before us, and, joining the

road from Bantry at Snave Bridge, 4J miles from the town, we
proceed by the route already described to Glengarifie and

Killarney (page 143).
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Hotels,—Great Southern (G.S.W. Railway); Royal Victoria, well situated,

about 1^ mile north-west from station; Lake, right on lake. These

three are absolutely first-class and up-to-date. Others where charges

would not be so high, New (G.S.W. Railway), recently opened by the

railway, and close to the station, deserves special mention, it is an

attempt to give all essentials to comfort in a simpler way and on more
reasonable terms than has hitherto been an hotel ideal. The plain yet

effective lines of its furnishing scheme, etc., will appeal to many. It

deserves imitation elsewhere. Lake Vieiu (temperance), small branch of

Metropole, Cork ; Flesk ; Sheheree House, pension.

At Muckross (3J miles).—Muckross ; O'SuUivan's.

In the town are : Graham's, 8s. 6d. per day ; Glehe, and many others.

Distances (Road).—Dublin, 178| ; Cork, 56| ; Mallow, 46 ; Kenmare, 20

;

Glengariffe, 38^ ; Bantry, 48| ; Cahirciveen, 39 ; Waterville (by Glen-

beigh), 51| ; Tralee, 20.

Killarney (Irish, Cill-airne, the Church of the Sloes
; pop. 5656),

though inhabited chiefly by the poorer classes, has some good shops,

and of late years has been considerably improved. There is com-

fortable accommodation for visitors in the numerous hotels, which

are in an ascending scale to suit all purses. For positions of

hotels see plan. The village is situated about one mile and

a half from the north-east margin of Lough Leane, or the Lower

Lake. At one time it had iron smelting works, but the furnaces

were put out many years ago, and Killarney is now wholly

dependent on its visitors. Tradesmen, boatmen, guides, workers

in arbutus wood, and drivers are the chief inhabitants.

The Roman Catholic Cathedral is a very imposing building.

The severity of the interior is increased by its great height, and

by the stucco of the walls, relieved only by cold grey stone. The

several carved reredoses above the altars are exceedingly rich and

elaborate. The School of Arts and Crafts, a thriving industry,

which owes its success to the Viscountess Castlerosse, should be

visited, and the wood-carving seen.

The fine mansion of the Earl of Kenmare, a very extensive
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castellated structure in red brick and sandstone, lately erected,

adjoins the town.

Lord Kemnare's Demesne.—Of several gates the Deenagh Gate is the prin-

cipal. This is opposite the Roman Catholic Cathedral, and is the proper

entrance for the gardens, which are very fine indeed. The view of the lake is

splendid. Inclusive charge at all entrances for visitors (with or without
cycles), 6d. Hours, 7 to 7.

The Lakes of Killarney are situated in a basin between several

mountain groups, some rising abruptly from the water's edge.

The special charms of the scenery may almost be said to arise from

its multiform contrasts and its endless variety. Even in regard

to colour this holds good : the rich vegetation which clothes the

islands and the sides of the hills presents many diversified shades,

the bright green of the arbutus being the most prominent, except

in autumn, when this is succeeded by the pale yellow of its

berries, which later on changes gradually into a bright scarlet.

The tourist who has only one day to spare is advised to take the

excursion described below, for which arrangements should be

made with the hotel-keeper. Charge 7s. each, but not less than

21s. accepted
;
ponies extra, also toll Is. a head.

The Gap is possible for cyclists but very bad, roads stony with

sharp turns.

Killarney to the Gap of Dunloe, by Car, through the Gap on foot

OB BY pony to the HEAD OF THE IJPPER LaKE, WHERE A BOAT SHOULD
BE IN WAITING FOR THE RETURN JOURNEY BY THE THREE LAKES.

Miles.

Head of Upper Lake . . 14J
McCarthy's Island.

Eagle Island.

Arbutus Island.

Newfoundland Bay.

Enter Long Range . . , 16i
Man-of-War Rock.

Eagle's Nest.

Ent^r Middle Lake by Old Weir
Bridge 19i
Dinish Island,

Brickeen Island.

Enter Lower Lake by Brickeen

Bridge ... .20
Glena Bay.

O'SuUivan's Cascade.

Innisfallen (ruined abbey) . 25J
Ross Island (ruined castle) . 26

Land here or at Muckross . 28^

Miles.

Killarney town.

Aghadoe ruins . , 2i
Aghadoe Church . 8

Aghadoe House , 8

Kilalee Church (ruins) , 6

Beaufort House 6i
Dunloe Castle . n
BLate Kearney's Cottage . 8i
Cosaun Lough . 9

Cushvalley Lough . lOJ

Augur Lough and Pike Rock 11

Black Lough . iH
Gap Cottage 12

(Ca/rs stop. Continue on foo t

or pony.)

Bite of Lord Brandon's Cottage 14

Proceed hy boat (which sTwuld

he in waiting).
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The Royal Victoria, Great Southern, and Lake Hotels have
landing-places on the Lough.

Proceeding down the main street of Killarney we turn to the

left at the Totvn Hall^ holding nearly due west. On the outskirts

of the town we pass on the right the Bishop's palace, Roman
Catholic cathedral and monastery, and on the left the main
entrance to the Earl of Kenmare's grounds. Either going or re-

turning it is well for the cyclist to ride through these grounds (6d.),

otherwise he will not see the lake at all. If he keeps to the road,

a little beyond the Deenagh River Bridge, a detour of some extent,

up a hill, may be made to the right to visit the venerable ruins of

Aghadoe, perched on a piece of rising ground, and commanding
a full view of Lough Leane.

The Castle is but a fragment of a tower about 30 feet in

height. Of its foundation or occupation no records are extant,

but the titles given by tradition, ''The Bishop's Chair" and
'* The Pulpit," would seem to indicate that it had been originally

the residence of the bishop of the diocese.

The Chukch, writes Windele, ** is a low oblong building, con-

sisting of two distinct chapels, of unequal antiquity, lying east

and west of each other ; that to the east is in the Pointed style

(1158 ?), and dedicated to the Holy Trinity" ; the other, the nave,

though of Romanesque character, was probably built some

centuries before the coming of the Normans, and may have

succeeded the earlier chapel of St. Finian. These are separated

by a solid wall, through which there once was a communica-

tion, but it had been closed up long before the destruction of the

building.

The Round Towee is in no better condition than the castle.

Its present height is hardly 15 feet. ''Its masonry is greatly

superior to that of the church. The stones are large, regular,

and well dressed. The greater part of the facing stone of the

north side has been unfortunately taken away for the erection of

tombs in the adjacent burying-ground." Miss Stokes assigns a

I2th century date.

Continuing the drive for another mile, we take a sharp torn

to the left, before which, however, we pass Aghadoe House, the

pleasant mansion of Lord Headley. After a quarter of a mile's

drive in a south-eastern direction, we take another sharp turn to

the right, and so rejoin the main road to the Gap. To our left
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on the lake side is Lake View Houses the residence of Sir Ross

O'Connell, Bart. After passing a school a tempting road (left)

with signpost invites the cyclist, but he will be wiser to keep to

the main road, bumpy as it is, as the other saves little and the

views are much less grand. On the same side appears Killalee

House^ and on the right the ruins of the church. At Beaufort

Bridge (left) we cross the Laune, having passed Beaufort House.

DuNLOE Castle, also on the left, the seat of the Mahony
family.

The Cave of Dunloe, which was situated in a field close by

the high road, and about two miles' distant from the entrance

to the Gap, fell in some years ago. It was discovered in 1838,

and, from its Ogham inscriptions, w^as of great interest to

antiquaries.

At the river Loe, which issues from the Gap, Kate Kearney's

cottage faces us on the left. Here it is usual to accept a glass of

goat's milk, seasoned, if desired, by ** potheen." Our road now
keeps to the right of the Loe. Shortly after passing Cosaun

Lake we cross the Loe, following its right bank past Blackwater

Lake, Cushvalley Lake, and Augher Lake. Shortly after leaving

Kate Kearney's house we pass under the shadow of the Tomies

and Purple Mountain,^ 2739 feet, opposite which, to the right, is

Bull Mountain. At Black Lough we cross it again, and soon

arrive at Gap Cottage.

The entire length of the defile called the Gap of Dunloe is

about 4 miles. The principal feature of the pass is the great

height of the rocks which bound it, in contrast with the narrow

road, and the insignificant streamlet which courses through it.

** By the Gap of Dunloe, a narrow gorge which strikes across the

ridge into the higher part of the Black Valley, a fine section of

the rock forming the northern flanks of the mountains is

obtained. It is here, indeed, that the wonder of the geological

observer is excited " (Dr. E, Hull),

A small but rapid stream called the Loe traverses the whole

length of the glen, expanding itself at different points into five

small lakes. The new police Barrack y at the spot where the

west foot of Purple Mountain drops into Auger Lough, gives

a sense of security in what would otherwise be a lonely

1 The proper place to ascend the Piirple Menntain is the Gap of Dunloe.
To ascend it from Gearhameen, as sometimes recommended, would be
extremely toilsome, and it is seldom attempted.
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spot. It stands close to the Woodwork Factory — *'Gap
House "—where the many-coloured arbutus wood is worked into

various artistic forms. The road, which is fairly wide, well

worn, and steep above Auger Lough, crosses the Loe by means
of bridges.

At the foot of Cosaun Lough *' Captain" Doyle, cornet in

hand, waits to introduce you to the Gap with musical honours.

Of his varieties the ** laughing echo" is perhaps the best.

The part of the glen which attracts most admiration is that

where the valley becomes contracted, and is called the ''Pike."

Cars are not taken beyond the Gap Cottage, from whence the

tourist may either walk or ride (ponies are always in readi-

ness) the 3 miles to the point of embarkation at the Upper
Lake. Touters frequent this valley with cannon, which
they discharge in order to awake the magnificent echo, which
passes from hill to hill.

Emerging from the Gap at its upper end, we come within

sight of The Black Valley. ''It may be admitted," says Dr.

Joyce in Irish Names of Places^ "that the direction of this

valley with regard to the sun, at the time of day when visitors

generally see it, has some influence in rendering the view of it

indistinct ; but it certainly is not blacker than many other

valleys among the Killarney mountains ; and the imagination of

tourists is led captive, and they are betrayed into false descrip-

tions of its gloominess, because it has been called the Black

Valley, which is not its name at all. The variety of ways in

which the original is spelled by different writers, Coomdhuv,
Coomadhuv, Coomydhuv, Cummeendhuv, etc., might lead any

one to suspect that there was something wrong in the transla-

tion ; whereas, if it were intended for the Black Valley, it would

be Coomdhuv, and nothing else. To an Irish scholar, the pro-

nunciation of the natives makes the matter perfectly clear ; and

I almost regret being obliged to give it a much less poetical in-

terpretation. They invariably call it Coom-ee-wiv (this imper-

fectly represents the pronunciation, except only the Wf where

there is a soft guttural that does not exist in English), which

will be recognised as Cum-ui-Dhuibhf O'Duff's Valley. "Who

this O'Duff was I have not been able to ascertain."

Mr. Windele thus describes the valley :—On our right lies the

deep, broad, desolate glen of Coom Dhuv, an amphitheatre buried
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at the base, and hemmed in by vast masses of mountain, whose

rugged sides are marked by the course of descending streams. It

is a great pity that so fine a pass should be rendered impracticable

for motors, and almost so for cyclists, by its shocking roadway.

A little outlay on the part of the authorities would double and

treble the number of visitors. But all the roads about Killarney

are a disgrace to the district.

*
' The Lakes are situated in the carboniferous limestone, but

send a long arm southwards into the heart of the mountains of

Lower Old Red Sandstone, which terminates in the Black Valley,

a gloomy and savage cul-de-sac, bounded by steep cliffs stretch-

ing along the eastern shoulder of the Reeks " {Hull).

On making our descent from the Gap we take a sharp—and to

cyclists, dangerous—curve towards the foot of Feabrahy's noble

crags (1894 feet), and then back down to Gearhameen Stream,

passing the school,

[Hard by which is the cottage of Mr. Tangney, who makes as good a guide

up Carrantuohill and the Reeks as his good lady is a caterer for tea-drinkers.

This is a starting-place for the ascent of Carrantuoliill, 3414 feet. Arrange-

ments for the ascent should be made in advance, by post. Address : Mr. R. D.

Tangney, Gearhameen, Beaufort, Killarney.]

and the road (right) which threads the '* fairy glades" of Owen-

reagh Glen. Continuing direct, the road crosses the bridge and

leads through a wall to Gearhameen Demesne (Is.) Within the

wall are the Waiting rooms called "Lord Brandon's Cottage,"

where tea can be had, or luncheon, ordered beforehand from the

hotel, and brought up by the boats ; and a path of J mile

descends to the Upper Lake.

The track that leads off (right) through the thick woods and
hogs to Derrycunihy Falls should not be attempted except on

horseback. Verhum sap,

THE LAKES OF KILLARNEY.

It is only by a row on the lakes that the loveliness of their

scenery can be fully realised. The changing contours of the

mountains, the luxuriant foliage clothing the winding shores of

the lakes and the lesser hills adjoining them, the numerous
islets that dot their surface, are in this way seen to much better

advantage than on land ; and indeed no one can be said to have

really visited the Lakes of Killarney who has not enjoyed the

pleasure of a row over them.
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The Upper Lake in a dry season covers only about 430 acres.

Its length when at its lowest is about 2^ miles, but after a flood

about 3 miles. Though the smallest of the three lakes, it is gener-

ally considered the most beautiful. This is owing to its proximity

to the mountains, which on two sides rise abruptly from the

water's edge, while in the distant west the Reeks

'* Lift to the clouds their craggy heads on high,

Crowned with tiaras fashioned in the sky."

**The wild grandeur," writes Mr. Coyne, "of the Upper Lake
strikes the observer on first beholding it with feelings of awe and
admiration. Perfectly distinct in the character of its romantic

scenery from that of the Tore and Lower Lake, it combines

many of the softer beauties of wood and water, with all the stern

reality of mountain scenery." The Purple Mountain looks down
upon it from the north, and on the south the Derrycunihy ranges,

of lesser elevation but picturesquely wooded, form the foreground,

behind which on the east the lofty Mangerton towers in the

distance.

The lake contains twelve islands, none of them much above an

acre in extent. The bright green aspect of the islands is due to

the presence of the arbutus {Arbutus unedo). Even in winter the

leaves of the arbutus are of a rich glossy green, and they are so

clustered at the terminations of the branches, that the waxen
flesh-like flowers, which hang in graceful racemes, or the rich

crimson strawberry-like fruit, seem cradled in a nest of verdure.

Passing on the right McCarthy's Island—so called, it is

supposed, from having been the refuge of one of the last of the

McCarthys—and Eagle Island, the largest of all, we see the

mouth of the Derrycunihy River, about a mile from the western

end of the lake, which forms a beautiful cascade as it descends

into the bosom of the waters. At Arbutus Island, which we pass

on the left, the lake has narrowed considerably. It again

widens opposite Stag Island, beyond which it narrows into the

beautiful creek of Newfoundland Bay. Our course, however,

lies to the right, into the Long Range, a river little more than 2

miles in length connecting the Upper and Middle Lake. On
entering it at the narrowest point, we pass on the left the

promontory called Colman's Eye ; then also on the left the

Jolly-Boat, opposite which on the right is the Cannon Rock.

Haifa mile farther, on the right, is the Man-of-War Rock—

a
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mass resembling the hulk of a vessel, keel uppermost. Then still

farther are some miniature islets called the Four Islets. Beyond

them to the left The Eagle's Nest (1700 feet) rears its pyramidal

head. It is a rugged, precipitous cliff, in whose interstices the

gray eagles still have thoir eyries. The base is tolerably covered

with trees, shrubs, and underwood, but towards the upper part it

is bare, excepting where a few stunted trunks or heath, and other

lowly sub-alpine plants, find nourishment among the crevices.

The young birds are carried off every year between the 15th of June and

the 1st of July, when they are old enough to be brought up by the hand.

The rocks on which the nests are built are usually so steep and dangerous,

that they can be reached only by ropes from above.

The echo from this and the surrounding rocks is remarkable,

especially in calm weather. A bugle call we may hear repeated

nearly a dozen times, and answered from mountain to mountain,

sometimes loud and without interval, and then fainter and

fainter, and after a sudden pause again arising as if from some

distant glen, then insensibly dying away.

Eagle's Nest Echo.—ifr. Crdker's.

1. Original Air.

2. Echo,

8. Echofainter,

i. Imperfect,

5. Bothered.

6. Original re-

7. Repeat imper-

fect.
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At the end of the Long Range is the "Meeting of the

Waters," which should rather be called the *' Parting of the

Waters." The stream to the left skirts round Dinish Island into

Lough Leane, and that to the right passes under the Old Weir
Bridge into Muckross or Middle Lake.

Old Weir Bridge is an antiquated structure, consisting of

two arches, underneath which the water rushes with extraor-

dinary rapidity, especially if the river be in flood. The boatmen
do nothing but guide the boat as it dashes through under one of

the arches.

Muckross, Tore, or Middle Lake.—This lake contains an area of

680 acres. The principal islands are Dinish and Brickeen, which
separate it from the Lower and larger lake. There are three

passages between these two lakes, one round the eastern side of

Brickeen, another between Brickeen and Dinish Islands, and a

third by the Long Range to the west side of the latter.

Dinish Island^ which is also well wooded, contains about 34
acres. On it there is a neat cottage, kindly kept up by Lord
Ardilaun, the proprietor, for the convenience and comfort of

visitors, where tea may be had if desired, 4.30 being about the

usual time of arrival.

Brickeen Island contains about 19 acres, and is well

wooded. It seems a continuation of the peninsula of Muckross,

from which a narrow stream separates it.

Of the beauty of Tore Lake much has been wi'itten, but that

it is inferior to the smaller, or Upper, is generally conceded.

Many prefer the Lower Lake, take it all in all, to either of the

two others. Thackeray, in the Irish SJcetch-hooky in answer to

the question, **What is to be said about Tore Lake?" replies,

** When there we agreed that it was more beautiful than the large

lake, of which it is not one-fourth the^ize ; then when we came

back, we said, ' No, the large lake is the most beautiful
;

' and

so, at every point we stopped at, we determined that that

particular spot was the prettiest in the whole lake. The fact is,

and I don't care to own it, they are too handsome. As for a man
coming from his desk in London and Dublin, and seeing * the

whole lakes in a day, ' he is an ass for his pains ; a child doing

sums in addition might as well read the whole multiplication

table, and fancy he had it by heart."

Lough Leane, or the Lower Lake, has an area of about 5000
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acres, its greatest length being 5, and breadth 3 miles. The
islands upon this lake are upwards of thirty in number, but very

few of them exceed one acre in extent, while the majority come

far short of that size. The largest islands are Rabbit Island,

a little above 12 acres, and Innisfallcn, with an area of rather

more than 21 acres. The names of the islands are derived either

from some fancied resemblance to animate or inanimate objects,

or from being the resort of diiBferent animals. Thus we have

Lamb Island, Elephant Island, Gun Rocks, O'Donoghue's Horse,

Crow Island, Heron Island, Gannet Rocks, Otter Island, and

Stag Island. The chief beauty of the Lower Lake consists in its

wide placid surface, and the mountains which form its barriers

on the south and west. To the north-east the ground is level

and uninteresting, save for the woods on the demesnes of Kenmare

and Muckross. Innumerable nooks of surpassing beauty, how-

ever, do occur in the frequent bays and inlets which interrupt its

margin, and even the bare rocky islets contrast amazingly with

the verdure of the distant shores, the richly-clothed islands of

Innisfallen and Ross, and the mirror -like surface of the lake

whose bosom they disturb. This lake is not without its legends :

that regarding the great O'Donoghue is remarkably beautiful.

Once every seven years, on a fine morning, before the first rays of the sun

have begun to disperse the mists from the bosom of the lake, the O'Donoghue
comes riding over it on a beautiful snow-white horse, intent upon household

aflairs, fairies hovering before him and strewing his path with flowers. As
he approaches his ancient residence everything returns to its former state of

magnificence ; his castle, his library, his prison, and his pigeon-house, are

reproduced as in olden time. Those who have courage to follow him over

the lake may cross even the deepest parts dry-footed, and ride with him into

the opposite mountains, where his treasures lie concealed ; and the daring

visitor will receive a liberal gift in return for his company ; but before the

sun has risen, the O'Donoghue recrosses the water and vanishes amidst the

ruins of his castle.

The character of this now spectral chief is said to have been

just and honourable, clearly distinguishing him from another

of the same name, who bore the distinctive appellation of

** O'Donoghue of the Glens." The latter was ''bloody and

tyrannous."

Glena Bay is the part of the Lower Lake first entered. A
picturesque little cottage, known as "Glena Cottage," stands on

the shore. The range of hills, which for fully two miles bounds
the south-west side of the lake, takes the name of Glena ; it is
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clothed with wood, and the haunt of the red deer, now scarce even
in Scotland, and all but extinct in England. Stag-hunts used to

be of frequent occurrence among the lakes, and many a good fat

buck has been slain and eaten by the Irish chiefs ; now, however,

it is customary to capture the animal in the water, and afterwards

allow it to escape. From Mr. Weld we extract a few notes relative

to this sport.

On the day preceding the hunt, those preparations are made which are

thought best calculated to ensure a happy issue. An experienced person is

sent up the mountain to search for the herd, and watch its motions in patient

silence till night comes on. The deer which remains aloof from the herd is

selected for the next day's sport. The deer, upon being roused, generally

endeavours to gain the summit of the mountain, that he may the more readily

make his escape across the open heath to some distant retreat. To prevent

this, numbers of people are stationed at intervals along the heights, who by
loud shouting terrify the animal and drive him towards the lake. I was
once gratified by seeing a deer run for nearly a mile along the shore, with the

hounds pursuing him in full cry. On finding himself closely pressed he

leaped boldly from a rock into the lake and swam towards one of the islands

;

but, terrified by the approach of the boats, he returned, and once more
sought for safety on the main shore. Soon afterwards, in a desperate eff'ort

to leap across a chasm between two rocks, his strength failed him, and he fell

exhausted to the bottom. It was most interesting to behold the numerous

spectators who hastened to the spot. Ladies, gentlemen, peasants, hunters,

combined in various groups around the noble victim as he lay extended in

the depth of the forest.

Rare ferns are found in the wood.

Pursuing our course on the lake, we pass one or two little islets

and rocks on our way to *' Sweet Innisfallen, " but if time permits,

it would be well to keep the course of the shore to

O'Sullivan's Cascade. Landing in a little bay at the foot of

the Tomies, and following a rugged pathway through the thick

forest, we hear from time to time the dashing of the water down
its precipitous channel, until we at last reach the waterfall.

**The cascade," says Wright, "consists of three distinct stages
;

the uppermost, passing over a ridge of rock, falls about 20 feet

perpendicularly into a natural basin beneath, then making its

way between two hanging rocks, the torrent hastens down a

second precipice, into a similar receptacle, from which second

depository, concealed from the view, it rolls over into the lowest

chamber of the fall. Beneath a projecting rock, overhanging

the lowest basin, is a grotto, with a seat rudely cut in the rock.

From this little grotto the view of the cascade is peculiarly
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beautiful and interesting. It appears a continued flight of three

unequally elevated foamy storeys. The recess is encompassed by

rocks, and overshadowed by an arch of foliage so thick as to

interrupt the admission of light."

Innisfallen Island, about half-way between the east and

the west shores of the lake, is interesting on account of the

historical associations connected with it, the charm thrown

around it by the poetry of Moore, and more especially for its

own exceeding beauty. Of all islands it is perhaps the most

delightful.

The island appears from the lake or the adjoining shore to be densely

covered with magnificent timber and gigantic evergreens, but upon landing,

the interior of the island will be found to afford a variety of scenery well

worthy of a visit—beautiful glades and lawns, embellished by thickets of

flowering shrubs and evergreens, amongst which the arbutus and hollies are

conspicuous for their size and beauty. Many of the timber trees are oaks,

out the greater number are magnificent old ash trees of remarkable magni-

tude and luxuriance of growth.

The Abbey, whose ruins are near the landing-place, is believed

to have been founded about 650 by St. Finian, to whom the

cathedral of Aghadoe was dedicated. In the east end are two

lancet windows, which, with this gable, have been recently re-

stored. A little away to the right is the small '

' Romanesque "

church standing by itself. The round-headed West doorway,

with remains of well-carved mouldings, is, architecturally, the

best thing on the island, and may date back as far as the 11th

century.

''Quiet, innocent, and tender is that lovely spot," wrote the

delighted Thackeray after his visit in 1842.

In this abbey the celebrated Annals of Innisfallen were com-

posed. The work contains scraps from the Old Testament, a

compendious, though not by any means valuable, universal

history down to the period of St. Patrick, with a more perfect

continuation of Irish history to the beginning of the 14th

century.

The MS., written perhaps in the 12th century, is now preserved in the

Bodleian Library. The publication of the work has been attempted at

various times, but a complete translation has not yet issued from the press.

The Annals record that, in 1180, the abbey of Innisfallen, which had at

that time all the gold and silver and richest goods of the whole country

deposited in it, as the place of greatest security, was plundered by Mildwin,

II



162 THE LAKES OF KILLARNEY

son of Daniel O'Donoghue, as was also the church of Ardfert, and many
persons were slain in the very cemetery by the M'Oarthys. We take leave

of the Island with Moore's lines ;—

' 'Sweet Innisfallen, long shall dwell

In memory's dream that sunny smile,

Which o'er thee on that evening fell

When first I saw thy fairy isle."

On the way from Innisfallen to Ross Island you pass Mouse
Island, and in good weather may obtain a brief glimpse of the
** Kerry Paps " just over the ivied tower of Ross Castle.

Ross Island (admission included in the ticket issued

for the Rome and Western Parks), situated on the eastern

shore, is properly a peninsula, though at high water it is

difficult to reach it from the shore without having recourse to

the bridge. It is well planted and intersected with walks, not

now so well kept as formerly. On the southern point we
come upon a copper-mine opened in 1804 by Colonel Hall, father

of S. C. Hall. The position was very unfavourable, being close

to the margin of the lake ; but notwithstanding this, the laboui

proceeded and was rewarded for a time by an abundance of rich

ore. Crofton Croker asserts that '

' during the four years that

Ross mine was worked, nearly £80,000 worth of ore was disposed

of at Swansea, some cargoes producing £40 per ton."

The old shaft at the souzh. point of the island, and close to

the shore, is now filled by a blue pool of forbidding depth.

There can be no doubt that these mines have been worked at

an early period, whether by the Danes or not it is difficult to

say. Colonel Hall's miners found several rude stone hammers
of a very early make, besides other unequivocal proofs of pre-

occupation of the mines.

Ross Castle, now in ruins and clad with ivy, is a picturesque

object from some positions on the lake, and near it there is a con-

venient landing-place. From the summit is obtained a most

delightful view. Admission by ticket issued for the Home and

Western Parks ; gratuities are strictly prohibited. The castle

was built by one of the O'Donoghues. In 1652 it held out against

the English, and was the last in Munster to surrender. On the

26th July, Lord Muskerry had been defeated in the County Cork,

and many of his followers slain, among whom was a Kerry chieftain,

Macgillicuddy, who held a commission as colonel. Retreating

to Ross Castle^ he held out against the repeated attacks of
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General Ludlow, and not until ** ships of war" were seen upon

the lake did the garrison give in. An old prophecy had declared

Ross impregnable till ships should surround it ; and the Irish

soldiers, looking upon the prophecy as accomplished, would not

strike a blow. Ludlow in his memoirs thus narrates the

incident :

—

•' When we had received our boats, each of which was capable of contain-

Lug 120 men, I ordered one of them to be rowed about the water, in order to

find out the most convenient place for landing upon the enemy, which they

perceiving thought fit, by a timely submission, to prevent the danger that

threatened them." After the surrender 5000 of the Munster men laid down
their arms.

If Muckross be the evening destination of the tourist, or if he

desires in the same day to visit the abbey, he would do

well to pull to the south-east corner of the lake, and there

land.

KILLARNEY TO MUCKROSS ABBEY, TORC, ETC.

Muckross Village lies 3J miles south from Killarney Railway

Station. It is as delightful as it is small, charmingly wooded,

and contains two comfortable hotels (see p. 160). The cycling

between this and Killarney is shocking ; luckily custom permits

riding on the footpath.

The Abbey of Muckross (the "peninsula of the pigs") is on

the Herbert demesne. At the lodge gates—(1) opposite the

Muckross hotels, or (2) about J mile short of that—the visitor,

on payment of a shilling {visitorsfrom Muckross Hotels free) is

admitted into the grounds of Muckross, and, passing down in

the direction of the lake, observes to his right, on a little knoll

surrounded by trees, among which the yew is conspicuous, the

ruins of the abbey. It was founded in 1340 for the Franciscans,

and is, as Thackeray said, '' the prettiest little Ujou of a ruined

abbey ever seen—a little chapel with a little chancel, a little

cloister, a little dormitory, and in the midst of the cloister a

huge yew-tree which darkened the whole place." The simple

but effective tracery of the E. wvndow is as pleasing as that of

the similar windows in the monasteries of Adare. An inscription

in the choir records the restoration which was made in the 17th

century. The large fireplace of the kitchen was taken posses-
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sion of by a hermit of the name of John Drake about a hundred

years ago, who lived here for eleven years.

Muckross Abbey Mansion, in the Elizabethan style, was built

from a design by Mr. Burn of London. From various points in

the demesne good views of the surrounding scenery are obtained.

From the year 1860, when Charles Kingsley wrote that he had ob-

tained permission to try ''Mr. Herbert's fishing at Muckross, which

they say is the best in Ireland," down to the summer of 1899, this

estate remained in the Herbert family. In November of the same

year it was purchased by Baron Ardilaun, elder brother of Lord

Iveagh, and son of Sir Benjamin L. Guinness. The large-hearted

liberality of the family is well known. By a good road we make the

circuit of the domain and the Islands Brickeen and Dinish and join

the high road, about a mile from Tore Cottage. In hidden watery

nooks among these woods, covered by shrubs, large ferns, and moss,

grow isolated patches of that botanical treasure the Trichomanes

specioswn. Its miniature, the Hymenophyllum Tunbridgense,

grows in vast luxuriance on every rock moistened by the spray of

a waterfall or the trickling of all but imperceptible streams.

Tore Cascade is about IJ mile to the south of Muckrosa

Abbey. The visitor is admitted by a small gate on payment of

9d. The gravel walk leads up a valley lined with larch on the

one side, and holly, birch, oak, alder and albutus on the other

;

a rough wooden seat is gained, and the famous and deservedly

popular view of the cascade bursts suddenly upon the view.

To the left a circuitous footpath leads to a spot from whence

is obtained a view of the Middle and Lower Lakes, with the

peculiar peninsula of wooded rock which separates them,

THE ASCENT OF MANGERTON.
2756 feet.

Muckross to summit, 5 miles ; Killarney Station, 8^. A car carries the

tourist to the foot of the mountains, where ponies can be obtained for

the journey to the summit.

The views are very fine, embracing an extent of scenery which

gradually expands as we ascend. Four miles from Muckross we

come to the Devil's Punch Bowl. Near the lower bank of the

Punch Bowl, not far from the ascending path, there is a fine

echo ; in fair weather a magnificent view is got on reaching the

summit. Those who do not care for such views, or cannot enduie
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fatigue, may ascend the road as far as Drumrourk Hill, behind

the Muckross Hotel, where views of a romantic and agreeable

character may be obtained without fatigue.

It is usual to return by the same route. Many, however, will

prefer to turn off (under the direction of a guide) to Glena-

coppal, or the Glen of the Horse, lying between Mangerton

and Stoompa.

Lough Guitane is a good lake for an angler, but the scenery

around it is dreary, and has nothing in common with the

Killarney lakes.

ASCENT OF THE REEKS.
3414 feet.

The distance from Killarney to the summit of Carntual or

** Carrantuohill " ( '* the inverted reaping-hook ") is 15 miles. The
ascent is steep and generally made from the Owenacullin River

valley on the north-east side. For this route proceed from

Killarney as if for Dunloe Gap : and about \ mile after crossing

Beaufort Bridge turn (right) by the Barracks, and so up across

the Owenacullin river to the Gaddagh. Start quite early and

choose a fine day. If inexperienced, be not too proud to take a

guide (see page 155).

A good descent maybe made (4 miles) in an E.S.E. direction,

to the Gearhameen end of the Dunloe road just south of the Gap.

EXCURSION FROM KILLARNEY TO VALENTIA, WATER-
VILLE AND PARKNASILLA.

The excursion round the Waterville promontory has been

well called by an enthusiastic cyclist^ " the finest circular run in

Ireland," and should the tourist's time in Killarney be limited

we should advise him to secure the first good day, after doing

the Lakes there, for this splendid bit of the country. The pro-

montory is about 40 miles long by 18 wide on the average, and

concentrates into those limits more beauty of mountain, loch,

and coast than any similar space in Ireland.

There are several ways of doing the excursion, the principal being :—
-(1)

BLillarney to Carragh Lake, Cahirciveen and Valentia by train, and to Water-

1 Mr. Mecredy in his Road Book of Ireland (southern part).
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ville by road ; next day to Sneem, Parknasilla, and Kenmare by road
; (2) by

Qlencar to Caragh Lake ; back to Glencar and on by Ballaughasheen Pass

to Waterville ; Waterville to Killamey by Sneem and Gerah Crossways. The
coast scenery between Cahirciveen and Sneem is all very good.

Taking the entire round by the coast (see (1) above), those

who do not cycle to Caragh Lake by Glencar (27^ miles) will prob-

ably use the railway through Farranfore Junction and Killorglin

to Caragh Lake (29 miles ; Hold: The Southern, first class, about

\ mile from station). This beautifully shaped lough lies in a

delightful valley, well wooded, between the Reeks and the head

of Dingle Bay.

It is a good centre for exploring the Reeks and the Waterville

promontory. *

' The salmon and trout fishing on the lake are

quite first rate," and there is a golf course.

From Caragh Lake the rails pass under the north foot of Seefin

(1621 ft. ) and reach Glenbeigh (33 miles ; comfortable Hotel). We
soon get a fine view down Dingle Bay, and beyond Mountain

Stage station, as the train curves slowly round the precipitous

slopes, there are some grand bits that pass all too quickly.

Notice Brandon Hill over Kells Bay,

Cahirciveen (pop. 2013 ;
pronounced Cdh-ir-siveen ; 47 miles ;

Hotel : Leslie's, good) is a good centre for the Yalentia scenery.

The principalbuilding is the large R.C. O'Connell Memorial Church.

Excursions start from Leslie's Hotel for Ballycarbery Castle and places on

Dingle Bay, Valentia Island, the Skellig Rocks, and Waterville. Full details

of these can be obtained by writing to the hotel proprietor.

Valentia Island can be reached from Cahirciveen by boat

(about 3 miles) ; or road (3J miles) ; or rail to Harbour station

and thence by ferry ; or by road to Portmagee (9| miles) and

thence by ferry.

A good hotel, recently enlarged, stands facing the ferry (6d.) and close to

the pier. Mr. O'Neill, whose family has held the ferry contract for con-

veying the mails for over 100 years, will give all information during the brief

crossing. Not far off is a station of the Anglo-American Telegraph Company,

to which, upon production of an order or presentation of a visiting-card,

the visitor can be admitted during the mornings.

There is a great variety of scenery in and around Valentia, in which is

situated Glanleam, the residence of Sir Maurice Fitzgerald, Knight of Kerry

(a descendant of the "Black Knight"), about 2 miles from the Royal

Hotel and Post Office. The grounds of Glanleam contain some rare shnibi
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and the largest fuchsia in the kingdom. The Slate Quarries and the Fogher
Clifls are well worth a visit ; from these there is a grand view of the wild

coast, mountains, and Cahirciveen. There is a lighthouse at the entrance of

the harbour between the islands of Valentia and Beginnis, and an old tower
at the western end of the island, at Bray Head.

From the hotel at Knightstown, at a distance of 4^ miles, is the ferry for

Portmagee, a fishing village from whence is a road which makes a junction

with the main road from Cahirciveen to Waterville.

The two islands called the Skelligs stand out about 8 miles south-west

of Bray Head, the southern point of Valentia, and their striking outlines

are a marked feature in the coast views between that point and Kenmare
river.

On the Great Skellig is a remarkable specimen of one of the earliest

monasteries. Nearing the eastern side " we see the round roofs of its cells,

540 feet above us, clinging to the ridge like swallows' nests, the most western

of ChHst's fortresses in the ancient world." '^ It is dedicated to St. Michael,

"There are still remaining," says Miss Stokes, "600 steps cut by the monks

in the cliff. . . . The island has been the scene of annual pilgrimages for

many centuries, and the service of the Way of the Cross is still remembered

here ; different points and turnings in the cliffs being named after the

different stations, such as the Garden of the Passion, Christ's Saddle, the

Stone of Pain," etc. On the upper terrace are " five cloghauns of dry stone,"

or bee-hive huts, in wonderful preservation ; on the second terrace are the

church of St. Michael, "an older oratory," monks' cemetery, incised crosses,

and wells. Then below is that wonderful cashel or protecting wall, which

so astonished Lord Dunraven ; and the " monks' garden."

Waterville {Hotels : Southern ; Bay View ; Butler Arms) is a

delightful centre for tourists exploring this beautiful coast, or

for the angler, who will find fair white trout and other fishing.

The bathing is good ; and the western end of Lough Currane

(3^ miles long), which extends up to the village, is separated

from the sea of Ballinskelligs Bay by the narrow barrier of land

on which is the village, and where runs the excellent road which
attracts so many cyclists.

On Qm/rch Island, in the lough, are interesting remains of St. Finian's

early church of the type of those on Great Skellig. The most interesting

inland ruin, however, is Staigue Fort (14 miles, on the road to Sneem),
which, according to Miss Stokes, " may have been in existence two centuries

or more before the introduction of Christianity into Ireland." 2 Mr. West-

1 See the very interesting description of this in the R.S.A.I. Ham^dboolc,
ili. 1898.

2 C. P. Kaine Jackson, in Ov/r Ancient Monuments, attributes this
*' military erection ... to a date earlier than the 10th century." In general
characters it may be compared to Dun Aengus in Aran (»ee Galway).
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ropp considers it " one of the most perfect and interesting cdhtrs of our
island "

; but the meaning of the name Staigue, and even the purpose of its

builders are matters of dispute. Its unique feature is that "the walls are

divided into ten bays by flights of steps crossing each other like an X."

Valentia is 12 miles distant ; Skelligs, 16 miles ; Cahireiveen Station,

12 miles ; Ballaughasheen Pass, 14^ miles ; Ooomakista, 3 miles ; Deny-
nane, 7 miles ; Sneem, 23 miles ; Parknasilla, 25^ miles ; Kenmare, 38^ miles

;

Killarney, 60 miles.

From Waterville southwards there is a fine road for cyclists

through magnificent scenery. This ascends in 3 miles to the

shoulder of GoomaJcistaf where the 'grandeur of the view is

indescribable.

A superb panorama here of sea and coast, complex with islands of all shapes

and sizes, from ScariJT and Deenish, on the right, to the dim crags of

the Bull, the Cow, and the dimmer Calf at the far end of the Miskish Moun-
tains, and " far away the unquiet bright Atlantic Sea."

About 1| mile further, a glade (right) leads to Derrynane House, the

ancestral home of the Liberator O'Connell. Permission to see the house and

the O'Connell relics is sometimes granted. Half a mile beyond is Mrs.

Keating's charming little hotel, fairly covered with fuchsia and flowering

shrubs. Lord Dunraven's shooting-lodge is near ; and on the shore of the

bay the ruins of Derrynane Ahhey, founded in the 6th century.

The main road is rejoined after detour at Caherdaniel, 4J miles

from Ooomakista and 4 miles short of Castle Cove. A rough

road of 2i miles, on the left, leads up to Staigue Fort (p. 167).

At 23 miles from-Waterville we reach Sneem {inn). Passing the

direct Killarney road (left) the coast road reaches, 2 miles farther

on, the entrance to the beautiful grounds of the ^Southern Hotel

at Parknasilla.

It is indeed wonderful that this place is not more widely known. Killarney

is world famous, but Parknasilla is in many ways more attractive. It is only

15 miles by road from Kenmare, which suffices to keep it select, without

rendering it inaccessible. Is is the kind of place many people have spent

their lives searching for. The rocky spurs and islets are often well clothed

with thickly growing firs, holly, arbutus, fuchsia, rhododendron, azalea, and

the plants which tell of a mild fresh air ; while the glories of gorse and

heather form a magnificent foreground to the stretches of blue sea and the

hills and headlands that show an infinite play of lights and colours. Artists

would delight in the views on every side. For recreation there are tennis

and croquet grounds, charming walks and endless nooks, sea fishing and

boating, and bathing places in the grounds within a few minutes' walk from

the hotel. This has been built near the earlier hotel, which was bought by

the Company from Dr. Graves, Bishop of Limerick, who used it as a summer
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palace. The hotel is tirst-class, and thoroughly comfortable as well, two

things not always synonymous. Daily coaches run both ways, to and from

"Waterville (25 miles) and Kenmare (15 miles).

There are, as is shown above, alternative ways of getting to

Killarney from Parknasilla.

EXCURSION FROM KILLARNEY TO DINGLE
PROMONTORY.

Take the train to Tralee (22 miles ; Hotels: Imperial ; Central;

the Dominican chiLrch is tlu best building)^ and there, changing over

to the Dingle Railway, book to Castlegregory, 16 miles (or, if no

train, to Castlegregory Junction, 6 miles short of it). Thence it

is a wild and interesting road of 16 miles over Connor Pass to

Dingle. This should certainly be preferred to the approach to

Dingle by the rail, which can be used on your return.

At Castlegregory Junction or *'Camp" there is an inn (Mrs.

Crean's) ; and about 1\ mile off, on the coast, is Kilgobbin,

with the most neglected burial-ground in Ireland. There is

some fishing in the central loughs that is little known at

present. Castlegregory (16 miles ; Hotels : T. O'Connor's

(small) ; Mrs. Spillane's). Lake-fishing here and at Aunascaul

;

river-fishing at Aughacasla, Camp, and Aunascaul. At Stradhally

(2J miles) is the last inn ; at Kilcummin (4J miles) the scenery

begins with the foliage. This delightful little bit of Brandon Bay
may some day be duly appreciated. Then at Kilmore the climb

begins (8 miles). Connor Pass (1300 feet) is very fine, and well

repays the toil. Cyclists will find the surface good. After 3 or

4 miles of descent.

Dingle (pop. 1786 ; Hotels : Lee's ; Benner's) is reached.

It is an old harbour town, built on a steep hill rising from
Dingle Bay. It is the best centre for the wild western scenery

of this promontory, much of which is good ; and the neighbour-
hood abounds in romantic remains and ruins of great antiquarian

interest. For the remarkable geological character of this district

see Hull, Phys. Geol. and Geog. of L p. 33.

Take the fii'st opportunity of seeing Slea Head and Coume-
noole (11 miles), with the grand bits of coast scenery they afford.

About 4 miles beyond Vervtry (4 miles) are the ancient forts of

''the city of Fahan,'' a most remarkable settlement of early
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"dry" stone forts and beehive cells (see M.S. A. I. Journal^

1898).

The Blasket Islands are to Dingle what the Skelligs are to Waterville.

Inishtuskart, to the north of them and marked by its queer coxcomb-rock,

contains one of St. Brendan's oratories ; but neither this nor the church on
the Great Blasket have been yet fully explored.

The excursion to Smorwick Harbour (9^ miles) is of quite exceptional

interest to the searcher after early Christian remains, and is probably the

chief scene of the romantic St. Brendan's labours. At about 5^ miles is seen,

just below on the left, the white stone roof of the Oratory of Gallenis,i

like an up-turned boat. This, as a specimen of d/ry rubble masonry,

"excels," says Mr. Romilly Allen, "anything of its kind." The door, with
hinges, is at the west end and opposite the east window, which , has a semi-

circular head. All the interior faces of the stones are cut to sliape ; and
above the east window are three pegs, used perhaps for lamps or book-

satchels. It may be of date earlier than the 7th century.

"The district is strewn broadcast with a bewildering profusion of anti-

quities. Hitchcock notes 21 churches, 12 large stone crosses, 15 oratories,

76 holy wells. "2

About I mile north-west of Gallerus oratory is a castle ; and 1 mile due
north, after passing (left) the stone forts and cells of Caherdorgan, the road

makes an angle at Kilmalkedar, which teems with ancient remains. (Tea at

scTioolhouse.)

The place seems to have had some connection with St. Brendan (p. 171)

;

and the present 12th-century clmrcli stands on the one founded by " Maol-

cethair, ' of royal blood, before 633 (Westropp).^ The preseDt choir of the

church seems to have replaced "an older and narrower" one. The feature

is the inner arcading of very unusual character. Observe the west door ; the

east -window, locally " the fat man's window " ; the font ; the Y-shaped finial

from the gable; and the 7th-century "alphabet [stone" in the churchyard.

Just to the south is an ancient enclosure covered by fuchsias ; in an adjoin-

ing pig-stye is an early cell ; near the school is the 15th century (?) " Brandon's

House "; and four fields away, north-west, is an oroAory, with a stone altar.

A mile to the west is Smerwick Harbour, with its noble SyUl Head
cliffs, and its memories of Frobisher ; of Raleigh ; and of Amyas Leigh keeping

here his Christmas Day on the wild shore out "Westward Ho," with his

"plums for the Spaniards' Christmas pudding." About 6 miles in the

opposite direction is the grand peak of Brandon Hill (3127 feet), crowned

with the "rude little oratory," which "marks," says tradition, "the place

where Brandon spent long years of prayer and meditation." *

1 The name, according to Rev. T. Olden {RJ.A. 1895), is " probably
Geal-arus," " the white house "—i.e. a church. He compares Candida casa,
" Whit-herne" (on Solway), where Melkedar was educated. Has Collorus od
Kenmare river any connection ?

2 See interesting and illustrated description of Gallerus and Kilmalkedar
by Westropp in R.S.A.I. Journal, 1898.

3 Rev. T. Olden spells the name Noel-celthair, " follower of Celtchair."
4 Westropp. Miss Stokes compares the similar cells on Slieve Douard,

Slieve League, and Slieve Gullion.
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St. Brendan, or Brandon, whose name still lingers along all our western

shores, appears to have been a native of Fenit, and to have been buried in

676 at Clonfert at the age of ninety-three in his own church there. The

story 1 of his discovery of America is difficult to believe ; but that he sailed

much among the western isles and dreamed "of some more sunny clime,

beyond the waste of waters," seems trustworthy tradition. Kingsley weaves

the saint's story into his Water-BaUes^ and tells how he "preached to the

wild Irish, he and five other hermits, till they were weary. ... So St.

Brandon went out to the point of Old Dunmore and looked . . . and far

away before the setting sun he saw a blue fairy sea and golden fairy islands,

and he said, ' These are the islands of the blest.' Then he and his friends got

into a hooker and sailed away and away to westward, and were never heard

of more." The legend of Brendan's meeting with Judas Iscariot upon an

iceberg in "the northern main" may be found in a poem by Matthew
Arnold. (For other accounts see R.S.A.I, Journal, 1890-92 ; also O'Hanlon's

lAJt ofB. ; and D. Florence Maccarthy's poem.)

From Dingle the somewhat rickety railway to Castlegregory

Junction may be taken (22 miles).

1 See Caesar Otway's version.
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ADVEKTISEMENTS.
Hotels arranged Alphabetically according to Locality.

DINNEFORD'S

MAGNESIA
Approved by the Medical Profession for over

70 Years as the Best Remedy for

ACIDITY OF THE STOMACH,

HEARTBURN,

HEADACHE,

GOUT, AND

INDIGESTION.

^ ^i|il SAFEST and MOST EFFECTIVE

1
£2 Sill APERIENT

FOR REGULAR USE.



2 ABERFELDY ABERFOYLK ARISAIG.

ABERFELDY, PERTHSHIRE.

WEEM HOTEL, TAY BRIDGE.
'THIS well-known family Hotel is situated one mile from Aberfeldy. The Hotel is commodious, has been

refurnished, and comfortably fitted up, so that families in quest of quiet and comfort may depend
on procuring every possible attention. The Hotel situation is acknowledged on the highest authorities
to be one of the best in Scotland, being thoroughly protected from all directions, and having a due south
exposure. Families boarded by the week or month. Complete posting establishment. Endless drives

;

magnificent scenery. Episcopalian and Presbyterian Churches. A 'Bus will meet parties at Aberfeldy
RaOway Station (one mile distant) on their giving timely notice. Charges strictly moderate. Letters
and Telegrams punctually attended to. ROBERT MENZIES, Proprietor.

An excellent Golf Course 'within a short distance of the Hotel. Also
Tennis. Salmon and Trout Fishing on the Tay free to Visitors.

Accommodation for Motors, riolds Official Appointment of the Scottish Automobile Club.

ABERFOYLE.

BAILIE NICOL JARVIE HOTEL
FIRST-CLASS accommodation for Visitors. Coaches to and from the

Trossachs daily in connection with Steamer on Loch Katrine. Boats

on Loch Ard and Loch Chon for Fishing and Pleasure. Billiards. Grolf.

Lawn Tennis. Posting. Garage.

Aherfoyle Railway Station, Post and Telegraph Offices two minutes*

Walkfrom Hotel,

A. BLAIR, Trofrrietor,

ARISAIG.

ARISAIG HOTEL.
THIS Hotel has been entirely rebuilt, and now contains magnificent Dining and

Drawing Rooms, and a Spacious Entrance Hall. The Bedrooms are airy and
well lighted. The Lavatories and Sanitary arrangements have been carried out on
the most improved principles. The entire Hotel has been luxuriously refurnished.

Arisaig is reached by the West Highland Railway ; it is on the Northern shore of

Loch na Ceiltein on the Western seaboard. It is beautifully wooded, with good roads

in all directions for walking or driving.

Day Train and Steamboat Excursions. 9-liole Golf Course about \ m. from Hotel.

Boating. Pleasure Drives to Prince Charles' Cave, Lochmorar, Loch-nan-LTamh, &c.

Boots meets all Trains. Post and Telegraph OflSce close to the Hotel.
MALCOLM MACLURE, Ltsitt.

A NEW BOOK OF INTEREST TO ANGLERS.

DRY-FLY FISHING IN BORDER WATERS
By F. Fern IE, A.M.LC.E.

With an Introduction by J. Cuthbert Hadden.
Large crown 8^., cloth, illustrated. Price 2/6 net {by post 2;'9)

'THIS book is the result of some ten years' experience with a dry fly in the very home of the wet fly—

the border counties of Scotland. It will interest many who fish in chalk streams, because it deals

with the use of the dry fly in streams very different from their own, and in lochs, etc.

To the exclusively wet-fly fisher it opens out a prospect of a longer season, and fewer blank days.

The author endeavours throughout to show why trout will often take a floating fly in preference to a

sunk one, and to differentiate generally between dry- and wet-fly conditions.

PUBLISHED BY ADAM AND CHARLES BLACK, 4, 5, & 6 SOHO SQUARE, LONDON, W.

and obtainable through any Bookseller.



BARMOUTH BATH BELFAST. 3

BARMOUTH, N. WALES.

The RiYiera of the United Kingdom. Summer and Winter Residence.

THE CORS-Y-GEDOL HOTEL, THE MARINE HOTEL,

ST. ANN'S MANSIONS (Private Boarding House).

All facing the sea with a south- west aspect

Specially reduced charges for the Winter Months, October to June inclusive.

GOLF LINKS. TARIFF ON APPLICATION.
P.O. Telephone—No. 2.

BARMOUTH, NORTH WALES.

CLENGAIRN (first-class) PENSION.
r^HARMINGLY situated overlooking Bay. Comnlands unrivalled Sea

and Mountain Views. Excellent Cooking. Liberal Table. Open
all the Year. Coacliing and Motor Trips organised. The Most Comfort-
able Holiday Home in North Wales. Light Luncheons provided without
Extra Charge for Visitors going Excursions. Moderate Inclusive Terms.

Illustrated Tariff on Application.

Telegrams, "Glencairn." Proprietress, Mrs. HERBERT DENNIS.
P.O. Tel. No. 23 Barmouth.

BATH.

ROYAL HOTEL.
THIRST-CLASS Family Hotel. Newly Decorated. All Modern Im-
-^ provements. Passenger Lift to all Floors. Private Garage with Pit
adjoining Hotel. Noted for First-Class Cuisine. On Official List of R.A.C.

Telegrams: "Primus, Bath." Telephone: "125, Bath."

Personal supervision by the Proprietress

—

Mrs. J. B. HUGHES.
Also CoBOURG Hotel, Tenby, S. Wales.

BELFAST.

THE WAVERLEY HOTEL,
ALBERT SQUARE (Opposite Fleetwood Steamer Landing).

Most central for Commercial Gentlemen and Tourists, being convenient
to arrival and departure of Cross-Channel Steamers and Business Centre
of City. First-Class. Economical. Comfortable. Stock Room added.
Night Boots. ^ 1^ WOOD, Proprietress,



BELFAST BEXHILL BIDEPORD.

MIDLAND STATION HOTEL,
BELFAST.

(Under the Management of the Midland Railway Company.)

Most comfortable and convenient Hotel in Belfast.

Beautifully furnished. Electric light throughout.
First-class Cuisine. Moderate charges.

Telegraphic Address: "Midotel, Belfast." Telephone, No. 1302.

F. AUDINWOOD, Manager.
Midland Railway, Northern Counties Committee's Hotel.

BEXHILL-ON. SEA
BRIGHT, BRACING, AND HEALTHY.

Fine Open-air Band and Concert Colonnade on the Central
Sea Front, also Kursaal. High-Class Bands.

Fine Golf Links, pleasant Park close to Sea. Nice Tennis,
Croquet, Hockey, Cricket, and Bowls Grounds.

Safe Sea Bathing. Extensive Sands for Children. Excellent
Sea Fishing and Prawning.

If Hours from London—Two Railways.

Numerous Rural Retreats, Castles, also St. Leonards, Hastings,
and Eastbourne close at hand by Rail, Motor Rail, and Trams.

FOR FURNISHED AND UNFURNISHED HOUSES
To HIRE or to BUY,

Call upon, Write, Telegraph, or Telephone to

JOHN BRAY 81 CO.,
5 DEVONSHIRE PLACE. (Established 1864).

Seaside and Western end of L.B. 6t S.C. Railway Station.

Telephone—Bexhill, No. 14. Telegrams—"John Bray, Bexhill."

Also at St. Leonards-on-Sea.

BIDEFORD.

THE LEADING MOTEL .

ROYAL HOTEL.
Central for Clovelly, Westward Ho ! and all N. Devon.

FIRST-CLASS Family and Residential Hotel. Entirely New Management. Strictly

Moderate Terms. Fine Palm Court Lounge. Electric Light and every Modern
Convenience. Large Garage. Motor Cars and Carriages for hire.

Apply MANAGERESS,



BOURNEMOUTH BRAT.

BOURNEMOUTH.

BOURNEMOUTH HYDROPATHIC.
Ozonated Sun Lounge facing Sea, Pines, and Promenade.

SITUATED in by far the prettiest position on West Cliff, amongst
pines and magnificent scenery. Near Winter Gardens, Pier, Golf

Links, and best bathing part of Beach. Carlsbad, Vichy, etc. Waters.

Resident Physician. Massage : Nauheim, Light, and Electric Baths.

N.B,—Turkish, Sea-Water Baths, Billiards, and Gymnasium Free,

"High Frequency Installation." Telegrams: "Hydro, Bournemouth."

Book to Bournemouth West. Prospectus from Secretary.

BOURNEMOUTH.

Homes for Paying: Patients and
institute for Trained Nurses.

Twenty-four Beds, from 3J guineas to 5 guineas ; also Eight Beds (two
beds in a room) at 42/- a week. Fully Trained Nurses supplied for

Medical, Surgical, Maternity, Massage, Electricity, Fever, and Mental
cases, from IJ to 4 guineas per week.

ApTply: MISS FORREST, Matron, Cambridge Road.
Telegraphic AddresB: "Nightingale, Bournemouth." Telephone No. 102.

MARINE STATION HOTEL, BRAY
Co. Wickloiar.

Splendid Situation facing the Sea.

REDECORATED AND REFURNISHED.

EXCELLENT CUISINE AND WINES.
30 Minutes by Rail from Dublin.

BRAY HEAD HOTEL~ BRAY
Situated under Bray Head, and commanding magnificent

views of Dublin Bay.

REMODELLED, REDECORATED, and REFURNISHED.

SANITARY ARRANGEMENTS NEW.

Inclusive Terms from ^\ Guineas per week.



BRIDGE OF ALLAN BRIGHTON.

BRIDGE OF ALLAN.

BRIDGE OF ALLAN
HYDRO.

EVERY HOME COMFORT.

Resident Physician—Dr. C. F. STEELE.

EFFICIENT BATH ATTENDANTS.

GOLF. TENNIS. FISHING. BILLIARDS.

GARAGE.

Tariff from 52s. 6d. per week, or 17s. per week end.

BRIDGE OF ALLAN.

CARMICHAEL'S HOTEL.
EVERY COMFORT FOR TOURISTS AND VISITORS.

SPECIAL BOARDING TERMS.
POSTING. GOLFING. CYCLING.
Motors for Hire. Hotel 'Bus meets all Trains.

J. CARMICHAEL, Proprietor.

BRIGHTON.

ON THE FRONT, FACING LAWNS
and near West Pier,

Terms, from 2^ Guineas perweek.

Week Ends from 1'

:s^y^

?r»^v>-i

jil
a6^

v^-^ Telegrams :

.A^^l,^-''^''^^'^*' Berkeley, Brighton."

Telephone: National 5137.

SEPARATE TABLES.
ALL PUBLIC ROOMS FACE SEA.

BILLIARD AND SMOKING ROOMS.

FINEST POSITION IN BRIGHTON.
Under Personal Supervision. Mrs. L. E. HOOKWAY, Proprietress.



BUNDORAN 7

BUNDORAN, Go. DONEGAL
THE GREAT NORTHERN HOTEL.

OWNED AND MANAGED BY THE GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY CO. (IRELAND).

Lighted by Electricity throughout. Sea and Fresh Water

Baths (hot or cold).

Excellent Eighteen-bole Golf Links on Hotel Grounds,

Free to Visitors staying at tlie Hotel,

Croquet ; Tennis. Lake, Kiver, and Sea Fishing ; Coaching ; Sea

Bathing. Motor accommodation. The Hotel commands fine views

of Donegal Bay and the neighbouring mountain ranges.

For terms, apply to the Manager at the Hotel.

1912. Telegraphic Address—" NORTHERN, BUNDORAN."

BUNDORAN, IRELAND.

THE CENTRAL HOTEL
(Late SWEENY'S).

THIS Hotel is beautifully situated, overlooking the sea, and combines
all the requirements of a First-Class Hotel, having been enlarged,

refurnished, and lighted by Electricity throughout.
Excellent Cuisine and Wines. Moderate Charges. Free Salmon and

Trout Fishing. Golf Links 2 minutes' walk from Hotel.

TOM GORMAN, Proprietor. Telegrams : CENTRAL HOTEL, Bimdoran.

MODERN GOLF
By P. A. VAILE

CONTAINING 100 FULL- PAGE ILLUSTRATIONS FROM PHOTOGRAPHS REPRESENTING
GEORGE DUNCAN, THE FAMOUS HANGER HILL PROFESSIONAL, PLAYING THE VARIOUS

STROKES ; ALSO FIFTY-SIX DIAGRAMS IN THE TEXT
Large crown Svo., cloth, gilt top. Price 7s. 6d. net (post free 7s. 10c?.)

In " Modern Golf" Mr. Vaile is doing for the royal and ancient game what he has already done
with 30 much success for Lawn Tennis—namely, giving to those who love the game and who wish
to know it intimately a full explanation of the science and mechanics of the game. The book is

illustrated by one hundred photographs of George Duncan, the famous Hanger Hill professional,
and also by fifty-six diagrams explaining fully how the various shots are played and the action of
the different strokes on the flight of the ball. Putting is dealt with exhaustively and clearly.

This book can be obtained through any bookseller at h-me or abrond. ShouVl any difficulty
arise, kindly apply to the publishers, A. & C. BLACK, 4 SOHO SQUARE, LONDON, W.



BUSHEY—BUXTON.

BUSHEY, HERTS. (16 miles from Euston.)

THE HAIili.
MAGNIFICENT COUNTRY

MANSION HOTEL.
— 100 Rooms. —

Charming Summer and
Winter Country Residence.

By Day or Week. First-class

fully licensed Hotel standing
in beautiful Park of 120 acres.

Fine Golf I^inks (18 holes)

in Park facing the Hotel.
Famous Bromo - Iodine

Waters and Baths for cure of

Rheumatism, Gout, Neuritis,

etc.

Turkish Baths, Swimming
and ordinary baths FREE.

Tennis, Croquet, and Putting Qreen.

For illustrated Tariff apply—n. G. A. THIMM.

Telegrams: "Welcome, Watford." Telephone: 17 Watford.

4. ;l^yiwl^^^lgP^^g^^^MH^^^^

BUXTON
(DERBYSHIRE).

The only BRACING Spa in the Kingdom

possessing

HIGHLY RADIO-ACTIVE, Natural,

Warm (82° F.) Mineral Water.

MAGNIFICENT SCENERY. PUBLIC GARDENS.

Centre of the Peak District. Superb Orchestra.

OPERA HOUSE. CONCERTS. GOLF. TENNIS, &c., &c.

Handbook free from Publicity Bureau, Buxton.



BUXTON.

BUXTON HYDRO HOTEL,
BUXTON, DERBYSHIRE.

2GO ROOMS.
Sumptuously appointed on entirely modern lines.

All Hydropathic aud Electric Baths.

RADIUM Water Treatment for Diabetes, etc.

Overlooking Gardens. Near Golf Links and

Mineral Baths.

Amusements every evening.

ORCHESTRA. Garage Adjoining.

Telegrams— ** Comfortable."

Telephones-Nos. 211 and 212.
^' ^^- BOSWORTH, Manager,

BUXTON, DERBYSHIRK

First-Olats Boarding EiUbliihment.

The finest position in Buxton.

Electric Light.

"^0=^
BilliardB. W
t@

Four

minutes' walk from

Baths, Garden, Churches,

Stetions, etc. Table d'Hdte, 7.0 j).m.

SEPARATE TABLES.

Nat. Tel. 481. Telegrams—BALMORAL, BUXTON.
Mrs. LBK, Proprietreu,

BUXTON.

THE BUCKINGHAM
High-Class Boarding Establishment.

Fine Position, Corner of St. John's Road,

Opposite Gardens Entrance.

Table d'Hote, 7.0. Separate Tables. Terms moderate.

N.T. 439. Mr. and Mrs. CHAS. MARSHALL.



10 BUXTON—CARBIS BAY CARLISLE.

BUXTON.

THE PEAK HYDRO HOTEL.
SPLENDIDLY SITUATED. 130 ROOMS.

Newly -furnished, decorated, and equipped
throughout. Self-contained suites.

TURKISH AND OTHER BATHS.
For Tariff, with plan of rooms, apply

MANAGERESS.

CARBIS BAY, CORNWALL.

THE CARBIS BAY HOTEL
(
The only Licensed Hotel in Carbis Bay).

Close to the Beach and Station. Near the West CornwaD Golf Links
(the best in Cornwall).

SPACIOUS LOUNGE. WARM IN WINTER. BRACING IN SUMMER.
BATHING, &c. BOATING. FISHING.

GOOD CENTRE FOR DAILY EXCURSIONS.
Telegraphic Address, "Comfort, Carbis Bay." Telephone 36, St. Ives.

Tariff on application to Manageress.
Book to Carbis Bay Station, G.'W.R.

CARIilSIiE.

THE COUNTY & STATION HOTEL.
FOR FAMILIES AND GENTLEMEN.

Is connected with the Platform of the Central Railway Station

by a covered way.

PORTERS IN SCARLET UNIFORM are in attendance

on arrival of principal Trains.

Liift. Garage. Lounge. Billiards. T. 119.

Tehgrams—CovT<iTY Hotel, Carlisle. J. W. MASON, Manager.

An interest!nj^ little Volume about the History of, and Scenery on, the
L. & N.W, Railway.

THE LONDON AND NORTH-WESTERN RAILWAY.
By George R. Eyre-Todd.

In the "PEEPS AT GREAT RAILWAYS" Series.

Containing 8 full-page Illustrations in Colour, and numerous Thumb-nail Sketches

in Black and White, in the Text. Large Crown 8vo., Cloth, with Picture in Colour on

the Cover. Price is. 6d. net. (By Post is. lod.)

" Affords a welcome and novel variant to the ordinary guide book. The thumb-nail

sketches in the text are especially well diOUQ."—Railway Gazette.

"The illustrations are excellent, and the letterpress is in an attractive style."—

Crewe Guardian.

Published by A. & C. BLACK, 4, 5, & 6 Soho Square, London, W.

And obtainable through any Bookseller.



CHANNEL ISLANDS (See also Guernsey and Jersey)—Chester. 11

SARK, CHANNEL ISLANDS.

DIXCART HOTEL.
(Established over 50 Years.)

n^HE most beautifully situated hotel in the Channel Islands. In own extensive

grounds, which include the picturesque Dixcait Valley and Bay. Excellent

Fishing and Bathing. Verandah surrounding Hotel. Special Terms from (October

to April.

Moderate Tariff on application to the Proprietors,

Mr. & Mrs. OLIVER BRYANT.

SARK, CHANNEL ISLANDS.

HOTEL BEL-AIR.
On the most tracing spot in the Island. A first-class country hotel.

THE largest and only Hotel on the island with a sea view. Possesses excellent
sleeping accommodation ; large Public, Drawing, Smoking, and Dining Rooms

(separate tables).

Good Fishing and Bathing ; Croquet and Tennis. Terms moderate.

N.B.—The Sark steamer leaves Guernsey at 10 a.m. daily (Saturdays at 11 a.m.)

during the summer months. Passage about one hour. Carriages and Porter from the
Hotel meet the Steamer.

CHESTER.

THE GROSVENOR HOTEL
THE County Hotel. First Class. Situated in the centre of the City, close to the

Cathedral " Rows" and other objects of interest.

Large Coffee and Reading Rooms ; Drawing Rooms for the convenience of
Ladies and Families ; Smoking and Billiard Rooms. Magnificent Lounge. Electric
Light and Elevator.

Taxi-cabs, Open and close Carriages, and Posting in all its Branches. Motor
Inspection Pit and covered accommodation.

Omnibuses for the use of Visitors to the Hotel, and also the Hotel Porters attend
the Trains. A Night Porter in attendance. Tariflf to be had on application.

Nat. Tel., Nos. 705 and 706. ^pply to Manager.

CHESTER.''NORTHLAND S."
CHICHESTER STREET.

FIRST-CLASS BOARDING ESTABLISHMENT.
Liberal Table and Good Cooking. Pleasant garden with

shady lawn, situated in quiet spot in highest and healthiest part

of Chester. Near Walls and Cathedral.

Terms from 6/ per day and 30/ per v«feek.

Proprietress—UlS^ PERRY. Telephone 446.
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CIRENCESTER COLWYN BAT CONNEMARA DORNOCH.

CIRENCESTER.

KING'S HEAD HOTEL.
LEADING FAMILY AND COMMERCIAL HOTEL

IN THE DISTRICT.
EXCELLENT STABLING. GARAGE. BILLIARDS.

Telephone No. 55. Ij MILES FROM GOLF LINKS.
Carriages and Motors for Hire. J. T. BROCKMAN, Proprietor.

COLWYN BAY, N.W.

IMPERIAL (STATION) HOTEL
FIRST CLASS. NEAR THE SEA AND PROMENADE.

HANDSOME Public E-ooms and Lounges. Private Suites for

Families, at Special Terms. Boarding terms.

TARIFF MODERATE. GARAGE. GOLF NEAR.
Telephone, 0182. Telegrams, "Imperial, Colwjoi Bay."

" On those thrice lovely shores of Renvyle " (William Larmine).

RENVYLE, CONNEMARA, IRELAND.
{Train to Clifden ; for Car vdre BLAKE, RENVYLE.)

RENVYLE HOUSE HOTEL.
"PIVE miles from Letterfrack. Real Sea Bathing in Atlantic.

Fishing. Shooting. Lawn Tennis. Golf. Croquet.

Splendid Air and Views. 10s. per day ; cB3 per week.

MRS. BLAKE.

DORNOCH—SUTHERLAND.
GOLF. GOLF. GOLF.

THE SUTHERLAND ARMS HOTEL,
Adjoining the celebrated Golf Links. Two 18-hole courses.

Salmon and Sea -Trout Fishing free to Residents in

Hotel. En pension terms from 1 Os. per day.

GARAGE. MOTOR CARS. POSTING.
WM. FRASER, Proprietor.



DUBLIN DULVERTON

DUBLIN.
Charming situation, overlooking Stephen's Green Park.

Central Position.

Moderate Chargres.

FRHH OJIRAOB.

ow«^
HOTEL, DUBLIN.

Hydraulic Passenger Elevators.

Choicest Cuisine and Wines.

DUBLIN.

JURY'S HOTEL, GOLLECE GREEN.
The most historic thoroughfare and the healthiest part of the city.

ELECTRIC LIGHT.
ELEVATOR.

Bed and Attendance, 3s. 6d.

TeUgrams—'' JVBY, DUBLIN."

MODERATE TARIFF.
Free Garage.

Telephones—Nos. 503 and 513.

The most fashionable and central First-Class Hotel

in Dublin. Renowned for its Wines and

Cnisine. Orchestra dally.

Electric Elevator.

TO1%%jj<^0^ ^,^^1^-^**^^^ Terms Mod€

HO^t^i

Terms Moderate. Free Garage.

Telegrams—" Hibernia, Dublin."

Telephones—2205 and 703.

Tariff on Application to P. G. BESSON, Manager.

DULVERTON.

CARNARVON ARMS HOTEL
Bracing Sporting Country Life. Five miles private trout fishing. Deer, Fox,

Otter Hunting. Golf, Tennis, Billiards. Garden 1^ acres,

ALSO

WHITE HORSE, EXFORD.
830 feet. Moorland Trout Fishing. Hunting. Land of Lorna Doone.

Wire: Nelder, Dulveeton. Tel. No. 2. Booklet.
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DUMFRIES DUNKELD DUNOON.

DUMFRIES.

WOODBANK MANSION HOTEL.
EEPLETE with every refined luxury, built and designed for private

use. Facing the River Nith. Lovely Aspects. Fully Licensed.

Head Quarters of the R.A.C. and S. A.C.

THREE MINUTES FROM STATION. PRIVATE APPROACH.

Garage for Motors. Terms extremely moderate.

For Terms apply MANAGER.______

^l^j^ FISHER'S ROYAL HOTEL
Personally Patronised by the Royal Family.

THIS First-class, Old Established, Largest, and Leading Hotel in Dunkeld. Five
Minutes from Station. Beautifully situated amongst the Finest Mountain, Lake,

and Waterfall Scenery in Scotland. Health Resort. Bracing Air. On direct road to
Inverness, 100 miles ; also Royal Route to Braemar, Balmoral, Aberdeen. Short
Route to Oban, via Loch Tay and Crianlarich. Same Route to Glasgow. To Edin-
burgh, via Sma' Glen and Crieff or Perth and Glenfarg. Fishing. Golf. Tennis.
Posting. Motor Garage Free. Petrol. Inclusive Boarding Terms. Charges
Moderate. Cooks' and other Hotel Coupons accepted. 'Buses to and from Station free.

Telegrams—"Fisher's Hotel, DuNKELD." JOHN FISHER, Proprietor.

DUNOOK

(M'KINNON'S) M^GOLL'S HOTEL
(ADJOINING CASTLE HILL), \\rEST BAY, DUNOON.

NEAR STEAMBOAT PIER.

THE principal and only first-class Hotel in Dunoon, standing in its own
pleasure grounds. Celebrated for comfort and moderate charges.

With all the latest sanitary improvements in perfect working order.

Billiards. Tennis. Near to Golf Course. Parties are requested to see

that they are taken to McColVs Hotel, West Bay.
Mrs. HUGH McKINNON, Proprietress.

Telephone No. 58. Telegraphic Address—"Luxury, Dunoon."

A BEAUTIFUL SOUVENIR OF A DELIGHTFUL DISTRICT.

THE FIRTH OF CLYDE.
By MACKENZIE MACBRIDE.

In Black's "BEAUTIFUL BRITAIN" Series.

Containing 12 full-page Illustrations in Colour. Large Square Demy 8vo.

Boards, with Picture in Colour on the Cover. Price Is. 6d. net. {By Post

Is. lOd.).
" The letterpress is unhackneyed, and with its wealth of colour pictures the book is

a choice holiday souvenir."

—

Oban Times.
" It should be an acceptable gift for even the most exacting."

—

Rothesay Chronicle.

Published by ADAM & CHARLES BLACK, 4, 5, & 6 Soho Square, London, W.

And obtainable of all Booksellers.



FOrNBURGH.
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15

DARLING'S REGENT HOTEL,
21 WATERLOO PLACE.

FIRST-CLASS
TEMPERANCE

HOTEL.

Under personal

management of

Miss DARLING.

/ Address for Telegrams—
' * Darling*s Hotel,

Edinburgh, '

Telephone: 2928 Centra!.

EDINBURGH.

WEST END BOARDING ESTABLISHMENT

59 MANOR PLACE.
(NEAR TRAMWAYS AND RAILWAY STATIONS.)

Telephone 7268. Miss SLIGHT.

EDINBURGH.

OLD SHIP HOTEL,
EAST REGISTER STREET.

FIRST-CLASS FAMILY AND COMMERCIAL.
Well Decorated and Furnished throughout. Most central for Business or

Pleasure. Two Minutes of Waverley Station, Post OfiBce, etc. Good Cooking,
Dispatch.

MODERATE TARIFF. NIGHT PORTER.

E. STAEHLER, Proprietress,
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EDINBURGH CAFE COMPANY,
70 PRINCES STREET, EDINBURGH.

FIRST CLASS CAFE-RESTAURANT*
Breakfasts, Luncheons, Afternoon Teas and Dinners

at Popular Prices. Quick Service.

Special Luncheon Is. Table d'Hote 2s. and 2s. 6d.

High Class Confectioners and Purveyors.

MADE ONLY BY

ALEX. FERGUSON,
CONFECTIONER,

EDINBURGH, GLASGOW, and NEWCASTLE.

3B^ Hppointment to 1b./II>* Ubc Iking*

BEAUTIFUL BOOKS ABOUT EDINBURGH.

EDINBURGH. Described by Rosaline Masson. Painted by John Fulleylove, R.I.

Coutaiiiing 21 full-page illustrations in colour.

luare Demy Svo. Cloth. Gilt Top. Price Is. 6d. net. (By Post. 7s. lid.)

By Rosaline Masson in the " Peeps at Many Lands and Cities " Series.

Containing 12 full-page illustrations in colour by well known artists.

Large Crown Svo, Cloth with picture in colour on the cover. Price Is. 6d. net. (By Post Is. lOd.)

By Elizabeth W. Gkierson. Containing 12 full-page

illustrations in colour by Allan Stewart.

EDINBURGH.

THE CHILDREN'S BOOK
OF EDINBURGH. Large Square Crown Svo, Cloth Gilt Top. Price 6s.

PuBWSaED BY ADAM & CHARLES BLACK. 4. 5, & 6 SoHo Square, London. W.
And obtainablefrom^all Booksellers.
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EDZELL.

THE GLENESK HOTEL.
TiIIE Hotel is in immediate proximity to the Railway Station, and Excellent Golfing
-^ is to be had over the Edzell Golf Club's celebrated 18-Hole Golf Course.

COMMODIOUS GARAGE.
Good Centre for Fishing, Driving, and Coaching Tours.

For Terms, apply The MANAGERESS.
THE GLENESK HOTEL COMPANY. LIMITED. PROPRIETORS.

PANMURE ARMS HOTEL
HEALTHIEST SPOT IN SCOTLAND.
Grand IScenery. Hotel littHd vvilh

Y^T^rvv-*^^ ^Yv-k every Modern Comfort. Electric
EDZELIi, N.B. Light and Heating.

Mm^ AN IDEAL
RESORT FOR GOLF.

18-Hole Course, one of the hnest
in Scotland, within 10 minutes' walk
of Hotel; Motoring (Extensive
Garage and Pit); Headquarters of
the Automobile Association, etc.

Tennis and Bowls near Hotel.

Send for Illustrated Tariff to

Proprietor, C. A. THIEM.

EXETER.

NEW LONDON^ HOTEL,
Visited b?j Queen Victoria, King Edward VII. , and the

present King and Queen,

T'HIS FIEST-CLASS HOTEL is near the Cathedral and
"^ Stations, and adjoining Northkrnhay Park.

Charming Old English Courtyard (with Fernery and Fountain

in centre and lighted by Electricity) as Lounge.

TABLE D'HOTE (EXCELLENT CUISINE). NIGHT PORTER.

Splendid New Garage with lock' up Private Boxes,

Hotel Omnibuses and Cabs meet every Train.

POSTING, STABLING,
Exeter Headquarters Royal Automobile Club, Automobile Association,

and the Motor Union.

Telegrams—" Pople, Exeter."

2
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FORRES—GLASGOW.

FORRES.

Cluny Hill Hydropathic.
PINEST Climate in Great Britain. Average Yearly Rainfall, 22 inches. Five Miles

of Walks in Pine Woods. Tennis, Bowling, and Croquet Greens. Garage with Pit.

First-Class 18-Hole Golf Course (with Professional) adjoining grounds. Turkish and

Russian Baths. Massage. Recreation and Billiard Rooms. Lounge. Excellent

Cuisine. Moderate Tariff.

H. B. HIGGINS, Manager.

GLASGOW.

BUCHANAN ST. STATION HOTEL.
WITHIN easy distance from North British Railway Station, St. Enoch

and Central Stations. 40 Bedrooms. Private Sitting Rooms. Billiard

Room, &c. Bed and attendance from 2s. 6d. ; Breakfasts and Teas, Is. 6d.

and 2s. ; Dinners 2s. 6d. and 3s. 6d. Terms—from 7s. 6d. per day ; from
£2 : 2s. per week. Wines, &c.^

. ALBERT JENNING, Proprutor.
Telephone: Douglas, No. 1861.

GLASGOW.

CRANSTON'S WAYERLEY TEMPERANCE HOTEL
172 SAUCHIEHALL STREET.

CAUTION.—Please see that you are taken to Cranston's Waverley, Sauchiehall Street.

No connection with the other Waverley Hotel in town.

Telegraphic Address : Waverley Hotel. National Telephone : 128 Douglas.
P.O. Telephone : 129 Central.

Breakfast or Tea, 1/3, 1/6, 2/- ; Bedroom, with attendance inclusive, 3/-.

Stockrooms just added, from 3/- per day. Passenger elevator.

Other Addresses : Edinburgh, Old Waverley, Princes Street

;

Edinburgh, New Waverley, Waterloo Place.

"M'o visitor to Glasgow will fail to take a trip to the Island of Arran.

A beautiful souvenir of your visit will be

THE ISLE OF ARRAN
Pricels.6d.net. By Re\^ ChAS. A. Hall By Post Is. 10J.

in Black's "Beautiful Britain" series. Containing 12 full-page Illustrations in Colour. Large Square
Demy 8vo, Boards, with Picture in Colour on the Cover.

This is a volume in a new series of colour-books produced at a popular price, and
they are the most inexpensive books of this character which have ever been produced,
bringing a high-class colour-book for the first time within the reach of all.

Obtainable through any Bookseller.

Published by A. & C. BLACK, 4 SOHO SQUARE, LONDON, W.
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FACE CHARM
M. F. T. SKIN FOOD
COMPLEXION WAX.

—Society's Chosen Specific to
Soften and Refine the Skin, both
Summer and Winter. Prevents
and Removes Redness, Coarse-
ness, Chaps, Wrinkles, &c. 2/
and 4/6 post free.

FOOT JOY
THOMPSON'S Corn Plaster Joy.

—Rids Crippling Corns, Bunions
and Swollen Joints — Safely,

Speedily. Yes, this is the famous
" Comfort - for - the - Feet " you
hear of! Only in M.F.T. En-
velope. Large Sheet, 1/2 post
free.

Only from—M. F. THOMPSON, -^ Chemist, il Gordon St., Glasgow.

GLENGARIFF, CO. CORK.
"The Madeira of Ireland."

THE
9 99

HOTEL.
Killarney and Bantry Coaches start from and

stop at the *' Eccles."

MOTOR GARAGE AND PIT. MODERATE.

GUERNSEY.
GARDNER'S

FACING THE SEA.
The only modern Hotel of the Channel Islands with Passenger Lift. Electric Light

throughout. An Ideal Family Hotel. Enclosed Suites with Private Bathrooms.
Beautiful Garden and Lawn Tennis. Golf Links within easy reach.

Moderate Inclusive Terms. Special Arrangements during Winter.
Letters: Gardner's Royal Hotel \p
Telegraphic Address : Royal /

^^^rnsey.

Mr. & Mrs. H. MUCLENZ.
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GUERNSEY.

OLD GOVERNMENT HOUSE HOTEL,
GUERNSEY.

Formerly the Official Residence of the Lieutenant-Governor of the Island.

Long-established and FIRST-CLASS HOTEL for FAMILIES
and GENTLEMEN.

THOROUGH COMFORT. MODERN LUXURY. MODERATE CHARGES.

NEW AND SPACIOUS LOUNGE.
standing in its own Grounds, and situated in the higher and best i)art of the Town,

the Hotel commands from its Windows and Lawn unrivalled Views of the entire Channel
Group.

Table d'Hole—Separate Tables. Electric Light.

Billiards. Dark Room. Baths.

Tariff on Application. Special Arrangements for the Winter Months.

Five minutes' walk from the Landing Stages. Porters and Omnibus from the Hotel
attend the arrival of all Steamers. Rooms may be secured by Letter or Telegram.

Register^ TeUqravUc Address- MPS. JOHN GARDNER,
- GOV. GUERNSEY." Managing Director.

GUERNSEY
L C. FUZZEY, Ltd.,

(General Ibouse jfurnisbers,

ANTIQUE DEALERS,
HOUSE & ESTATE AGENTS & VALUERS,

REMOVAL CONTRACTORS,
MILL STREET, GUERNSEY.

TELEGRAMS—"FUZZEY, GUERNSEY." TELEPHONE 48.

GUERNSEY.

"JESMOND DENE" BOARDING HOUSE,

DOYLE ROAD.
STANDS HIGH. VERY CENTRAL. EVERY MODERN

CONVENIENCE. SANITATION PERFECT.
Apply—The Misses VICTOB.



GUERNSEY {fOT BARK see 'p. 11)—HARROGATE. 21

GUERNSEY.

THE PRINCIPAL BOARDING-HOUSE in Guernsey is

THE RICHMOND, Cambridge Park. Splendid

Sea Views. Large Garden. Flat Roof. Hotel Licence.

Write for Illustrated Tariff.

Terms from ^jQ per Day. Special Winter Terms.

Proprietors—Mr. & Mrs. HART.

THE GRAND 140TEI-

HARROGATE.
Three minutes* walk from the Baths and Wells.

Standing on high ground facing South.

AN IDEAL RESIDENTIAIi HOTEL..
Every Convenience, Comfort, and Elegance.

Telegrams: Grand, Harrogate. Telephone Nos. 390 and 1017.

HARROGATE.

THE GRANBY HOTEL.
Facing the Southern Stray of 200 acres, this high-class hotel is situated in the

healthiest and most bracing part of Harrogate, away from the business centre, where
rest and quiet is assured. All the latest improvements have been introduced to pro-
vide for the comfort of tiie guests, together with provision tor the convenience of
invalids for deriving all the benefits provided by the Corporation for the "cure" for
which Harrogate stands unrivalled. Nearest hotel to the Harrogate Golf Links.
Lawn-Tennis Grounds adjoining the Hotel. Accommodation for motors and carriages.

For Terms apply to THE MANAGER.
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HEREFORD.

GREEN DRAGON HOTEL
(CLOSE TO THE CATHEDRAL AND RIVER).

FIRST-CLASS Family Hotel. Centre of City. Electric Light throughout. Excellent
Cuisine. Moderate Tariff. Good centre for tour of Wye. Within easy distance

of Raglan, Tintern, Goodrich, and Ludlow Castles, Malvern Hills, Abergavenny,
Llanthony Abbey, etc. Boating on the Wye arranged. Grolf Links, 9 holes.

General Drawing Room. New Smoking Lounge. Billiard Room.
Garage in connection with Hotel. Headquarters of R.A.C.

National Telephone. 128. For Tariff apply MANAGERESS.

ILFRACOMBE. Telephone : No. 40.

The Oldest Established Family and Com-
mercial Boarding House.

MODERATE CHARGES. e\>\^
Large Dining

Hall to seat 130.

80 Bedrooms. Facing and
three minutes' walk from Sea. First-

class Bedroom Accommodation with good Sea-view.

No charge for Attendance. Table d'Hdte, 7 o'clock.

Proprietress, Mrs. W. H. SMYTH.

ILFRACOMBE.

THE GROSYENOR.
IniRST-CLASS Boarding Establishment on level ground. Two minutes

from Sea, Capstone Parade, Bathing Coves, Town, and Post Office.

Spacious Dining and Drawing Rooms, with Large Balconies recently added,

also Lounge and Smoking Room. Table d'H6te, 7 p.m. Excellent Cuisine.

Separate Tables. Recommended. Moderate. Illustrated Tariff gratis.

Mrs. PICKETT, Proprietress.

ILFRACOMBE.
Bummer and Winter Resort. Close to the B©Ach««, Poradt, vie.

m«nding full view of the Sea. Large Dining
and Drawing Booms. Separat«
Tables.

Com-

^HE^?SS§S?*^^
Private

Hotel BCniard and
-Smoke Booms. 120 Bedrooms.

Hot t Cold Shower Baths. Dark Room for Photon.

Rlectric Light throughout. Electric Passen f»«r Lift Garage with Pik

MODBRATB TAKIPF. TOURING CARS ON HIRE.
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INVERNESS.

CALEDONIAN HOTEL.
Facing /!ailwai/ Utation, and within one minute s

walk. Overlooking the River Ness.

'T'HE above well-known First-class Hotel is the largest and
-*- best-appointed Hotel in Inverness, and universally ac-

knowledged one of the most comfortable in Scotland. All
the Public Rooms, including Lounge, are of a modern style,

lit with Electric Light. The Bedroom views are unsurpassed,
showing miles of Mountain Scenery, and overlooking the

_ river Ness. Headquarters S. A. C. and all principal Automobile

gg Clubs, including America. Omnibus attends Steamers, Hotel
.—^ Porters all Trains. Moderate charges. Motor Garage and
^te Repair Shop. Posting. Telephone No. 246.

^A;.e.ooNiAN hote;l. Inverness. F. STEVEN, Manager. '

DOUGLAS, ISLE OF MAN.

SALISBURY HOTEL,
VICTORIA STREET.

A FIRST-CLASS FAMILY AND PRIVATE HOTEL, close to the Promenade.
-^ Well-Furnished. Large Smoke Rooms, Dining Rooms (separate tables), Drawing
Room, Sitting Rooms, and spacious Bedrooms. Centre of all places of Amusement.

TARIFF :-BED AND BREAKFAST 4/6. FULL BOARD 7/- PER DAY.

LUKE FIELDING, Proprietor,

Telegraphic Address— ** Salisbury, Douglas."

ISLE OF WIGHT.

Rest in Sunshine and Genial Air.

Home for Invalids suffering from Paralysis, Neuritis,

Neurasthenia, and Rheumatoid Arthritis.

Separate House for cases of Nervous Breakdown.

nPHESE diseases, commouly due to overwork and the damp air of

dwelling - houses, receive special treatment by the most recent

methods in a private house facing the sea, and having also a south

aspect. The house is large, stands in its own grounds, is well appointed,

warm, and has the ground air excluded by a cement and wood block

flooring throughout. Physician in daily attendance. Nurse Masseuse

(Norwegian) resident. Ryde is famous for its dustless air and pure

water.

Full Installation of Electro-Therapeutic, Radio-Active, and

Leduc's lonisation Apparatus, etc.

App/y—HAMILTON HOLMES, Rays, Ryde, I.W.
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ROYAL ESPLANADE HOTEL,
RYDE, centre of Isle of Wig^ht Reg^attas.

FACING SEA AND PIER.

Hi^h-Class Family Hotel.

Near Golf Links. Coaching Trips Daily. Moderate Tariff.

No charge for Light, Attendance, or Oarage. Electric Light throughout.
Highly Recommended.

Telegram— **Band, Ryde,** Telephone 493,

DAISH'S HOTEL,
SHANKLIN,

ISLE OF WIGHT.
IDEAL SPOT FOR A HOLIDAY.

Strictly first-class, up to-date Hotel, standing in its own charming grounds, beautifully
situated, with a splendid view of the Downs and Bay. Excellent Cuisine. Choicest
Wines and Moderate ChMrges, combined with every modHrn comfort. Tennis, Bowls,
Croquet, Billiards, and the only American Bar on Ihe Island. Special en Pension and

Week-end arrangements.

Our Omnibus and Carriages meet all Trains. Coaches to all parts start from
the door. French and German spoken. Foreign money exchanged.

Illustrated Tariff on application to the Manager,

JERSEY.

STAR HOTEL.
Facing the Harbour. Family and Commercial. Established over 70 Years.

THE best known Hotel for Tourists in the Channel Islands. The Tariff, 6s. 6d. or

7s. fid. per day (according to room), includes Bed, Breakfast, Luncheon, Dinner,

Attendance, and Lights. No extras. Fishing and Sailing parties arranged. Four-
in-Hand Excursion Cars leave the Hotel twice daily for places of interest. Illus-

trated booklet with full particulars post free. Omnibus meets all boats.

A. RAYNOR SMITH, Proprietor.

JERSEY.

ST. BRELADE'S BAY HOTEL
Old Established Family Hotel.

TRACING SOUTH. Charmingly situated on sea-shore, in

the most beautiful Bay in Channel Islands. Unrivalled

Sea Bathing. Moderate Inclusive Tariff. Special ^Yinter

Terms. Two Golf Links within a mile of Hotel.

A. D. HAEDEN, Proprietor.
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DELIGHTFITL LOUNGE OVER-
LOOKINtJ Tlir -'•' ^

JERSEY.

THE SOMERVILLE,
ST. AUBINS.

«,.^- FOR BRAIN AND NERVE REST. ONEOFTHE
^^^' MOSTBFAUIIMH SPOIS INTHEVvORLD.

PERFECTLY sheltered, standing in its own extensive grounds. Charming terraces,

commanding a view of 40 miles of land and sea. Perfect quiet. Good bathing.
Excellent winter quarters, the temperature comparing favourably with the South of

Europe, without its extremes. Excursion cars leave the door. Write for Illustrated
Descriptive Tariff. Terms en pension, 8s. 6d.. to 10s. 6d.

Reduced Winter Terms. J. W. CHAPMAN, Proprietor.

Perfumer by Royal Appointment to H.M. QUEEN ALEXANDRA
AND H.R.H. THE PRINCESS CHRISTIAN

de FAYE'S
JERSEY

EAU DE COLOGNE.
Original cases, 5/6, 10/6, and 21/-, duty K

carriage free United Kingdom.

RQ.de FAYE,
David Place, Bath Street,

JERSEY, CHANNEL ISLANDS.
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BOARDING ESTABLISHMENT
4.-T LA MOTTE STREET, m^^'

ST. HELIER. ^'
CENTRALLY SITUATED, NEAR SEA,

BATHING, ETC.

HOME COMFORTS.

INCLUSIVE OF BED,
BREAKFAST, LUN-30/- Weekly,

5/- Daily, SSi.^"™
'•^^

Proprietor, Mr. R. LE COMTE.
Highly Recommended.

IMPORT YOUR CIGARS DIRECT!
PEARSON'S WEEKLY says :—" A TWOPENNY Cigar could be bought for a

HALFPENNY if there were no duty!"

JERSEY is a FREE PORT
so SAVE MONEY by importing direct from us.

a^ Special Value-MARCUS SUPERBUS ROTHSCHILDS "^J
Sample box of 25 sent, duty and carriage paid, to any part of U.K. for P.O. 6s.

Equal to any Ad. cigar in England. Price List on Application.

J. F. BELFOED, Tobacconist, JERSEY.
Only Gold Medals, C.I. Exhibitions, 1898 and 1899.

Telegrams— Belford, Jersey. Telephone, No. 53,

By Joseph E. Morris, B. A., in Black's

"Beautiful Britain" Series.

Containing 12 full-page Illustrations iu Colour. Large square Demy 8vo, Boards, with Picture in
Colour on the Cover.

Price Is. 6d. net. {Bi/ Pout la. lOd.)

PUBLISHED BY ADAM AND CHARLES BLACK, 4, 5, & 6 SOHO SQUARE, LONDON, W.
And obtainable of all Booksellers.

THE CHANNEL ISLANDS.

'LAKBS OF KIIiliARNEY.'

{By her late Most Gracious Majesty's Permission.)

THE ROYAL VICTORIA HOTEL (i).
Splendidly Equipped. Exquisitely situated on lower Lake.

Auto-bus attends all trains and coaches. Under the immediate patronage of His
late Majesty King Edward VII. and T.R.H. the Duke and Duchess of Connaught, the
Nobility and Gentry of Great Britain and Ireland, and leading American families.

Official Hotel of A.C. of G.B. and Ireland, Irish A.C., and A.C. de France, and the
Touring Club of America. Apply for Illustrated Brochure to

THE PROPRIETOR.

"IN ROMANTIC BADBNOCH,*'
KINGUSSIE.

DUKE OF GORDON HOTEL.
SITUATED among the Finest Scenery of the Cairngorm Mountains. Entirely rebuilt

and renovated. Three minutes' walk from Kingussie Station, at which all trains
stop. Hotel Porter attends all trains. Parties boarded per week or month. Inclusive
terms on application.

LARGE GARAGE. Oils and Petrol kept.

LAWN TENNIS AND CROQUET GREEN IN HOTEL GROUNDS. BOWLING GREEN.

GOLF COURSE (18 holes) 10 minutes' walk. FISHING, ETC.

Telegrams— MR. AND MRS. W. WOLFENDEN,
•' Wolfenden, Kingussie." Proprietors and Managers.
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LAHINCH, CO. CLARE.

QUIET SPOT OVERLOOKING THE ATLANTIC.

GOLF LINKS HOTEL.
UNDER NEW MANAGEMENT.

FIRST-CLASS. Close to Links (the finest in Ireland). Golf Vouchers
supplied. Sanitation certified perfect. Electric Light throughout.

Hot and Cold Sea and Fresh Water Baths. Lounge. Motor accommoda-
tion, Pit, etc. Moher Clifts and Lisdoonvarna Spas close by.

LANGHOLM, DUMFRIESSHIEE.

20 Miles by Rail and Road from Carlisle.

ESKDALE Temperance HOTEL.
ANGLING AND SUMMER QUARTERS. SALMON, SEA TROUT, HERLINC.

GOLFING FREE TO HOTEL VISITORS.

20 Drives midst lovely Mountain Scenery.

Send for Tariff and Coach . Guide to—
WM. DOUGLAS, E.G., Proprietor.

LARNE HARBOUR (COUNTY ANTRIM).

OLDERFLEET (station) HOTEL
THIS First-Class Hotel, with charming situation facing the sea, has just been re-

decorated and refurnished, and many improvements have been made for Visitors'

comfort, including a handsome Lounge.

One minute's walk from Stranraer Mall Steamers and Railway Station.

Hot and Cold Sea Water Baths in Hotel.

Convenient to Golf Links. Garage with Pit.

HUGH GARRETT, Manager.

LAUNCESTON, NORTH CORNWALL.

WHITE HART
FIRST-CLASS FAMILY AHD COMMERCIAL HOTEL.

Within a few Seconds of the Fine Old Gastle and Beautiful Church.

Good Centre for North Cornwall. Motor Garage. Inspection Pit. Petrol.

POSTING IN ALL ITS BRANCHES.

TeL No. 13. BRENDON PARSONS, Proprietor,
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REGENT HOTEL,
ROYAL LEAMINGTON SPA.

PREMIER HOTEL OF THE MIDLANDS.
STABLING AND LARGE GARAGE.

Remodelled. Refurnished throughout. Electric Light and Lifts installed.

Hot, Cold, and Shower Baths.

Heated throughout during Winter Months.

LEAMINGTON SPA.

CROWN HOTEL
A MOST COMFORTABLE HOTEL, with large Garden, superb Coffee Room, Drawing,
-^ Reading, and Private Sitting Rooms. Perfect Sanitation. Bathrooms on each
floor. Excellent Cuisine. Low-priced Wine List. Moderate Tariff. Motor Pit.

Engineer. The late Clement Scott mentioned in Free Lance a visit paid to the
"Crown." He said : "It is difficult to get me to my rootn, for I have cast envious
eyes on Great-Graiidfather Clocks, Old English Sideboards (beautifully carved), and on
all the old-world treasures of an Inn such as one seldom meets with in these flashy

luxurious days." EDGAR PHILLIPS, Proprietor.

LEAMINGTON SPA.

THE CLARENDON HOTEL.
HIGH-CLASS family Hotel, near Pump-room and Gardens, situated

highest and best part of the Town. Close to trams. Away from

noise. Electric Light. Lift. Garage. Stabling. Special winter terms.

Perfect cooking. English Chef. Telephone 663.

Apply MANAGERESS.

A BEAUTIFUL SOUVENIR OF THE " SHAKESPEARE COUNTRY."

STRATFORD-ON-AVON,
LEAMINGTON AND ^STARWICK.

By DIXON SCOTT.
Containing 12 full-page Illustrations in Colour by Fred. Whitehead. Large

Square Demy 8vo, Boards, with Picture in Colour on the Cover.

Price Is. 6d. net. (By Post Is. lOd.)

This is one of the most inexpensive books that has ever been produced, bin7iging

for the first time a high-class colour-hook withi7i the reach of all.

Published by ADAM & CHARLES BLACK, 4, 5, and 6 Soho Square, Londok, W.

And obtainable of all Booksellers.
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LIMERICK.

CRUISE'S ROYAL HOTEL.
FIRST-CLASS FAMILY and COMMERCIAL.

Moderate Charges. Excellent Cuisine. Headquarters Irish

Automobile and Motor Union Clubs. New Lounge just

added. Bar, Billiards, Smoking Rooms. Electric Light
throughout. Omnibus meets all trains and steamers.

JAiMES FLYNN, Manag-hig Prcprietor.

LliMEKlCK.

ROYAL GEORGE HOTEL.
THIRST-CLASS Family and Commercial. Most Central. Electric

Light throughout. Bedrooms unsurpassed. Comfort. Clean-

liness. Moderate Charges. A new wing added, which includes

23 Bedrooms, splendid Banqueting Room, and Stock Rooms.

Sanitary arrangements perfect. Cook's Coupons accepted.

Splendid Billiard Room. Hot and Cold Baths.

P. HARTIGAN, Proprietor,

LIMERICK.

GLENTlfiTORTH HOTEL.
rPHIS elegant and centrally established HOTEL has been prepared with the greatest
-*- care, and at considerable expense, for the accommodation of Ladies and Gentlemen
visiting Limerick, and possesses the Freshness, Neatness, and General Comfort which
distinguish the best English and Continental establishments.

The Glentworth is the leading HOTEL in the city, and is noted for its moderate
Terms, First-class Cuisine, and Perfect Sanitation.

Omnibus and Staff meet all Trains and Steamers.

Cook's Cov/pons accepted. KENNA BROS., Proprietors.

LIVERPOOL.

LAURENCE'S
COMMERCIAL & FAMILY TEMPERANCE HOTEL,

CLAYTON SQUARE
( Within Three Minutes' Walk of Lime Street and Central Stations^ and

the Chief Objects of Interest in the Town).

CONTAINS upwards of One Hundred Rooms, including Coffee Room, Private
Sitting Rooms, Billiard and Smoke Rooms, Large and Well -Lighted Stock

Rooms.
HEADQUARTERS CYCLISTS' TOURING CLUB.

Telephone—Royal, No. 3729.
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.

LIVERPOOL,
'*THE SHAFTESBURY."
MOUNT PLEASANT.

A HIGH- CLASS TEMPERANCE HOUSE.^ Centrally situated. Quiet and homelike,
j

About four minutes' walk from Lime Street and i

Central Stations, and adjoining Roscoe Gardens,
i

Mount Pleasant Cars from Pier Head and
;

Castle Street (near Tovm Hall and Exchange
!

Station) stop at door of Hotel. Night Porter.
Cab Fare from any Station, Is.

Telegrams :
'• Shaftesbury Hotel, Liverpool." Telephone: 3882 Royal.

LIZARD, CORNWALL.

HOUSEIi BAY HOTEL.
fymS First-Class Hotel commands Magnificent Views of the famous
-*- Lizard Head, and is the only Hotel situated close to the Sea and
beautiful Housel Bay Bathing Beach. Golf, Bathing, Boating, Fishing,

Billiards. Motor Car service to and from Helston Station (G.W.R.).

A BEAUTIFULLY SITUATED FURNISHED BUNGALOW TO LET.

MOTOR GARAGE W^ITH PIT.

Letters and Telegrams to Manager, Housel Bay Hotel ^ Lizard^ R.S.O,

LLANDRINDOD WELLS.

ROCK PARK HOTEL
AND SPA.

Adjoins Strongest Mineral Springs, Baths, and Golf Links.

Near the New Electro-Hydropathic Baths.

The only Hotel situated in own grounds (50 acres).

TENNIS AND CROQUET LAWNS.
Seven miles excellent Trout Fishing reserved and

free for Hotel visitors.
Tlie only private fishing in the neighbourhood. Fishing commences in the Grounds.

SUPPLIES FROM OWN FARM AND GARDENS.
Posting.

Good Selection Carriages.

Motor Accommodation.

Separate Tables.
Excellent Cuisine.

Special attention given to
diet.

Sanitation Perfect. South and South-West Aspect.
MODERATE TARIFF.

Hotel Omnibus meets all Trains. Telegrams :
" ROCK." Telephone : P.O. No. 2.

Tarifffrom R. P. CULLEY & CO., Proprietors,
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LLANDTTDNO, NORTH WALES.

IMPERIAL HOTEL.
Centrally situated on Promenade. Extensive Sea Frontage.

The Tea Lounge (new 1911) and Smoking Balcony, also Ladies'
Lounge, face the Sea.

140 WELL-APPOINTED SITTING AND BED ROOMS
(The greater number of which have Sea and Mountain Views).

Passenger and Luggage Lifts. Central for Golf Links, G.P.O., Pier, and Station.

Electric Light. Night Porter. Motor Garage attached to Hotel.

Private Omnibus. For Illustrated Tariff and other particulars, apply to—

Nat. Tel. No. 6 (2 lines). S. CHANTREY, Proprietor,

Mr. MATTHEW RYAN,
AUCTIONEER, ESTATE AGENT.

(17 years uvith the late Mr. Geo. F. Felton, Auctioneer^ irhose business was
estahlished in Llandudno in 1850.)

Furnished Houses and Apartments Recommended.

For the past 27 years he has been employed on Valuations at leading County
Houses and Hotels throughout North Wales and elseAvhere ; also has arranged some
of the best Sales. Highest references given.

Telephone 173. Augusta Street, LLANDUDNO.
LLANGOLLEN.

THE HAND HOTEL.
T^HIS is one of the most convenient in this Lovely Vale, and

second to none in North Wales for comfort, catering, and
situation. Sixty Bedrooms. Large Private Sitting-Rooms. Electric

Light throughout. Extensive Motor Garage for 30 Cars. Golf.

JAMES S. SHAW, Proprietor.

Telephone No. 7. Address

—

"Hand, Llang-ollen.
"

Visitors to Nortli Wales should not fail to ask at Booksellers for

NORTH WALES
A beautiful and inexpensive souvenir of their visit and an acceptable gift for

their friends.

Price Is. 6d. net (by post Is. lOd.)
Large Square Demy 8vo. With Picture in Colour on the Cover.

Containing twelve full-page Illustrations in Colour.

This is one of the volumes In Black's "Beautiful Britain" series, dealing with some of the most
famous and picturesque parts of the Kingdom. They are the most inexpensive books of this chara'^ter
which have ever been produced, bringing for the first time a high-class colour-book within the reach of
all. Without being guide-books the volumes in each case tell the reader the things that are Morth
knowing and remembering about each place or district.

Published by ADAM & CHARLES BLACK, 4, 5 & 6 SOHO SQUARE, LONDON, W.
And obtainable of all Booksellers.
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PORTSONACHAN, LOCH AWE.

PORTSONACHAN HOTEL.
•THIS Hotel is charmingly situated and easy of access, — only an hour's sail
^ from Lochawe Station (Callander and Oban Railway), where the Hotel
steamer Caledonia makes connection with the principal trains during the season.
Letters delivered twice, and despatched three times daily. Postal, Telegraph, and
Money Order Office in Hotel buildings. Presbyterian and Episcopalian Churches
within easy walking distance of Hotel. Tennis court, beautiful drives, first-class

boats, experienced boatmen. Salmon and Trout Fishing free. Charges moderate.
THOMAS CAMERON, Proprietor.

Originator of the Falls of Blairgour and Glen Nant Circular Tour from Oban.
Telegraphic Address, "CAMERON. PORTSONACHAN."

LOCH AlfiTE HOTEL.
(LOCH AWE STATION—CALEDONIAN RAILWAY.)

PASSENGER LIFT FROM STATION TO HOTEL.

Electric Light throughout. Sanitary Arrangements complete.

Motor Garage with Pit. Petrol. Accumulators charged.

9-Hole Golf Course in vicinity, also Putting Green in Hotel Grounds.
Illustrated Brochure on application.

SALMON AND TROUT FISHING. TENNIS.
S.S. "Countess of Breadalbane" and Steam Launch "Growley" run in connection

with Hotel. D. FRA8ER, Proprietor.

LOCHINVER, SUTHERLANDSHIRE.

CULAG HOTEL.
Good TROUT and FEROX FISHING in Numerous Lochs, FREE.

SALMON ANCLINC ON INYER AND KIRKAIC RIVERS. SEA TROUT.
SEA FISHING EXCELLENT.

ROUTE.—Rail to Lairg, thence daily Mailmotor or Hire ; or MacBrayne's
boat from Glasgow, Oban, Mallaig, etc.

Hotel Motor can meet parties at Invershin on due notice beingr ^iven.

Wires: "Culag, Lochinver." J. R. SKINNER, Proiirietor.

ARDLUI HOTEL.
HEAD OF LOCH LOMOND.

Three minutes' vjalkfrom Steamboat Pier and Ardlui Station, West Highland Railway.

THIS Hotel is beautifully situated amidst unrivalled scenery, and commands a
magnificent view of the Loch. The Hotel has been remodelled and refurnished,

and additions have been made ; the sanitary arrangements are new, and have been
carried out on the most improved principles. Visitors staying at this house will find

every comfort and attendance, with boats and fishing free. Delightful daily tours
can be arranged to Loch Katrine, Loch Awe, Loch Tay, Loch Long, etc. Passengers
travelling South by West Highland Railway change here for Loch Lomond and Loch
Katrine. Parties boarded by week. Special week-end tenns, except in August. Motor
garage. Petrol. Telearama : " Dodds, Akblui," D. M. DODB^y Proprietor.

N.B.—Grand Circular Tour by Rail, Coach, and Steamer daily from Edinburgh
and Glasgow. Further particulars can be obtained at Crianlarich and Ardlui Hotels,
also from the North British and Caledonian Railway Companies' Tourist Guides.
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LOCHMAREE, ROSS-SHIRE, N.B.

THE KINLOCHEWE HOTEL
BEAUTIFULLY situated at the Head of this famous Loch

amidst grand scenery. Visitors at either this or the

Lochmaree Hotel have the privilege of fishing practically the

whole of Loch Maree free.

MOTORS FOR HIRE. POSTING. MODERATE TARIFF.
A. ROBERTSON, Proprietor.

(Under same Management, Lochmaree Hotel, Ross-shire.)

The lochmaree hotel, Ross-shire, N.B.
Patronised by Her Late Majesty Queen Victoria.

"DEAUTIFULLY situated in the centre of the Lochmaree district, and overlooking
-^ Lochmaree, which is unsurpassed for its beauty and grandeur. Sahnon, Sea
Trout, and Trout Fishing free to residents. Boats and first-class boatmen supplied.
Route—Rail to Auchnasheen Station, thence drive; or by Messrs. M'Brayne's steamers
to Gairloch. A coach will await the arrival of Gairloch steamers on being wired for.

Special Boarding terms. Garage and Petrol. Motors for hire. Posting in all its

branches.

Telegrams : Hotel, Lochmaree. ALEX. ROBERTSON, Proprietor.

(Under same Management, Kinlochewe Hotel.)

WESTMINSTER PALACE HOTEL,
LONDON, S.W.

IMMEDIATELY OPPOSITE WESTMINSTER ABBEY AND THE HOUSES OF PARLIAMENT.

A most Convenient Centre for all Places of Historic Interest.

Close to all the Government, Colonial, and Engineering OflQces.

Commodious, Comfortable, Spacious Reception Rooms.
Moderate Tariff, and no charge for Attendance.

Special Week-end and ** En Pension** Terms on Application.

Established over half a century.

HERTFORD HOTEL.
Liverpool Street, King's Cross, W.C.
BEDROOM and BREAKFAST, 4/- .< J^tf/^C^acn.

WITHIN 50 yards of King's Cross Main Line Station. Close to Eiiston and all

London Tubes. Large Dining Room. Smoke Room and Ladies' Sitting Room.
Liberal and First-class Table^

For Tariff, apply the Secretary.
3
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West Central Hotel
FIRST-CLASS HOTEL FOR LADIES AND GENTLEMEN.

ACCOMMODATION FOR ABOUT 200 QUESTS.
Recently Redecorated. Pronounced by the Press the

Best Temperance Hotel in the United Kingdom.

Convenient for City or West-End—Business or Pleasure.

Highly commended by the Rt. Hon. Sir T. Vezey Strong, the Rt. Hon. Sir
T. P. Whittaker, M.P. ; Sir George Toulmin, M.P. ; Sir George White, M.P.

;

Sir John M'Dougall ; Very Rev. the Dean of Carlisle ; Very Rev. the
Dean of Hereford ; the Ven. Archdeacon of Durham ; Robert Cameron, Esq.,
M.P. ; J. S. Higham, Esq., M.P. ; Rev. Dr. Aked ; Rev. Dr. Clifford ; Rev.
Dr. Horton ; Rev. J. H. Jowett, M.A., and thousands of Guests from all

parts of the World.

Excellent Public Rooms. Electric Light. Passenger Lifts.

Apartments, Service & Table d'Hote Breakfast, from 5/
Tariff on application to FREDERIC SMITH & SONS,

SOUTHAMPTON ROW, LONDON.

Messrs. G. G. & T. MOORE,
AUCTIONEERS,

|

VALUERS 6f

SURVEYORS, ESTATE AGENTS

7 LEADENHALL STREET, LONDON.

iVIessrs. iVIOORE
Conduct House Property Auctions [held continuously

tor 77 years\ at the Mart on Thursdays. Special

Attention to the Manag^ement of Houses and Estates,

and letting City Offices and Business Property

generally.
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IVHITE HALIi
RESIDENTIAL HOTELS

(close to the British Museum)

RUSSELL SQUARE, W.C.

9, 10 & 11 BLOOMSBURY SQUARE ISc^SITbE
Telegraph: "TASTEFUL, London." £pom. Table d^hote

-I- , , i f\/- \ i\ r> I
Breakfast,Teat Dinner,

Telephone : 10610 Central. Ughts, and Attendance.

18, 19 & 20 MONTAGUE STREET
Telegraph: " RIPELY, London."
Telephone : 5707 Central.

70, 71 & 72 GUILFORD STREET
Telegraph: " LUGGAGE, London."
Telephone: 9909 Central.

•)

15 & 16 BEDFORD PLACE «

Telegraph: " QJJIVERED, London."
Telephone : 8247 Central.

From 7s« per day

Of 2 Guineas

per week^

4 & 5 MONTAGUE STREET «

Telegraph: "WHITENTIAL, London."
Telephone : 1 1442 Central.

13 WOBURN PLACE = ^ « =

Telegraph: " QUEENHOOD, London."
Telephone: 12491 Central.

22 MONTAGUE STREET ^ -

Telegraph: SIGNOR, London."
Telephone: 7117 Central.

From 6s» dd* per day

\ or 38s* 6d. per

week*

23 & 22 CORAM STREET »

Telegraph: " WAYFARING, London."
Telephone: 13880 Central.

From 6s» per day
or 35s, per
week*
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SUN FIRE OFFICE
(203rd YEAR).

HEAD OFFICE:

63 THREADNEEDLE

STREET, E.G.

FOUNDED 1710

THE OLDEST

INSURANCE

OFFICE IN THE

WORLD.

o
Cop-.ed from Policy dated 1'

BRANCHES.
London, 60 Charing Cross.

„ 332 Oxford Street.

,, 40 Chancery Lane.

,, 42 Mincing Lane.
Birmingham, 10 Bennett's HilL
Potteries (Sub - Branch), 10 Pall Mall,

Hanley.
Brighton, 3 Prince's Place.

Bristol, Clare Street.

Cardiff, 13 Windsor Place.

Swansea (Sub-Branch), 7 & 8 Oxford St.

Ipswich, 45 Princes Street.

Liverpool, 6 Chapel Street.

Manchester, 84 King Street.

Blackbiim (Sub-Branch), Richmond Ter.

Yorkshire—Leeds, 15 Park Row.
„ Hull, Lowgate.

Su&-J5ranci^«s;—Bradford, Market St.

,, ,, Halifax, 15 Commercial St.

,, ,, Huddersfield, St. George's Sq.

,, „ Sheffield, 62 & 64 Fargate.
Newcastle-on-Tyne, CoUingwood Street.
Nottingham, 19 Low Pavement.
Plymouth, 59 Bedford Street.

Southampton, High Street.

Edinburgh, 40 Princes Street.

Aberdeen (Sub-Branch), 46a Union St.

Glasgow, 42 Renfield Street.
Dublin, 9 College Green.
Belfast (Sub-Branch), 38 Rosemary St.

Insurances effected against the following Risks :—
FIRE.

RESULTANT LOSS OF RENT AND PROFITS.

EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY and WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION,

including ACCIDENTS TO DOMESTIC SERVANTS.

PERSONAL ACCIDENT. SICKNESS and DISEASE.

FIDELITY GUARANTEE. BURGLARY. PLATE GLASS.

MODERATE RATES. PROMPT SETTLEMENTS. '

LOSSES BY LIGHTNING ADMITTED UNDER FIRE POLICIES.
APPLICATIONS FOR AGENCIES INVITED.

G. S. Manvell, Manager. Gko. B. Mead, Secretary.
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<< VISITORS TO LONDON."XRANXER'S
First-Class Temperance Hotel, 6, 7, 8, and 9 Bridgewater

Square, Barbican, Ei.C.
Most central for Business or Pleasure. 2 minutes' walk from Aldersgate Street

Station. 6 minutes' walk from St. Paul's Cathedral and G.P.O., and 7 to 10 minutes'
walk from City Temple and John Wesley's Chapel. Night Porter. Established 1859.

Quiet, Home-Like, and Comfortable.
Terms—Bed and Breakfast, 3s. 6d. to 5s., including all charges.

Write for •' How to Spend a Week in London," with Tariff and Testimonials free.

Tdegrams—"Healthiest," London. Telephone—959 Central.
WM. LOSSOCK, Resident Proprietor.

VICTORIA, S.W.

WILTON HOTEL
(Opposite S.E. (& C. and L.B.S.C. Stations),

Specially convenient for Travellers to and from Continent and South Coast Resorts.

ISTell Appointed, and Inexpensive.
VICTORIA is one of the best localities in London for ease of access to the best shops

and places of amusement. Buckingham Palace, Westminster Abbey, Houses of
Parliament, New Cathedral, St. James's, the Green and Hyde Parks, Pall Mall, and
Piccadilly, are all within 5 to 15 minutes' walk, and the principal Theatres within a
Is. Cab Fare or Id. Omnibus ride.

Rooms from 3s. 6d, Full Tariff on application.
Telegrams

—

"Tuffato, London." Telephone—391 Victoria.

~"THE" DEPOSITORY,
22 to 46 and 59 to 63 HARROW ROAD,

FOR REMOVING AND WAREHOUSING

FURNITURE, PIANOS, LUGGAGE, &c.

Special Accommodation for Luggage

Proprietors

Telephone—PADDINGTON 89.

ARTHUR G. DIXON.
HERBERT HAYNES.
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LOOE, CORNWALL.

HEADLAND HOUSE HOTEL.

PRIVATE HOTEL EN PENSION. IMMEDIATELY FACING THE BAY.
SEPARATE DINING TABLES. LOUNGE. SMOKE ROOM.

Excellent Boating. Fishing. Bathing. Motor Garage and Inspection Pit.

Golf Course— Nine Holes. Lawn Tennis and Croquet Club almost adjoining.

Terms per day or mreek. Off-Season Terms hy arrangement.

Apply

—

Proprietress.

LOSSIEMOUTH.

STOTFIEI^D HOTEL.
A PERFECT GOLFER'S RETREAT.

TWO SPLENDID GOLF COURSES (9 AND 18 HOLES).

EXCELLENT BATHING BEACH. MODERATE TERMS.
MAGNIFICENT NEW LOUNGE.

MOTOR CAR ACCOMMODATION. PETROL, Etc., Etc.

Tariff on application to WILLIAM CHRISTIE, Propri€t<yr,

LOUGH SWILLY, CO. DONEGAL.

PORTSALON HOTEL.
THIS excellent Hotel, which affords first-class accommodation and every comfort to

Families, Golfers, and other Tourists, is magnificently situated, with southern
aspect, and commands sea and mountain \iews of matchless beauty. The Golf Links
(18 holes) are most sporting and picturesque. Good lake and sea fishing. Boating,
Bathing, Tennis, Croquet, Billiards, Cycle Store, Garage, Dark Room for Photography,
etc. Route via Strabane and Letterkenny, thence (during summer months) by Hotel
Motor. Telegrams—" Hotel, " Portsalon.

"

Illustrated Brochure on application to MANAGER.



LUTB—LTDFORD—LTNTON 39

LUIB HOTEL
liOCH TAY, GLEN DOCHART, PERTHSHIRE.

BEAUTIFULLY situated on the banks of the River Dochart (wliich has been re-

stocked from some of the best Hill Lochs in the district), surrounded by-

wild, picturesque, and romantic scenery, six miles from the head of Loch Tay,
one mile from Luib Station on the Callander and Oban Railway. Visitors staying
at this Hotel have the privilege of Fishing, Free of Charge, on five miles of one
of the best Salmon Rivers in the West of Scotland, and excellent Trout Fishing on
the River, Loch Dochart, and Loch Tubhair. Boats Free. Golf Course. Every home
comfort, combined with Moderate Charges. Parties Boarded. Posting in all branches.
Post and Telegraph, Luib Stetion.

froprtetor, DONALD M'NAUGHTON.

LYDFORD.

IVlAivoR Hotel.
Tj^IVE minutes from South Western and Great Western Stations. Sheltered situation

on fringe of Dartmoor. 26 Bedrooms. Comfortably furnished. First-class Coffee

and Drawing Rooms. The extensive private grounds of 50 acres include the beautiful

wooded valley and gorge of River Lyd, and celebrated Lydford Waterfall. Tennis

Lawn. Fishing, Rough Shooting. Hotel lighted throughout by Gas. Under personal

management of Proprietress, Mrs. MATHEWS. Newly built Stables. Garage. Ex-

cellent Cuisine. Terms moderate, on application.

LYNTOK
VALLEY OF ROCKS

HOTEL.
Largest and Principal.

Situated in own Grounds.

600 Feet above and facing Sea.

Write for New Illustrated Tariff.

Motor Garage.
J. W. HOLMAN,
Resident Owner.

Telegrams: Holman.
Telephone: No. 49.

LYNTON.

IMPERIAL HOTEL.
Beautifully Situated.

Facing Sea.

Lnxuriotu Lounge newly added.

Blectric Light ttirougbout.

Moderate Terms.

Motor Garage.
Telephone—"^0. 50 Lynton.

J. W. HOLMAN, Owner.
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HALVERN—rGREAT MALYERN—MARGATE.

MALVERN.

THE FOLEY ARMS HOTEL
(PATRONISED BY THE ROYAL FAMILY).

** npHE first time we visited Malvern, wheu siiown into an upper
-L chamber in the 'Foley Arms,' we were literally taken aback.

We can hardly say more than that the prospect struck us as far finer than
from the terrace over the Thames at Richmond, etc., etc."

—

Extract from
article in *^ Blackwood** August 1884.

CJoffee Room and Drawing Room for Ladies and Gentlemen. Table d'Hdte at

Separate Tables. Electric Light. Perfect Sanitary arrangements.

Telephone—No. 197 Malvern. Miss YOUNGER, Proprietress,

MALVERN.

THE ABBEY HOTEL.
IN EXCELLENT SITUATION.

MOST COMFORTABLE FAMILY HOTEL.
New and Commodious Coffee and Smoking Rooms have been

opened, and Suites of Rooms with Private Bath added.

Perfect Sanitary Arrangements, Electric Light throughout.

Telephone, No. 183. W. SCHNEIDER, Manager.

GT. MALVERN.

PORTLAND PRIVATE HOTEL
100 Feet South Front. 2\ Hoursfrom Paddington.

DELIGHTFULLY situated in own grounds in centre of Malvern. Large and
handsome Lounge, Dining Room, Drawing Room, Billiard and Smoke Room,

recently added ; all South Aspect. Near College, Golf Links, Brine Baths, and Manor
Park Croquet and Tennis groundg. Electric Light throughout. Sanitary Certificate.

Illustrated tariff on application.

TEL. 161. BPECIAIi ATTENTION GIVEN TO CUISINE.

DANIEL WOODMAN, Proprietor and Manager.

MAEGATE.

GUFTONVILLE COURT HOTEL
Right on the Sea Front. Best position in Cliftonville. Handsome

Reception Rooms, Dining Hall, and Lounges. Separate Tables. Four Course

Luncheon. Seven Course Table d'Hote Dinner. Newly Decorated. Also at

—

DENBIGH MANSIONS, 58 DENBIGH STREET, VICTORIA, S.W.
(Telephone—2902 Vic).

Telephone—509 Margate. ProprietOTr^W , MACEY.
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Health and Pleasure Resort.

SMEDLEY'S HYDROPATHIC ESTABLISHMENT.
MATLOCK.
Established 1853.

NE of the Largest and Most Complete in the Kingdom. An un-
rivalled Suite of Hydropathic Baths, including an Up-to-date

Installation of Electrical Appliances.

Consultinfi^ and Resident Physicians.
A large Staff (upwards of 60) of Trained Male and Female Nurses,

Masseurs, and Bath Attendants.

Large Winter Garden. Extensive Pleasure Grounds.

MATLOCK GOLF LINKS, 18 HOLES, ABOUT 15 MINUTES' WALK.

Terms—8s. 6d. to i2s. per day inclusive, according: to Bedroom.

No Bxtra Charge tor Turkish and Ordinary Hydropathic Baths,

Illustrated Prospectus on application to

H. CHALLAND, Managing Director.

Telegrams— ^^Smedley's, Matlock Bank." Telephone No. 17.

MELROSE.
Telephone—270. Telegrams—Hamilton's Hotels.

QEORQE AND ABBOTSFORD HOTEL
AND

THE ABBEY HOTEL, ABBEY GATE,
HIGH STREET.

THE only First-class Hotels in Melrose, both overlooking the Ruins, and only
2 minutes' walk from the Railway Station. The Hotel 'Buses attend all Trains.

First-class Horses and Carriages for Abbotsford, Dryburgh, etc., can be had at both
establishments.

Good Garage. Motor Cars for Hire. C. HAMILTON, Proprietor.

MINEHEAD.

WELLINGTON FAMILY HOTEL.
Central for meets of Devon and Somerset Staghounds, West Somerset and other

Packs of Foxhounds, Harriers, &c. Close to Golf Links. Billiards. Hot and Cold
Baths. Good Stabling. Loose Boxes, &c. ^ WESTACOTT, Proprietor.

HEADQUARTERS WEST SOMERSET POLO CLUB.

AVENUE PRIVATE HOTEL.
Stands in own grounds of ^ acre. Within a minute's walk of Station and Sands.

Nearest to Golf Links and Pier. Refurnished throughout.
Apply MANAGERESS.
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MULLION, CORNWALL.

MULLION COVE HOTEL.
OIRST-CLASS Official quarters of Royal Automobile Club. Only Licensed Hotel on

Mullion Coast. Magnificent Sea Views, including whole sweep of famous Mounts
Bay. Splendid Bathing and Fishing, Fine 18-Hole Golf Links, Spacious Lounge.

Electric Light. Book to Helston Station, G.W.R., thence per G.W.R. Motor.

MOTOR GARAGE ^TITH PIT.

Letters and Telegrams to MA'SAGER,MVLIj10^ COVE HOTEL, MULLIOX, R.S.O.

MULLION, CORNWALL.

POLDHU HOTEL.
FIRST Class, close to Sea, commands magnificent views of Mounts

Bay with its grand Cliff Scenery. Good Beach. Excellent

Bathing.

Adjoining splendid Golf Links, 18 Holes.

Tariflf Moderate, Apply Manager.

NEWCASTLE, CO. DOWN.

SLIEVE DONARD HOTEL,
FINEST HOTEIi IN IRELAND.

OWNED AND MANAGED BY BELFAST AND COUNTY DOWN RAILWAY CO.

STANDS IN ITS OWN GROUNDS OF 12 ACRES. Faces Sea and Mourne Mountains ;

Royal County Down Golf Links (18 holes) immediately adjoining. Spacious Reception
Rooms and Lounge ; 120 Bedrooms. Electric Light in all Rooms ; Passenger Lift

;

Hall and Corridors Heated ; Hot and Cold Sea and Fresh Water, and Spray, Needle
and Vapour Baths. Motor Garage,

Tariff on application to W. F. COLLINS, Manager.

Tdegrams: "Slieve, Newcastle, Down."

NEWCASTLE-ON-TYNE.

THE TYNE TEMPERANCE
HOTEL,

HOOD STREET, NEAR TO MONUMENT.
X7I8ITORS will find every comfort combined with moderate charges. Coffee,

Drawing, Commercial, Smoke and Billiard Rooms. Electric Light throughout.

Good Stock Rooms. National Telephone, 2144 Central, Telegrams, "Tyne Hotel."
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OBAN.

GREAT WESTERN HOTEL,
LARGEST AND LEADING HOTEL IN THE WEST HIGHLANDS.

Official Hotel S.A.C., M.U., and Touring Club of America.

Beautifully situated on Esplanade. Electric Light. Elevator. Charges moderate.
Special inclusive rates prior to loth July and after loth September. Illustrated
Taritf Booklet post free. Motor-'Bus meets Trains and Steamers and conveys Visitors
to Hotel Free of Charge. Garage. Petrol.

ALEX. McGregor, Resident Proprietor.

MARINE HOTEL
ESPLANADE, OBAN.

1 min. Pier, 3 mins. Station.

The Largest and Leading Temperance
Hotel. Upwards of 100 Rooms.

Lounge overlooking Bay.

Inclusive Terms throughout the Season.
This High-Class unlicensed Hotel is

one of the most popular houses in Scot-
land, and is well known for its excellent
plain cooking and very moderate tariff.

Booklet Sent.

FRANK WALTON, Frop.

OBAN.

KING'S ARMS HOTEL.
FIRST-CLASS FAMILY AND TOURIST HOTEL

ON the Promenade, midway between Railway Station and Pier. Facing
the Bay. Magnificent Sea View. A. A. & M.U. Headquarters.

Coupons accepted. Rebuilt and enlarged. Boarding. Will be found
replete. Near Golf Course (18 holes). Porters await arrival of all trains

and steamers.
J. M. MacTAVISH, Proprietor and Manager.

OBAN.

PALACE TEMPERANCE HOTEL.
GEORGE STREET, OBAN.

EVERY HOME COMFORT.

BOOTS WAITS TRAIN AND STEAMER.
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OBAN.

CRAIG-ARD HOTEL.
/COMMANDS the finest view of Oban Bay and surrounding scenery.

^ Nearest to Bowling Green and Golf Course. Visitors conveyed to

Hotel free. Private sitting-rooms, ladies' drawing-room, reading-room,

billiard-room. First-class cuisine, wines, etc. Charges strictly moderate.

Boarding by week or month.

Apply D. CAMERON, Manager.

MACKAY'S

—

THE PRINCIPAL TOURIST DEPOT IN OBAN.

Mackay's Guide to Oban and West Highlands. Price 6d. and Is.

Scotsman and Local Press :— " An admirable Guide."
Punch :

—" Most useful of all."

Mackay*s Special Maps and Tartan Books of Views.

Largest Stock of Picture Post Cards, many from own Photographs.

Mackay's Descriptive Register of Furnished Houses, Apartments,

Shootings, and Fishings. Free, Id. Stamp.

CORNER QUEEN'S PARK PLAGE AND CEORGE STREET.

OKEHAMPTON, DEVON.

WHITE HART HOTEL.
(On the Borders of Dartmoor), Main Line L. & S. W. Rly.

MODERATE TARIFF. ELECTRIC LIGHT. 'BUS MEETS TRAINS.
MOTOR CARS ON HIRE.

Posting in all its Brandies. Coaching Trips over Dartmoor.
FISHING (free to Visitors staying in Hotel).

GARAGE (free). HUNTING. BILLIARDS.
Telegrams : JOHN G. HEYWOOD,

"White Hart, Okehampton." Proprietor.

OXFORD.

THE MITRE HOTEL,
SITUATED in the centre of the finest Street in Europe, is

one of the most ECONOMICAL First-Class Hotels in the

Kingdom. Dining, Drawing, Reading, and Smoking Rooms. Lounge

and Spacious Billiard Room. Electric Light. Night Porter. Qood

Stabling.



OXFOEtD. 46

OXFOBD.

RANDOLPH HOTEL,
BEAUMONT STREET,

IN THE CENTRE OF THE CITY.

THE modern Hotel of Oxford, close to the Colleges, Public

Buildings, and opposite Martyrs' Memorial. Replete with

every comfort and convenience.

Handsome Suites of Rooms ; General, Drawing, Smoking,

and Billiard Booms.

NEW GARAGE. AN AMERICAN ELEVATOR. CHARGES MODERATE.
5

A Night Porter in Attendance.

ELECTRIC LIGHT THROUGHOUT.

Address—THE MANAGER.

THREE POPULAR OXFORD HANDBOOKS.
ALDEN'S OXFORD GUIDE.

One Hundred and Forty-Eighth Thousand.

By Edward C. Alden. The Best Handbook for Visitors. Annually revised and
always up to date. Royal 16mo, profusely illustrated, and with a Key-Plan of the
City and University. Paper covers, 6d.net. Postage, 2d. With Appendix, "Old
Oxford," several additional illustrations, and a new Coloured Map, in cloth lettered,
l8. net. Postage, 3d.

By the same Author.
Oblong 4to, in cover of blue and gold. Price Is. net. Cloth, 2s. net. Postage, 3d.

OXFORD

:

HISTORICAL—DESCRIPTIVE—PICTORIAL.
With Notes on Oxford Architecture.

niUBtrated by Ninety Photograplis, reproduced in the Highest Style of Art.
" One of the most useful and interesting books on Oxford that has been published."

—Oxford Timts.

NEAR OXFORD.
A Popular Historical and Architectural Handbook to over One Hundred Places of

interest within about fifteen miles. By the Rev. H. T. Inman, M.A. Royal 16mo,
uniform with Alden's Oxford Guide. With Map and numerous Illustrations, Appen-
dices, Glossary, and Index. Third edition, paper covers. Is. net. Postage, 2d. On
Art paper, cloth lettered, 28. net. Postage, 3d.

Oxford: ALDEN & CO., Ltd., 35 CORN-MARKET STREET.
LOICDON : 8IMPKIN, MARSHALL, HAMILTOV, KBNT AND CO., LTD.
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PEEBLES HOTEL HYDROPATHIC.
THE MOST SUMPTUOUSLY APPOINTED ESTABLISHMENT

OF THE KIND IN GREAT BRITAIN.

600 feet above Sea-Level.

Lovely Scenery.

Pure Bracing Air.

Delightful Gronnds.

Pine Woods adjoining.

Golf, Tennis, and
Bowling Greens.

Excellent Roads for

Motoring and Cycling.

Charming Walks and

^^1 ^ l-^ 11 i.-.oTTi r.
Drives in the famous

GOLF.—ilxcellent 18-Hole Course near. WALTER SCOTT Country.

MOTOR GARAGE. MOTORS ON HIRE. EXCURSIONS DAILY.

A complete installation of all the latest BATHS and
ELECTRICAL TREATMENT. RESIDENT PHYSICIAN.

Send for Illustrated Tariff to A. M. THIEM, Manager.

PENRITH.

THE GEORGE HOTEL
FAMILY AND COMMERCIAL.

rjlHIS Hotel is the largest, and occupies the most central position in Penrith. It is unrivalled for it*

X comfort, excellent cuisine, and moderate charges. It contains a large number of single and double-
bedded rooms, handsomely furnished, and arranged to afford Visitors travelling on business or pleasure
every convenience and home comfort. Spacious Coffee Room for Ladies and Cfentlemen, Ladies' Draw-
ing Room, Private Sitting Rooms, Dining, and Writing Rooms ; also large Assembly Room for Balls.

Banquets, etc. Certified Sanitation. Posting in all its branches, including Ladies' Hacks, Pony
Carts, etc. Coaches run from this Hotel daily, in connection with the Ullswater Steamer, during the
Summer Months. Delightful Drives amidst magnificent scenery. Up-to-date Garage on the premises.
'Bus meets all Trains. Night Porter. Headquarters of the Royal Automobile Club of G.B. and I.

Automobile Association and Motor Union, Motor Club, Auto-Cycle Union, and Cyclists' Touring Club.

FRED. ARMSTRONG, Proprietor.

PENZANCE.

MOUNT'S BAY HOTEL.
FIRST-CLASS FAMILY.

On the Esplanade. Facing the Sea. Full South Aspect.

Ladies' Coffee and Drawing Rooms. Smoke Room, for Visitors only,

with Grand Sea View. Moderate and Inclusive Terms for Winter Months.

'Bus meets Trains. Boating, Fishing, and Bathing.

WALTER N. PULMAN, PropriMor.
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SALUTATION HOTEL,
PERTH.

FIRST-CLASS HOTEL.
Official Hotel Automobile Club.

Fishin^r. Boatins:. Qolfing.

PERTH.

GRAND HOTEL.
(TEMPERANCE.)

FIRST "CLASS FAMILY, TOURIST, and COMMERCIAL HOTEL.
(UNDER NEW MANAGEMENT.)

OPPOSITE G.P.O. ALL CARS PASS DOOR.

EXCELLENT CUISINE. MODERATE CHARGES.
Terms—MISS LAMPARD, Manageress.

"THE PITLOCHRY HYDRO-HOTEL,"
PITLOCHRY, PERTHSHIRE.

'* The Switzerland of Scot/and,**

A First-Class Family HoteL
standing in its own extensive ornamental

-irounds on the Moulin Road high above the
-i \illage. Every window commands a view of the

j

most magnificent Highland Scenery. Southern
aspect. Sandy soil.

" The finest Bracing Mountain Air
in Scotland,"

Said Sir Andrew Clark, Queen's Physician.

Tennis. Two Golf Courses. Croquet. Bowling.

'Phone 35. Telegrams—"Comfort, Pitlochry."
Fishing. Coaching. Moderate inclusive Terms. Manageress-Mrs. MEIKLB.

PLYMOUTH.

DUKE OF CORNWALL HOTEL.
SPACIOUS COFFEE AND DRAWING ROOMS.

HOT AND COLD BATHS. BILLIARD AND SMOKING ROOMS.
OTIS PASSENGER & LUGGAGE LIFTS. TELEPHONE 735.

Latest Sanitary Improvements. Electric Lls^ht.

Table d'H6te daily.

N.B.—This Hotel is the most commodioua and convenient in Plymouth. It is

distant only five minutes' walk from the DOCKS, and from the business centre of
the Town. Opposite the G.W.R. Station, Millbay.

Telegraphic Add/ress—" DUKOTEL, PLYMOUTH."



48 P0RTRU8H PORTSMOUTH (see also p. 52) RAM8GATE.

PORTRUSH, CO. ANTRIM.

NORTHERN COUNTIES HOTEL
(OWNED BY THE MIDLAND RAILWAY CO.)

FINEST GOLF LINKS IN IRELAND.
SPLENDID SUITES OF SEA AND FRESH WATER BATHS.

Electric liight throughout. Garage for Motors.
Lounge Hall. Magnificent Ballroom,

Telegraphic Address—" MIDOTEL, PORTRUSH." Telephone No. 14.

Full particulars on application to

F. AUDINWOOD, Manager, Northern Counties Committee's Hotels, etc,

PORTSMOUTH.

(TEMPERANCE)
FAMILY AND COMMERCIAL HOTEL, opposite town station.

(Book for Portsmouth Town).

Every accommodation for Commercial and Private Visitors.

NIGHT BOOTS. RESTAURANT.
ALFRED QRIQSBY, Proprietor,

RAMSGATB,
Telephone 306.

Best Fishing: on
the Coast.

Agent B.S.A

%^^
ft\i^

«^M vi^
SPECIAL TARIFF

FOR ANGLERS.
(Opposite the Harbour.)

_ GOOD COMFORTABLE HOUSE.
FAMILY & COMMERCIAL. TEA, BED, AND BREAKFAST, 5/-

GOOD STOCK ROOMS.
3 Minutes from Rail. Trams pass door.

RAMSGATE

HOUSE AND ESTATE AGENTS.
Messrs. VINTEN & SON,

72 HIGH STREET, RAMSGATE.
ESTABLISHED 60 YEARS.

Register Gratis. All the Best Houses.
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ROSSLARE.
The beautiful Irish port on the shortest sea passage.

THE ROSSLARE STRAND HOTEL
(The nearest Hotel to Rosslare Harbour).

On the picturesque Strand, four minutes' walk from Rosslare Strand
Station, is unrivalled for position, comfort, and moderate charges.

Promenade roof with charming views. Hot and Cold Fresh and Sea
Water Baths. Hotel Telegraph and Postal Offices. Golf Links. Under
the personal supervision of ^^ ^ j KELLY, Proprietor.

ROSTREVOR, Co. DOWN.
THE GREAT NORTHERN HOTEL.

{Ovmed and managed by the Great Northern Railway Co.^ Ireland.)

Beautifully situated on Carlingford Lough. Luxuriously fitted

and furnished, and lighted by Electricity throughout. Sea and

Fresh Water Baths. Motor Accommodation.

For terms, apply to the Manager at the Hotel.

1912 Telegraphic Address

—

"Northern Rostrevor."

ROTHESAY.

QUEEN'S ^m. HOTEL.
A FIRST-CLASS FAMILY HOTEL.

ON WEST BAY.
HEADQUARTERS OF ROYAL NORTHERN YACHT CLUB.

All Public Rooms overlook Bay, Large Gardens behind,

MODERATE CHARGES. EXCELLENT CUISINE.
Telephone No. 58. Miss THOMPSON, Proprietress.

" An important addition to the literature of Sea-Fishing."

SEA=FISHINQ
By C. 0. MINCHIN,

Containing 32 Illustrations in the Text, mostly from
Original Sketches by J. A. Minchin.

LARGE PRICE 3s. 6d. NET BOUND
CROWN 8vo. (By Post, 3s. lod.) IN CLOTH.

" Sea-Fishing is a very essential book."

—

Evening Standard and St. James's Gazette.

"A very instructive, readable volume with information abreast of modern know-
ledge."

—

Spectator.

Published by ADAM & CHARLES BLACK, 4, 5, & 6 Soho Square, London, W.
And obtainable through any Bookseller.

4
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SALCOMBE.

MARINE HOTEL.
THE PRINCIPAL HOTEL.

A LL the comforts of a Private Residence. Delightful Gardens and
-^^ Sea Views. Excellent Yachting Resort. Golf. Billiards. Garage

with Inspection Pit. Winter Season.

Telegrams: '' Marine, Salcombe." __ . _ — . .->,.^_^ ,^
Telephone: 2 Salcombe. ^^^' J" ^' TUCKER, Manager.

ST. FILLANS, PERTHSHIRE.

DRUMMOND ARMS HOTEL.
FIRST-CLASS FAMILY AND TOURIST HOTEL.

SPLENDIDLY SITUATED AT THE FOOT OF LOCH EARN.
GOLF. FISHING. BOATING. POSTING. GARAGE.

TERMS MODERATE.
TELEGRAMS—Hotel, St. Fillans. R. A. CAMPBELL, Proprietor.

In connection with Station Hotel, Oban.

SCARBOROUGH.
~~~~

ST. AUBYN'S
Boarding House, New Queen Street.

NEAR SEA, GARDENS, TENNIS, GOLF.
VERY COMFORTABLE, GOOD CATERING, PERSONAL

SUPERVISION. MODERATE TERMS.
G. WILKINSON.

theIukeries and1her¥ood forest,

HOP POLE HOTEL,
OLLERTON, NOTTS.

OCCUPIES finest Hotel site in the district, with commanding view of^ Forest. On main road from Grantham to Doncaster and North through

Dukeries district. Best centre for Motorists visiting Welbeck, Clumber,

Southwell, Chatsworth, Newstead, Lincoln, etc. Official Headquarters

to R.A.C. Large lock-up Garage. S.P. Petrol and Oils.

A. NAISH, Proprietor.
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1

SLIGO.
VICTORIA HOTEL.

Patronised by His Excellency The Lord'Lieutenant {Barl Dudley),
the Nobility, and Gentry,

TOURISTS, Anglers, and Families will find every comfort, combined
with cleanliness and moderate charges. Private Sitting-Rooms.

Baths—Hot, Cold, and Shower. Golf. Billiards. Posting in all its

branches. Omnibus attends all trains. Gentlemen staying at this Hotel
have the privilege of Free Fishing for Salmon and Trout on Lough Gill and
River Bonnet. Cook's Coupons accepted. Garage, j. a. HALL, Proprietor.

SOUTHAMPTON. (HULSE EOAD.)

BALMORAL MANSIONS HOTEL
OVERLOOKING HAMPSHIRE COUNTY CRICKET GROUND.

Delightfully situated amidst beautiful gardens in the healthiest residential part
of Southampton.

MODERATE INCLUSIVE TERMS—
Table d'hote Breakfast, Bed, Attendance, and Light, 4[/6, 5/-, 5/6.

Per Day, 7/6, 8/-, 9/-, 10/-. Per Week, 42/-, 45/6, 52/6, 63/-.

Telephone: 1108. Telegrams : Pension, Southampton.
Also under the same Management—

WHITEHALL PENSION, 17 Carlton Crescent, Southampton.

SOUTHAMPTON, NEW FOREST, AND SOUTH HANTS.

WALLER & KING, F.A.I.
AUCTIONEERS, VALUERS, HOUSE, LAND, AND

ESTATE AGENTS.
THE AUOTIOIM MART, SOUTHAMPTON.

(Business Established 1819.)

Nat, Telephone No. 230, Telegrams: ** Auctioneers, Southampton,**

Recognised as the LEADING AGENTS in the above Important Area.

SOUTHPORT—BIRKDALE PARK.

SMEDLEY HYDROPATHIC.
Electric Lift. Attractive Lounge. Electric Light.

New Ball Room recently opened.

WELL adapted for Summer or Winter residence, for either Invalids or Visitors.

Terms from 7s. 6d. per day. (Summer terms from June 1 to Sept. 30.) Turkish,
Russian, Plunge, and other Baths. Electric Cars run from the Hydro to Southport
every 15 minutes.

Hydropathy fully treated, wider own Physician, J. G. G. Corkhill, M.D.

NEAR GOLF LINKS. LAIBTN TENNIS, BILLIARDS, ETC.
For Prospectus, apply Manageress.
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SOUTHSEA
(ADJOINING PORTSMOUTH.)

'

QUEEN'S HOTEL
THE LARGEST HOTEL IN SOUTHSEA.

STRICTLY FIRST-CLASS, FINELY SITUATBD. FACING THE SEA,

HEADQUARTERS OF AUTO ASSOCIATION, MOTOR UNION, AND ROYAL
AUTOMOBILE CLUB.

EXCELLENT CUISINE.
Replete with every modern comfort and convenience.

Self-Contained Suites.

NIGHT PORTER. GARAGE. GRILL ROOM.
ELECTRIC lilGHT. ELEVATOR.

PICTURESQUE OLD GARDEN.
Telegraphic Address—" Queen's Hotel, Southsea." miSS HILDA WOODS
Telephone—National No. 172 Portsmouth.

Manaqeres^

{Nearest Stationy Portsmouth Town.)
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STIRLING.

IBTAYERIiEY HOTEIi,
MURRAY PLACE.

(HIGH-CLASS TEMPERANCE.) Established over Half-a-Century.

REMODELLED AND REDECORATED.
FOR FAMILIES, TOURISTS, AND BUSINESS GENTLEMEN.

FIRST-CLASS RESTAURANT IN CONNECTION.
COOK'S COUPONS ACCEPTED. CHARGES MODERATE.

Telephone 287. Motor Garage, Officially Appointed by Scottish Automobile Club.

Electric Light throughout. P. M<=ALPI!N"E, Proprietor.

^TR^ATHPEFFE^ SPA.

BALMORAL HOTEL,
FIRST-CLASS PRIVATE HOTEL.

QITUATED on the hill, commanding a tine view, with Southern exposure ; close to

l^ the Mineral Wells, Baths, and Golf Course. Public Dining-Room (separate tables)

and Drawing-Room. Private Parlours . Large Smoking-Room. Terms on application.

ELECTRIC LIGHT. Mrs. DUNNET, Proprietrix.

STRATHPEFFER.

SPA HOTEL.
Patronised by Royalty.

THE OLDEST-ESTABLISHED AND LEADING HOTEL.
Highest and Finest Situation. Salmon and Trout fishing on Blackwater and Conon,

and Lochs Garve and Luichart. Cricket. Tennis. Croquet. Close to fine 18-hole Golf
Course. Contains Spacious Public Rooms, Private Apartments en suite. Recreation
and Ball Rooms, Conservatories, and is secluded enough to ensure to visitors the
Privacy and Quiet of an ordinary Country Residence. Electric light throughout.
Reduced terms for Spring and Autumn months. Posting in all its branches.

Garage. Motor Cars on Hire, and Petrol, etc., supplied.
Telegrams—" Wallace, Strathpeflfer."

SUTHERLAND.

SGOURIE HOTEL SUTHERLANDSHIRLJ
SITUATED on West Coast, amidst finest Highland Scenery, and close to Handa

Island, with its magnificent cliffs and extensive bird life. Unsurpassed in British
Isles. Excellent Brown Trout Fishing on over 40 Loclis ; also good Sea Trout and
Sea Fishing. 15 Boats kept,

GOOD SEA BATHING. MOTOR AND HORSE HIRING.
Telegraphic communication. Route : Rail to Lairg, thence per daily or special Motor,
or MacBrayne's weekly Steamer from Glasgow to Badcall, 3 miles distant.

M. E. ROSS, Proprietor.
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SYMONDS^ YAT (near Ross-on-Wye).

ROYAL HOTEL.
FAMILY AND TOURIST.

THIS spacious and newly decorated Hotel is delightfully situated close

to Station and the Wye, between Koss and Monmouth, in the midst
of the most beautiful scenery.

Billiards. Salmon and Trout Fishing. Boating. Stalactite Caves.

Telegrams : Royal symonds. Lesscc undcT the Crown^ H. C. BAUMGARTE.

TENBY.

THE C060URG HOTEL.
FIRST-CLASS, with Modern Improvements. Delightfully situated, com-

manding picturesque views of the North Bay, with Private Lawn on Clitf.

Spacious Lounge. Noted for best English food and cooking. Private Garage
with Pit. On the official list of the R.A.C.

Also Royal Hotel) Bath.
Telephone: 9, Tenby. j^j^g J j^ HUGHES, Proprietress.

TORQUAY. TORQUAY.
HOUSE AGENTS,

AUCTIONEERS, VALUERS, ETC.

SMITH & SON, A.A.I.,
9 STRAND, TORQUAY. Established 1867.

niustrated Register of all available Houses post free.

Also Special Lists of Apartments. Telephone 14.

"
TORQUAY.

HOUSE 81 ESTATE AGENTS,
AUCTIONEERS, SURVEYORS, VALUERS, ETC.

COX & SON,
(W. WILKINSON COX, F.A.I., C. M. MYOTT, A.A.I.)

8 STRAND.
Established 1805. Illustrated Property List on application.

Telegrams : "Cox & Son, Torquay." Nat. TeL No. 8.
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TORQUAY (DEVONSHIRE). Hesketh Crescent.

OSBORNE HOTEL
Unrivalled Position overlooking Meadfoot Beach. South aspect, completely sheltered

from North ami Kast winds. Superb Sea and Land Views.
A First-Class Hotel, standing in private grounds, recently enlarged and modernised,

vrith 20 extra South rooms added. New Suites on Ground and other Floors.

New Lounge, Reading, W^riting and Billiard Rooms.
ELECTRIC LIFT TO ALL FLOORS. ELECTRIC LIGHT.

Latest system of heating and hot-ivater service.
TENNIS AND CROQUET LAWNS. GOLF. SAFE BATHING AND BOATING.
Telegraphic Addi-ess :

" OSBONOTEL." E. E. WESTAWAY, Managing Director.

Telephone : No. 183. Carnages and Motors on hire. Garage witn pit.

TROSSACHS.
STRONACHLAGHAR HOTEL,

HEAD OF LOCH KATRINE.
DONALD FERGUSON, Proprietor.

THIS Hotel, the only one on the shores of Loch Katrine, is most

beautifully situated in the heart of ROB KOY'S Country;

GLENGYLE and the romantic GRAVEYARD of CLAN
GREGOR, both described at page 77 of "Perthshire Guide/'

being in close proximity ; and as a fishing station it is unsurpassed.

Excellent boats and experienced boatmen are kept for parties staying

at the Hotel

The Hotel is replete with every comfort, and is reached either by way of

Callander and Trossachs and the Loch Katrine Steamer, or by the Loch
Lomond Steamer and Coach from Inversnaid, there being a full service of

Coaches and Steamers by both these routes during the season.

Post and Telegraph Office in Hotel.

BOARD BY WEEK OR MONTH.
Carriages and other Conveyances kept for Hire.

Address : STRONACHLACHAP, by Invprsnaid.

TRURO.

RED LION HOTEL.
Established 1671.

Birthplace of Foote the Tragedian. Centre of City. Close to Cathedral.

Table d'Hdte Dinner 7.30.

Motor Oarage. Telephone No. 99.

Ma7iageress~~Um^ CARLYON.
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TUNBRIDGE WELLS.

THE SPA HOTEL,

TURKISH,
RADIANT,
HEAT, and
SWIMMING
BATHS.

THE FAVOURITE HOTEL OF WORDSWORTH.

PATTERDALE HOTEL,
ULLSWATER, PENRITH.

BEAUTIFULLY situated in own grounds near the head of Ullswater, an excellent

centre for many charming walks and climbs ; Helvellyn, Aira Force, and Kirk-
stone Pass are within easy distance. The Hotel adjoins Post and Telegraph Office,

and is near the Church.

POST HORSES AND COMFORTABLE CARRIAGES.
Misses HUDSON, Proprietresses.

A Beautiful Souvenir of England's Lake District.

THE ENGLISH LAKES
BY GORDON HOME.

In Black's "Beautiful Britain " Series. Containing 12 full-page Illustrations

in Colour. Large Square Demy 8vo, Boards, with Picture in Colour on the Cover.

Price Is. 6d. Net. {By Post Is. lOd.)

This book is one of Messrs. A. and C. Black's new Colour Series, the various volumes of whioli

deal with some of the most famous and picturesque parts of the kingdom. Without being guide-
books they tell the reader the things that are worth knowing and remembering about each place or
district.

Published by ADAM AND CHARLES BLACK, 4, 5, & 6 Soho Square, London.
It
And obtainable of all Booksellers.
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VISIT THE KERRY HIGHLANDS,

VALENCIA, CO. KERRY.
40 miles by rail west of Killarney and 16^ hours from London by the G. W. Railway

Fishguard and Rosslare Route.—Over the most magnificent scenery in the British

Isles—Situate on the Grand Atlantic Route— Railway Station, Valencia Harbour.

ROYAL HOTEL, YALENCIA.
THIS Hotel has been i^atronised by Their Most Gracious Majesties The King

and Queen and T.R.H.s the Duke and Duchess of Connaught.
This Hotel is now considered one of the most comfortable and modern in the

Country—Hot and Cold Sea-Water Baths pumped daily from the Atlantic—Bathing,
Boating, and first-class Sea Fishing in front of the Hotel—The Atlantic Cables
connecting the Old and New World can be seen in full operation.

The scenery on Valencia is considered some of the finest in Ireland—Lord John
Manners, in his interesting Notes, says, "No words can describe the fascination
of the scene from the cliffs at Valencia "

; and Lord Tennyson, on the occasion of his

last visit to Valencia, wrote that "He found there the highest waves that Ireland
knows. Cliffs that at one spot rise to a height of 800 feet. Tamarisks and fuchsias
that no sea winds can intimidate.

"

There is a very pretty 9-hole Golf Course near the Hotel. Terms very moderate.
Posting attached. Comfortable boats and steady boatmen.

WARRENP0INTrCo7D0WNr
THE GREAT NORTHERN HOTEL.

Owned and managed by the Great Northern Railway Company (Ireland).

Fine Position at the head of Carlingford Lough. Sea and Fresh

Water Baths (hot or cold). Electric Light.

MOTOR ACCOMMODATION.
For terms, apply to the Manager at the Hotel.

1912 Telegraphic Address— ** Northern Warrenpoint. "

*' A real friend in need to the aspiring freelance journalist or author."

THE WRITERS' AND ARTISTS' YEAR BOOK, 1912
A Directory for Writers, Artists, and Piioto^rapiiers.

Crown 8vo, Limp Cloth. Price Is. net. {By Post, Is. 3d.)

"This little shilling book is to those who make their living by writing one of the
most useful of Messrs. A. & C. Black's periodical publications ... a real friend in

need to the aspiring freelance journalist or author."

—

The Times.

"A reliable guide for all who wish to lind a market for their literary and artistic
wares, either in Great Britain or America."

—

Young Man.

PUBLISHED BY A. & C. BLACK, 4, 6, & 6 SOHO SQUARE, LONDON, W.,

and obtainable of all Booksellers.
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WEMYSS BAY.

WEMYSS BAy'"hYDROPATHIC,
SKELMORLIE, N.B., p.rxS^'oJ^c^i.yde.

50 minutes from Glasgow. On Skelmorlie Heights, overlooking the most beautiful
and varied Scenery on the Clyde.

MOST COMPLETE ELECTRO-MEDICAL INSTALLATION. RECOMMENDED BY PRINCIPAL PHYSICIANS.
10-0 a.m. Direct Corridor Express from LONDON (Euston) arrives WEMYSS BAY at 8-30 p.m.

Centre for all Toura and Excursions. 'Bus meets all Tmins.

Tel. : 88 Wernyss Bay. Dr. PHILP, Proprietor (late of Glenburu and Dunblanet.

GREAT YARMOUTH.
The Leading Family Hotels:—

THE QUEEN'S, tkl. no. 28.

Fine New Lounge. New Motor Oarage. 125 Rooms. Electric Light.

THE ROYAL, tel. no. 26.

Winter Garden and Lounge. Electric Light. 100 Rooms. Select Position.

HOTEL VICTORIA, tkl. no. 205
Ideal Select Position South End of Parade. Lift. Electric Light.

THESE THREE
FIRST-CIiASS FAMILY HOTELS.

EACH OCCUPYING A COMMANDING POSITION ON THE
MARINE PARADE

WITH
MAGNIFICENT SEA VIE^¥S,

AND OPPOSITE THE BEACH GARDENS.
Now under the Proprietorship of 'HT. NIGHTINGALE.

Illustrated Tariffs Post Free.



RAILWAYS. 59

FURNESS RAILWAY.

(CONISTON FROM BEACON CRAGS.)

20 Rail, Coach, and Steam Yacht

TOURS THROUGH LAKELAND
EVERY WEEK-DAY

From Whitsuntide to September 30th.

The following Tours embrace the chief places of interest in the
Lake District.

No. I.—Outer Circular Tour, embracing Windermere Lake, Fnrness Abbey, and
Coniston.

No. 2.—Inner Circular Tour, embracing Furness Abbey, Coniston Lake,
and Crake Valley.

No. 4.—Middle Circular Tour, embracing Windermere Lake, the Crake Valley,
and Coniston Lake.

No. 5.—Red Bank and Qrasmere Tour, via Ambleside and Skelwith Force.
No. 10.—Round the Langdales and Dungeon Qhyll Tour, via Ambleside,

Colwith Force, Grasmere, and Rydal.
No. 13.—Five Lakes Circular Tour, viz.—Windermere, Rydal, Qrasmere,

Thirlmere, and Derwentwater.
No. 14.—Wastwater Tour, via Seascale, and Gosforth. Churchyard Cross, a.d. 680.

No. 15.—Six Lakes Circular Tour, viz.—Windermere, Rydal, Qrasmere,
Thirlmere, Derwentwater, and Ullswater.

No. 16.—Duddon Valley Tour, via Broughton-in-Furness, Ulpha, and Seathwaite.
No. 20.—George Romney's Early Home (1742 to 1755), Walney Bridge and

Island, and Furness Abbey Tour, via Sowerby Wood.
For further particulars see the Company's Illustrated Tours Programme, to be had

gratis at all Furness Railway Stations ; from Mr. A. A. Haynes, Superintendent of

the Line, Barrow-in-Furness ; and at the Oflfices of Messrs. Thos. Cook & Son ; also

at the principal Bookstalls.

Dl AOI^Dnni AND I AI^CC I" connection with the Company's Paddle
DLHUlVrUUL THE LHIVCO steamers 'Lady Evelyn' & 'Lady Moyra.'

Every Week-day from Whitsuntide to September 30tb.
THE OUTER CIRCULAR TOUR

(This Combination provides an ideal Day's Pic-nic Tour), by Sea, Rail, Lake, and Coach,
embracing Furness Abbey, Windermere Lake and Coniston.

ALFRED ASLETT,
Babju>w-iN'Furn]CS8, Ap'ril 1912. Secretary and General Manage.
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TOURS IN REAL PICTURESQUE WALES.

THE CORRIS RAILWAY.
Trips by Train, Coach, and Motor.

The Popular Route to
CADER IDRIS AND TALYLLYN LAKE.

How do you spend your Holiday?

If you v/^isli for

Fishing, Mountaineering,
Exploring,

Driving or Walking.
The Corris District Caters for All.

Grand New Circular (|}}°|) Tour, Corris & Dolgelley

Yia Talyllyn Lake.

From Aberystwyth, Borth, Aberdovey, Machynlleth, Corris,

Towyn, Barmouth, and Dolgelley.

'THIS trip embraces all the superb scenery of the Cardigan Bay Coast,
-^ Gader Idris, Talyllyn Lake, and the beautiful Dolgelley Valley.

Inclusive Fares, 3rd Class, 5/- 1st Class, 6/6.

THE FINEST COACH TOURS IN WALES.

Don^t omit to t^isit

The Picturesque Corris Valley,

Cader Idris,

Talyllyn Lake and Dolgelley.

Write for further particulars and Illustrated Booklet to

J. J. O'SULLIVAN, General Manager,
Corris Railway,

Machynlleth, North Wales.
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GREAT WESTERN RAILWAY.
BEST ROUTE TO

Bath, Bristol, Exeter, Plymouth, North and South Devon, Cornwall, Birmingham,
Midland Counties, North and South Wales, Ireland, etc.

EXPRESS TRAINS between LONDON (Paddington Station)

AND JHOUBS. AND
1

HOURS. AND
1

HOURS. AND HOUKB.

Bristol . .

Weymouth
Exeter . .

Torquay

in' 2

3

Plymouth . in 4hs.7ms.
Penzance . ,. ! 6i
Oxford . . „ H
Worcester. ,, 2^

Leamington .in
I li

Birmingham . ,, 2
Wolv'hampt'n ,,

j

2^

Shrewsbury . ,, |
3

Chester . in
Birkenhead, „
Cardiff. . „
Swansea . „ 4

Corridor Carriages with reserved Compartments for Ladies, Smoking Saloons and Lavatory Compart-
ments of each class, are run on the Express Trains.

ROAD and RAIL MOTOR CAR SERVICES
in many parts of the country.

DIRECT ROUTE to DOVER and the CONTINENT via READING.
Express Services between Liverpool, Birkenhead, Chester, Birmingham, Leamington, Malvern, Wor-

cester, Oxford, Plymouth, Exeter, Bristol, Cardiff, Hei-eford, Cheltenham, Gloucester, etc., and Dover,
Hastings, Canterhiuy, Ramsgate. Margate, Folkestone, Paris, Brussels, Cologne, Bale, etc.

Through Carriages between Birkenhead and Dover, avoiding London.

CHANNEL ISLANDS, VIA WEYMOUTH OR SOUTHAMPTON.
The Steamboat Service betweemWeymouth and the Channel Islands and Southampton and the Channel

Islands is carried on jointly by the Great Western and London and South-Western Railway Companies.
For full particulars see Time-book.

IRELAND, via FISHGUARD.
Day and Night Services by shortest Sea Passage (2| hours). New Turbine Steamers.

Express services in connection to and from Waterford, Cork, Killaraey, and the principal places in the
south and west of Ireland.

Through Express Service between the West of England, Bristol, and Birmingham, Wolverhampton,
Shrewsbury, Chester, and Birkenhead, via Cheltenham and Stratford-on-Avon.

Through Express Trains by the Shortest and Best Route between WEST OF ENGLAND
(via Severn Tiinnel), Swansea, Cardiff, Newport, and other Stations in South

Wales, and Liverpool, Manchester, Lancashire and Yorkshire Districts.

And all the Principal Towns in the North of England and Scotland.

EXCURSION, TOURIST AND OTHER PLEASURE TRAFFIC.
During the fSeason the Threat Western Company supply gratuitously programmes of Tourist arrangements,

and Passengers are thereby enabled to secure valuable and reliable infonuation as to Fares, Routes, Convey-
ances, etc. Winter Tourist Tickets are issued to Bath, Torquay, Paignton, Fowey, Newquay, Truro,
Falmouth, Helston, St. Ives, Penzance, Tenby and certain other Health Resorts. Pleasure Party Tickets at
Reduced Rates are issued during the Summer months, and special arrangements made for the conveyance of
Football Parties, Cricketers, etc. Excursion Trains are run during the Season between the Principal
Stations on Great Western Railway.

Passengers' Luggage Collected and DeliTered in Advance at Is. per Package.

BREAKFAST, LUNCHEON, AND DINING CARS for 1st and 3rd Class Passengers.

LUNCHEON BASKETS can be obtained at the Principal Stations. Hot or Cold Luncheons, with
bottle of beer Ss. ; without beer 28. 6d.

TEA BASKETS, containing Pot of Tea or Coffee, Bread and Butter, and C*ke or Bun, for one
person, Is. ; Tea Basket for two persons, Is. 6d.

Hotels under the Management of the Qreat Western Railway Company.
Great Western Royal Hotel, Paddingtow Station ; Tregenna Castl* Hotel, St. Ives, Cornwall

;

Fishguard Bay Hotel, Goodwick, Psmbkokeshirb.
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IDEAL-

HOLIDAY
RESORTS.
(SEASIDE &

INLAND.)

I
ON DON

OUTH-

BOTJRNEMOUTH.
Sonthamptoru
New Forest.
Swanage.
Lyme Regis.
WEYMOUTH.
Eeaton.
Sidmouth.
Lee-on-the-Solent.
Soathsea.
ISLE OF WIGHT.

DEVON, CORNWALL,
ETC.

ILFRACOMBE.
Lynton. Bude.
Bideford.
Wadebridge.
Padstow.
EXETER.
Ezmouth.
Budleigh-

Salterton.
Tavistock.
PLYMOUTH.

Cheap Tickets from WATERLOO (LONDON). See Programmes.
CORRIDOR TRAINS-BREAKFAST AND DINING CARS.

The Best Route—
via ST. MALO for

BRITTANY.
Popular Tourist Route—"Via Soutliampton **

For PARIS & THE CONTINENT
NEW TURBINE STEAMERS.

Full particulars \ipon application to Mr. Henry Holmes, Superintendent of the Line,
Waterloo Station, S.B. H. A. WALKEP. General Mava-jer.

DEVONSHIRE.

Lynton 8z Barnstaple Railway

This Narrow-gauge Picturesque Line

affords connection at BARNSTAPLE
(Town Station) with the Main Line

Trains of the London and South-

western Railway Company, and gives

THE BEST AND QUICKEST
ROUTE TO LYNTON AND
LYNMOUTH FROM ALL PARTS

For Time Tables, etc., apply—
" GENERAL MANAGER," L. & B. RAILWAY, BARNSTAPLE.

i
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RAILWAY TRAVELLERS
And othei^ solicitous for the welfare of the widows

and fatherless are earnestly invited to assist the

philanthropic work of the

LONDON AND SOUTH WESTERN

RAILWAY SERVANTS'

ORPHANAGE

By contributing a coin. to ^'LONDON JACK'S" case at Waterloo Station, or

to the box carried by "LONDON JACK IIL," who is "on duty" at Waterloo

in charge of his mistress, Mrs. Wickens, every week-end.

The Institution now maintains 135 orphans, and funds are urgently needed
to provide for their efficient maintenance, and for the up-keep of the New
Orphanage at Woking, opened by H.R.H. the Duchess of Albany in 1909 ; also
contributions and legacies to the Endowment Fund kindly initiated by the
Right Hon. Viscount Midleton and other gentlemen, in recognition of the
loyalty and devotion to duty of South-Western men during the Railway Strike,
August 1911.

Subscriptions or Donations towards the maintenance expenses will also be
gladly received by the Stationmaster at any L. & S. W. Ry. Station, by the
District Secretaries at Basingstoke, Bournemouth, Eastleigh, Exeter, Ports-
mouth, Salisbury, Southampton, Strawberry Hill, and Woking ; or by

The Secretary, Mr. H. G. WARNE,
at the Orphanage, Woking, Surrey.
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U N D E R C R O U N D
LONDON! ELECTRIC RAILWAY CO.

1 Adeipfii

9 AkiM<ych
3 Alhambra
4 Apollo
5 Colisewm
6 Comedy
7 Covent CarSen
8 Criter;on
9 Daly's
10 Orur/ lint
1 1 Ouhr of York's
%7 Impirr
13 Caiety

i-J Carrich
1 5 Ciobe
16 Maymarhet
17 Palladium
18 Hippodrome
19 Mit Majesty s

70 Moiborn tmpirr
91 Ktngsviray

77 t^ceum
23 lyric
24 Middiesei Music Halt

25 New
26 Mew Royalty

?7 Oiferd UusK Mall

28 PaJace
29 Pavilion

30 Playhouse
31 Prince o' ••••-»

32 Queen s

33 Savoy
34 ShaHesbury
3S Terry I

36 T..01.

37 vaude»>iie
SS Th«Wh>lr»«y
39 Wynd^am S

40 The little

4-1 london Opera House
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MIDLAND GREAT WESTERN RAILWAY OF IRELAND.

CONNEMARA
GAUW^AY
AND THE WEST

Achill and the Atlantic Coast

SLIGO AND LOUGH GILL.

SEAL CAVES AND CLIFFS.
MOUNTAIN, SEA, AND LAKE.

The Tourist District of The Midland Great Western
Railway of Ireland abounds in splendid and inposing

scenery.

FISHING, SHOOTING, GOLFING.

Railway Hotels owned and managed by the Company in

RECESS AND MALLARANNY.
Free Fishing at Recess. Free Fishing and Free Golfing

at Mallaranny to Hotel Visitors.

Cheap Circular Tourist Tickets, combining Rail and
Motor Coaches.

The Company's Tourist Motor Coaches will run

daily between Clifden and Westport from 1st June till

14th September inclusive.

Programme of Tours free on application to any of Messrs.

Cook and Son's Offices ; Irish Tourist Office, 65 Haymarket,
London ; Mr. J. Hoey, 50 Castle Street, Liverpool ; or to

Superintendent of Line, M.G.W. Ry., Broadstone, Dublin.

JOSEPH TATLOW, Manager.
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LEITH AND LONDON.
THE LONDON & EDINBURGH

SHIPPING COMPANY'S First-Class

Steamers, ROYAL SCOT (New) (S),
FIONA (S), FINGAL O (all lighted

by Electricity), leave VICTORIA WHARF, LEITH, every Wednesday,
Friday, and Saturday, and HERMITAGE STEAM WHARF,
WAPPING, E., every Tuesday, Wednesday, and Saturday.

Fares.—First Cabin, including Steward's Fee, 22s. ; Second Cabin, 16s. ; Deck
(Soldiers and Sailors only), 10s. Return Tickets, available for 6 months (including
Steward's Fee both ways)—First Cabin, 34s. ; Second Cabin, 24s. 6d.

Reduced Passenger Fares—October to May inclusive.

CHEAP CIRCULAR TOURS round the Land's End in connection with Clyde Shipping Company's
Steamers—Fare, First Cabin, 478. 6d. By Bristol Channel, In connection witli Messrs. Sloan & Co.'s

Steamers—Fare, 1st Cabin, 353. (Railway Fares extra.) Round the North of Scotland in connection
with Messrs. Langlands & Sous' Steamers to Liverpool—Fare, First Cabin, London to Liverix>ol, 60r. By
British and Irish Steam Packet Company's Steamer to Dublin, tbence via Silloth to Edinburgh,
returning by this Company's Steamer to London—Fares for the Round, Saloon and First Claps Rail,

523. ; Saloon and Third Class Rail, 478. By North of Scotland Steamers to Orkney and Shetland-
Return Fares to Kirkwall and Stromness, First Class, 62s. 6d. : Second Class, 3;}a. 9d. To Lerwick andScaUo-
way. First Class, 70s. ; Second Class, 35s. 9d. Round Britain by Clyde Shipping Company's Steamers,
London to Belfast, and Antrim Iron Company's Steamers, Belfast to Leith—Fare, First Cabin, 758.

throughout.
Apply in London to Londok & Edinbdboh Shipping Co., Ltd., Hermitage Steam Wharf, Wapplng ;

M'DouGALL & BonTTHRON, LTD., 64 Mark Lane, K.C. Edinburgh—Cowajw & Co., 15 Waterloo Place. Glasgow
—CowA» & Co., 25 St. Vincent Place. Greenock—D. Macdouoaxl & Co., Ltd.. 1 Crosn Shore Stre«t;

and to LONDON & EDINBURGH SHIPPING CO., LTD.,
8 & 9 OOMMKKCIAL StRKKST, LXTTH.

LIVERPOOL TO LONDON
BY SEA, AND VICE VERSA,

Calling at FALMOUTH, PLYMOUTH, and COWES, I.O.W.

A REGULAR Service of First -Class Steamers every Wednesday and
•^ Saturday from Liverpool, and from London every Thursday and
Saturday. Special inclusive Single and Return Fares. Terms on applica-

tion. Average passage between Liverpool and London, SJ days. For
particulars apply to

—

F.H. Powell & Co., 22 Waters John Allen & Co., 22 Greats
Street, It iTraT.T^.^r^^ Tower Street, lT/^T.^^»^

Samuel Hough, Ltd., Colonial f^^^^^P^o^- J. D. Hewett & Co., loi
f^^^^^''-

House, Water Street, j Leadenhall Street. I

CLYDE SHIPPING COMPANY, LIMITED.

SPLEPID COASTIMG T0U8S KODIID THE BRITISH COAST.

LONDON TO GLASGOW,
Greenock, Belfast, and 'Waterford, calling at Southampton

and Plymouth. For full information apply—
CLYDE SHIPPING COMPANY, LIMITED, 138 Leadenhall Street, London, E.G.

Telegraphic Address :
" CUMBRAE," London.
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Saininer Tours in Scotland.

THE ROYAL ROUTE.

DAVID MACBRAYNE,
119 Hope Street, Glasgow.

Hotel Coupons
at reasonable
rates issued at
the various

Offices of the
Company and
on board their

Steamers.

Tourist
Programme,
free by post.

Illustrated
Guide Book, 6d.

Cloth Gilt, Is.
;

from the
Owners,

Ltd.,

ABERDEEN AND LONDON.
THE ABERDEEN STEAM NAVI8ATIQN GO.'S STEAMSHIPS

" ABERDONIAN," "HOGARTH" and "CITY OF LONDON"
will be despatched (weather, etc., permitting)

—

From ABERDEEN, 87 Waterloo Quay, every Wednesday and Saturday or Sunday.
From LONDON, Aberdeen Wharf, Ldmehouse, every Wednesday and Saturday.

The Steamers are fitted up in Pirst-Class style—Ladies' Saloon, and Smoking Room
on Deck—Electric Light throughout—Time on Passage about 36 hours.

The Company's steam tender * Ich Dien ' attends the Steamers on their arrival in London
for the purpose of conveying Passengers to the Temple Pier, Thames Embankment

;

she also leaves that Pier with Passengers for the Steamers one hour before the adver-
tised time of sailing from Limehouse.

Fares—Private Cabins (subject to accommodation being available) for 2 passengers, £4.
Private Cabins (subject to accommodation being available) for 1 passenger, £3.

Return Tickets for Private Cabins granted at fare and half.

Single Ticket—Isi Cabin, 30s. ; 2nd Cabin, 15s. ; Children under 14 years, 16s. and 10s.

Return Tic/ie^s — available for six months—45s. and 25s. ; Children, 25s. and 158.

A Stewardess carried In both First and Second Cabins.
Holiday Toiira—London to Aberdeen and Deeeide Highlands, including Ballater, Balmoral, and Brae-

mar. Return fares—Ist ClasB, £2:198., 2ud Class, £1 : 148. To Aberdeen and Valleys of the Dee, Don,
and Spey—Ist Class, £3 : Ss. ; 2nd Class, £1 : 178. To Orkney and Shetland Islands. Return fares

—

To Lerwick or Scalloway, let Class, £3 : 10s. ; 2nd Class, 358. 9d. To Kirkwall or Stromness, Ist Class,

62s. 6d. ; 2nd Class, 33s. M.
For berths and further information apply in London to Georok Mutch, Agent, Aberdeen Steam

Navigation Co.'s Wharf, Limehouse, E. ; Pitt & Scott, Ltd., 25 Cannon Street, E.C. ; Geo. W. Wheatley
& Co., 194 Piccadilly, W. In Aberdeen to Bbwakd J. Satage, Manager, 87 Waterloo Qviay.
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Cheap

Pleasure LOGH LOMOND
Saloon

Steamers

Sailings.
("Queen of Scottish Lakes") sail between

Balloch and

Unrivalled
• Balmaha,

Circular /€^^^»'*/-// ^-

Luss,

Tours
'^ '^^^^^^^^^^^'

'

ROWARDENNAN

BY
^ ^^^^^^^^^^^s (for Ben Lomond),

Steamer, Tarbet

Coach, (for Loch Long, &c.).

AND

Rail

Inversnaid

(for Loch KatrineFor Train and Steamer Services

see Caledonian and North AND
THROUGH

Magnificent
British Railway Companies'
Time Tables and Tourist Pro-

The Trossachs),

Highland

Scenery.

grammes, or apply to L. H.

Gilchrist, 48 Dundas Street,

Glasgow.

and

Ardlui
(head of the Loch).

GLASGOW AND THE HIGHLANDS.
WEEKLY CIRCULAR TOUR.

THE Favourite Steamer DUNARA CASTLE sails from Glasgow every Thursday at 2
P.M., and from Greenock, West Quay, at 7 p.m., for COLONSAY, lONA, BUNESSAK,

TIREE, BARRA, UIST, SKYE, and HARRIS, returning to Glasgow on Wednesdays.
Affords to Tourists the opportunity of about a week's comfortable Sea Voyage, and
at the same time a Panoramic View of the magnificent scenerv of the Western Isles

CABIN FARE, 40s., INCLUDING MEALS, 70s.

Extended Tours to the Island of St. Kilda on 13th June, 11th July, and
8th August. Return Cabin Fare, including Meals, £4 : 4s.

Berths may be booked at the London Offices of the Carron Company 87 Lower
East Smithfield, E.C., and 21 Great Tower Street, E.G.

Time Bills (with Maps) and Berths secured on application to
MARTIN ORME & CO., 20 Robertaon Street, Glasgow

GLASGOW & THE WEST HIGHLANDS.
WEEKLY CIRCULAR TOURS BY THE

Splendidly fitted Steamer, <( "LTTTRlPTriTHQ" Superior Accommodation.
Lighted by Electricity. XJ.iilriJrv.llJ'jLl.O Bathroom etc

^^?M^^-P1L^VJ^-^- every MONDAY rromGREENOCKate.lSp.m.
Berth 44, North Side. -'-' * ^^ ^ xyj.vy i> uj\. i Customhouae Quay

For ISLAY, COLONSAY, OBAN, MULL, COLL, TIREE, RHUM, WEST OF SKYE
BENBECULA, NORTH AND SOUTH UIST, BARRA, etc., affords the Tourist a
splendid opportunity of viewing the magnificent scenery of the WEST OF SKYE
and the OUTER ISLANDS.

Cabin for the Round, from 40s. ; Board included, from 70s.
ISLAND OF ST. KILDA.—During the Season extended trips are made to this most

interesting and romantic Island, when passengers are given facilities (W.P.) for landing.
Cabin on St. Kilda and Loch Roag Trips, from 50s. ; Board included, from 84s.
Telegraph Address : Time Bills, Maps of Route, Cabin Platis, and Berths secured at

" McCallum—Glasgow." JOHN M'CALLUM & CO., 87 Union Street, Glasgow.
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LONDON AND DUBLIN,
AND THE SOUTH OF ENGLAND.

The best route for Oomwall, Devon, Wilts, Sussex, Kent, Essex, Hants, and Surrey
and for the Scilly Islands, the Isle of Wight, the Channel Islands and France.
The British and Irish Steam Packet Company's large and powerful Steam-Ships,

fitted with electric light, and with superior passenger accommodation, and carrying
goods, horses, carriages, &c., at moderate rates, leave LONDON and DUBLIN Twice a
Week (unless prevented by unforeseen occurrences), calling both ways at

PORTSMOUTH, SOUTHAMPTON. PLYMOUTH AND FALMOUTH
SAILING DAYS

From LONDON : Sundays and 12?ednesdays.
From DUBLIN : ISTednesdays and Saturdays.

Passengers from London can embark the evening before sailing day without extra
charge, but must be on board not later than 10.0 p.m.

FARES FROM 1st CABIN. 2nd CABIN. DECK. *

LONDON Single. Return. Single. Return. Single. Return.

s. d. s. d. s, d. 8. d. s. d. 8. d.

To Portsmouth 12 18 6 8 12 6 4 6

,, Southampton 13 20 9 13 6 4 6 6 6

,, Plymouth . 16 6 26 12 6 19 6 7 11

,, Falmouth . 21 6 34 16 6 26 10 15

,, Dublin . . 27 6 42 19 6 30 11 17

Children from 3 to 12 years of age half fare. Return Tickets are available for three
months, and passengers are allowed to break the journey at intermediate ports. Pro-
visions are supplied on board at moderate rates. Private cabins can be reserved on
payment of extra charge, on early application being made for same.

London Offices:—30 Lime Street, B.O. JAMBS HARTLEY & Co., Agents.
Berth : North Quay, Eastern Basin, London Dock, near the Shadwell Stations, Great
Eastern and Metropolitan Railways. Chief Offices, Dublin : 27 Sir John Rogersons'
Quay. Telegraphic address : "Awe," Dublin.

LEITH to ABERDEEN, BUCKFe, LOSSIEMOUTH (for ElginO^BURGHEAD (for

Forres), CROMARTY, INVERGORDON (for Strathpeffer), and INVERNESS.
The First-Class Steamer JAMES CROMBIE leaves Leith every Monday , and

Aberdeen every Tuesday, for Buckie, Lossiemouth, Cromarty, Invergordon, and
Inverness : leaves Inverness every Thursday for Cromarty, Invergordon, Aberdeen,
and Leith. S.S. EARNHOLM leaves Leith every Thursday (and every Tuesday to
Aberdeen only), and Aberdeen every Friday for Burghead, Cromarty, Invergordon,
and Inverness : leaves Inverness every Monday for Cromarty, Invergordon, Aber-
deen, and Leith. S.S. EARNHOLM or S.S. JAMES CROMBIE leaves Aberdeen
for Leith every Tuesday, Wednesday, and Friday. FARES MODERATE.

For further particulars apply to the Managers of the Aberdeen, Leith, and Moray
Firth Steam Shipping Co., Limited, JAMES CROMBIE & SONS, Trinity Buildings,
Aberdeen, or to M. LANGLANDS & SONS, 80 Constitution Street, Leith.

A GLIMPSE AT THE SCOTLAND OF TO-DAY AND YESTERDAY.
In the "PEEPS AT MANY LANDS AND CITIES" Serie.s.

By Elizabeth W. Grierson.SCOTLAND.
Containing 12 Full-Page Illustrations in Colour and a Sketch Map.

By G. E. MiTTON.

Containing 8 Full -Page Illustrations in

Colour and numerous Thumb-Nail Sketches
in Black and White in the Text.

PEEPS AT THE
HISTORY OF SCOTLAND.

Large Crown 8vo. Cloth with Picture in Colour on the Cover.

Price 1/6 net each. (By Post, 1/10.)

Published by ADAM & CHARLES BLACK,| 4, 5, & 6 Soho Square, London, W.
And ohtainaUe of all Boolcsellers.
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British k Irish Steam Packet Co., Ltd. I
GRAND HOLIDAY SEA TRIPS 25

BETWEEN \ o

LONDON AND DUBLIN
'I

AND THE ^5

SOUTH OF ENGLAND. |l

The best route for Oomwall, Devon, Wilts, Sussex, Kent, Essex, Hants, and Surrey, ^ "^

and for the SOILLY ISLANDS, the Isle of Wight, the Channel Islands and France. ° 5

THE COMPANY'S LARGE AND POWERFUL STEAM-SHIPS ijf

Fitted with electric light, and with superior accommodation for Passengers, leave
London and Dublin twice a week, calling both ways at Portsmouth, Southajnpton,
Plymouth, and Falmouth.

FLEET: 5

Lady Gwendolen . . . 2163 Tons I Lady Hudson-Kinahan . 1372 Tons
Lady Roberts .... 1462 ,, Lady Martin 1398 „
Lady WoLSELEY . . . . 1424 „ r ' Calshot " (Cargo only) . 549 „

SAILING / From London—Sundays and Wednesdays. ^^\DAYS \ From Dublin—Wednesdays and Saturdays. ^w-*

Return Tickets are available for three months, and Passengers are allowed to ^|
break the journey at intermediate ports. Provisions supplied on board at moderate 5 2
rates. Private Cabins can be reserved on payment of extra charge, on early application

~'*'

being made for same. Passengers from London can embark the evening before sailing

day without extra charge, but must be on board not later than 10 p.m. Illustrated
Handbook free by post on application. ^p^

Circular Tours in connection with the following :—City of Cork Steam Packet ^«i
Company, Limited (including Killamey and Glengarriff, Ac); Dublin and Silloth "Jgj
(including Edinburgh and Dundee, <Sic.); London, Dublin, and Isle of Man Tour per •= ^i
Joint Services of Messrs. Wm. Sloan & Co.'s S.S. "Yarrow" and the Steamers of the B-^ •

Isle of Man Steam Packet Company, Ltd., during the Season. Fare for the round from igP
London, £2 : 5s. ; Portsmouth and Southampton, £2 : 3s. ; Plymouth, £1 : 18s. ; Falmouth, ^p '

£1:15:6; Dublin and Glasgow; and Carron Lines, via Grangemouth, &c,, and to =§"
Connemara and West of Ireland, in connection with Midland Great Western Railway ^2
of Ireland, via Clifden, Westport, Letterfrack, and Leenane, from 1st June to 30th § S-
September. Splendid Scenery. Excellent Salmon and Trout Fishing. Tickets avail- ^^*
able for two months. Circular Tour Tickets must be procured at the Company's s g§
Offices prior to departure. "^

Scilly Islands.—Passengers for these charming Islands land at Falmouth and travel «
via Penzance. Children from 3 to 12 years old, half fare.

'
'

Special Cheap 16-day Excursion Tickets, 1st and 2nd Cabin, are issued between
any two of the following ports :—Portsmouth, Southampton, Plymouth, Falmouth, or

Dublin, at a single fare and a quarter. K
Tkrough Bookings to the Channel Islands and France from Dublin. D
Full information as to Sailings, etc., can be obtained from James Hartley & Co., g

30 Lime Street, Fenchurch Street, London, E.G., and North Quay, Eastern Basin,

London Docks, Shad well, E. (where the vessels lie), or from any of the following S
Agents : R. Clark & Son, or H. J. Waring & Co., Millbay Pier, Plymouth ; W. & E. C. 2
Carne, Market Street, Falmouth ; B. & I. S. P. Coy., Ltd., Exchange Buildings, Town H^
Quay, Southampton ; J. M. Harris, 10 Broad Street, Portsmouth ; Thos. Cook & J *
Son, Dublin, London, and Branches ; Carolin * Ega v. 80 Eden Quay, Dublin ; A. pg D
W. Hewett, 9 D'Olier Street, Dublin. Chief Offices— 27 Sir John Rogerson's Quay, h "

Dublin. Telegraphic Addresses

—

"Awe," Dublin: ''Ekeraxj>," London. 2>
DAVID BARRY, Secretary and Manager.

g
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CITY OF DUBLIN STEAM PACKET COMPAM
ROYAL MAIL SERVICE

BETWEEN

ENGLAND & IRELAND
via HOLYHEAD & KINGSTOWN

FASTEST AND BEST PASSENGER ROUTE
Equipped with Marconi's System of wireless Telegraphy.

Sea Passage—2 Hours 45 Minutes
TWO SAILINGS DAILY IN EACH DIRECTION

Through Fares from principal Stations. Passengers
can hook First, and Third Class Rail and Saloon on Steamer,
or Third Class Rail and Second Cahin Steamer.

INTERCHANGE OF TICKETS.
England & Ireland via Holyhead, Kingstown and North Wall.

Ordinary (Single or Return) and Tourist Tickets (including the Outward and Return
Halves) only, issued between England and Ireland, via Holyhead and Dublin, are

available either by the L. & N. W. Steamers between Holyhead and Kingstown or
North Wall, or by the City of Dublin Company's Mail Steamers between Holyhead
and Kingstown, on payment of the excess difference in fare, where such exists.

LIVERPOOL & DUBLIN
SAILINGS DAILY IN EACH DIRECTION ON

EVERY WEEK-DAY
For Particulars see TimC'Table Books,
FARES—DUBLIN and LIYE2RPOOL.

Saloon Deck
Single . . . 13/6

I

Single ... 4/
Return . . . 21/

|
Return . . . 6/6

Return Tickets are available for Six Months.

EXCURSION TICKETS are Issued on every Friday and Saturday.

Fares—SALOON, 15/ | available for return within

DECK, 5/6 I 16 1>AYS FROM DATE OF ISSUE.

Through Tickets are also issued by this route.

Full particulars as to Sailings, Excursions, &c. , can be had at

15 EDEN QUAY, DUBLIN, and
13 WATER STREET, LIVERPOOL.
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GENERAL STEAM NAVIGATION Go., LTD.

TOURS
With Best Hotels, Full Board, and First-Class Steamer and RaiL

BORDEAUX, 11-12 days' Tour, £8:2:0 . . . . LOURDES £9 15
AR0ACH0N,12days' Tour, £8:5:6; 19 days, £11 :l:6;26days
BIARRITZ or PAU, 11-12 days' Tour, £9 : 10 :6 ; 18-19 days
PYRENEES—GRAND CIRCULAR 19 DAYS' TOUR
VERNET (Pyrenees Orientales) and Algerian 33 days' Tour
ALGIERS, 19 days' Tour, £18 : 18s. ; ALGIERS-PYRENEES

TUNIS-TRIPOLI . . 26-day Tour-cruises via Bordeaux and Marseilles
OSTEND 2 days' Tour, £1 : 3s. ; 3 days, £1 : lis. ; 10 days' Tour-s6jour

„ BRUGES, BRUSSELS, ARDENNES, CAVERNS OF HAN . 9 days
RHINE . . 1st Class Steamers and 2nd Rail.... 9 days
EDINBURGH . 5 days' Tour, £3 : 5s. ; 6 days' Tour, £3 : 14 : 6 ; 9 days

STRATHARDLE, KILLIECRANKIE, DUNKELD, 9 days' Tour
KYLES of BUTE, ARDRISHAIG, or INVERARAY, 6 days' Tour
STAFFA and lONA (including boats and guides) 9 days' Tour
CALEDONIAN CANAL and WESTERN ISLANDS 13 days

HAMBURG, 5 days' Tour, £5 : 5s. ; 6 days, £5 : 18s. . BERLIN, 6 days

„ BERLIN, POTSDAM, conducted Tour, ... 9 days
KIEL, KORSOR, COPENHAGEN . 9 days' Tour
SCANDINAVIAN GOTHA CANAL . Grand 16 days' Tour

EAST AND WEST COAST TOUR -CRUISE .... 7 days

ROUND BRBTAIW—9-DAY CRUISE—£7 : 12 :

14 DAYS' 9 Guineas.
Illustrated Guide, with splendid Road, Rail, and Route Maps, by post 2^1.

G. S. N. C, lid., TRINITY SQUARE, B.C.

NORWAY,TENMARKr&^^
THE LEITH HULL AND HAMBURG STEAM PACKET COMPANY, LIMITED.

LEITH to CHRISTIANSAND every
Thursday — £3 : 3s. ; Return, £5 : 5s.

(including food).

LEITH to COPENHAGEN every Thurs-
day—£3 : 3s. ; Return, £5 : 5s. (including
food).

LEITH to HAMBURG every Monday,
Wednesday, and Saturday— £2 : 10s.

;

Return, £4 : 4s. (including food).
TlU'oagh Fares to CnSRISTIANIA. BERQEN,

BERLIN. STOCKHOLM, &c.

13 17 6

12 6 6

15 15 6
24 10
20 9
23 10
3 17
5 13 4
6 3 8
5 3

6 13 3

4 15
8 8 6
13 5

6 16 4

8 16
7 11 2

14 14
5 2 9

6;

CIRCULAR TOURS.
An Illustrated HANDBOOK with full

details may be had free.

HOLIDAY TOURS IN NORWAY.
10 Days for 8 Guineas ; 17 days for 10

Guineas—including all expenses

JAMES CUliiiliJ. oi oo., Managert.
16 Bemarti Street, LEITH.

Passengers for South Africa should travel by

THE ABERDEEN DIRECT LINE OF STEAMERS
London to Durban (Natal),

Delagoa Bay, Beira, Chinde^ and East Africa.

Moderate Fares. Superior Accommodation. Regular Sailings.

Wireless Telegraphy. Only First and Second Class carried.

Write for Handbook and Sailing List to—
John T. Rennie, Son & Co., 4 East India Avenue, London, E.G. (or, West End Agencies:

21 Cockspur Street, S.W., and 11 Onslow Place, S. Kensington).
John T. Rennie & Son, 48 Marischal Street, Aberdeen, or Agents.
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Land of Sunshitve
The search for health and pleasure

could lead to no fairer climes than the

Canary Islands or Madeira
if you travel by the Mail Steamers of the

BRITISH & AFRICAN STEAM NAVIGATION CO., LTD.

& AFRICAN STEAM SHIP CO.

TOURIST TICKETS for first-class passage from IiIYERPOOIi to

GRAND CANARY op TENBRIFFE, available for return within
twrelve months ; and inclusive of one iveek's board and residence
at the Hotel Metropole, Las Palmas, or the Hotel Pino de Oro,

Teneriffe, are issued for 15 Guineas and 18 Guineas by

ELDER DEMPSTER AND CO., LIMITED
Colonial House, Water Street, Liverpool

4 St. Mary Axe, London ; 30 Mosley Street, Manchester ;

Birmingham, Cardiff, &c..

Prom whom full particulars can be obtained.

BEAUTIFUL BOOKS ON MADEIRA AND THE CANARY ISLANDS.

THE FLOWERS AND GARDENS OF MADEIRA.
Painted by ELLA DU CANE.

Described by FLORENCE DU CANE.
Containing 24 Full-Page Illustrations in Colour. Square demy 8vo., cloth, gilt top.

Price 7s* 6d* Net* (By Post 7s* Wd.)
•'This delightful volume is of an artistic standard that is above reproach. Never

has the glow of colour of the flaunting blossoms of Madeira been better depicted. . . .

Miss Florence Du Cane has succeeded well in her task of wedding the practical with
the picturesque."

—

Manchester Courier.

THE CANARY ISLANDS.
Painted by ELLA DU CANE.

Described by FLORENCE DU CANE.
Containing 20 Full-Page Illustrations in Colour, and a Sketch Map. Square

demy 8vo., cloth, gilt top.

Price 7s. 6d. Net* (By Post 7s* Ud*)
'• The volume, which is beautifully got up ... is a charming book on one of the

earth's most favoured spots."

—

Scotsman.

PUBLISHED BY ADAM ANJ CHARLES BLACK, 4, 5, AND 6 SOHO SQUARE LONDON. W.

And obtainable of alt Booksellers,
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BIBBYLINEOFTWIN-SGREWMAILSTEAMERS
TO EGYPT, CEYLON, BURMAH, AND SOUTHERN INDIA

(Sailings Fortnightly, Via Marseilles)

Offers special facilities for passengers to and from

SOUTH of FRANCE2, the RIVIERA, ITALIAN LAKES,
CORSICA, EGYPT, PALESTINE, etc.

As the bulk of the Eastern passengers by this line erabark and dis-

embark at Marseilles, those desirous of the short trip (6J days) between
England and Marseilles are afforded very ample accommodation on these
fine twin-screw vessels, at very moderate rates.

For such as desire a week at sea, with the most favourable surround-
ings, this has become a very favourite trip.

Passengers taking Return Tickets from Liverpool have the option of

returning by any of the Bibby Line Steamers, or overland through Paris

to London, first class ; similarly passengers may proceed to Marseilles

from London by rail, and return by sea.

FIRST-CLASS FARE ;g8:8s. SINGLE; ^^15 RETURN.
MOTORS.—Special arrangements are made for the Carriage of Motors, and these are

now largely availed of by those visiting the South of France, Riviera, etc.

For all further information apply to

Messrs. BIBBY BROS. 6t Co., 26 Cbapel Street, Liverpool,
and 10/11 Mincing Lane, London, B.C.

BEAUTIFUL BOOKS ABOUT EGYPT AND PALESTINE
EGYPT. Painted and described by R. Talbot Kelly, R.B.A. Containing 75

Full-Page Illustrations in Colour. Price 20s. net. (By Post 20s. 6d.)
EGYPTIAN BIRD So Painted and described by Charles Whymper, F.Z.S.,

B.O.U. Containing 51 Full-Page Illustrations in Colour. Price 20s. net. (7'>u

Post 20s. 6d.)
THE LIGHT SIDE OF EGYPT. Painted and described by Lance

Thackeray. Containing 30 Full -Page Illustrations in Colour. Album shape
(10| X 8 inches). PricelOs.net. (By^ost ±0s. Bd,)

THE PEOPLE OF EGYPT. Painted by Lance Thackeray. With an
Introduction by Gordon Home.' Containing 32 Full-Page Illustrations in Colour
and a large number of thumb-nail Sketches in Black and White. Price 5s. net.

(By Post 5s. 4d.)
PEEJPS AT EGYPT. By R. Talbot Kelly, R.B.A. Containing 12 Full-Page

Illustrations in Colour by the Author. Price Is. 6d. net. (By Post Is. lOd.)
THE HOIiY liAND. Painted by J. Fulleylove, R.L Described by the Rev.

John Kelman, M.A., D.D. Containing 92 Full-Page Illustrations, mostly in

Colour. Price 20s. net. (By Post 20s. 6d.)
CHBAP EDITION. Without Illustrations. Crown 8vo, Cloth. Price 3s. 6d.
net. (By Post 3^, ±06..)

FROM DAMASCUS TO PALMYRA. Painted by Margaret Thomas.
Described by the Rev. John Kelman, M.A., D.D. Containing 70 Full-Page
Illustrations in Colour. Price 20s. net. (By Post 20s. 6d.)

LETTERS FROM THE HOLY LAND. By Lady Butler. Containing K^
Full-Page Illustrations in Colour from Paintings bv the Author. Price 7s. 6d.
net. (By Post 7s. lid.)

PEEPS AT THE HOLY LAND. By John Finnemore. Containing V2
Full-Page Illustrations in Colour by John Fulleylove, R.I. Price Is. 6d. net.

(By Post Is. lOd.)
PUBLISHED BY ADAM AND CHARLES BLACK. 4, 5. & 6 SOHO SQUARE. LONDON. W.

May be obtained through any Bookseller,



TOURIST AGENTS. 75

DEAN & DAWSON, Ltd.
RAILWAY AND STEAMSHIP PASSENGER AGENTS.

HOME TRAVEL.
Ordinary, Tourist, and Excursion Tickets issued.

Arrangements made for

DAY AND HALF-DAY
PICNIC OUTINGS.

TOURS IN
THE BRITISH ISLES.

THE CONTINENT.
TICKETS FOR CONTINENTAL TRAVEL, by any route, can be

obtained at the offices of Dean & Dawson, Ltd.

CONDUCTED and INDEPENDENT TOURS to PARIS, BELGIUM,
HOLLAND, NORWAY, THE RHINE, SWITZERLAND,

ITALY, &c.

CRUISES to NORWAY, THE MEDITERRANEAN,
MADEIRA, HOLY LAND, EGYPT, and the NILE, &c.

OCEAN STEAMER TICKETS
ISSUED TO

UNITED STATES, CANADA, AUSTRALIA,
NEW ZEALAND, SOUTH AFRICA,

and all Parts of the World.

DEAN & DAlSrSON, Ltd.
LONDON OFFICES:

82 strand, W.C. 84 PICCADILLY, W. 17 ST. PAUL'S CHURCHYARD, E.C.
26 ALDERSGATE STREET, E.C.

PROVINCIAL OFFICES
BOLTON. 2 Bradshawgate.
BRADFORD. 83 Market Street.
CARDIFF. 67 St. Mary Street.
HALIFAX. 24 Southgate.
HUDDERSFIELD. 49 New Street.
HULL. 7 King Edward Street.
LEEDS. 46 Boar Lane.
LEICESTER. 1 Gallowtree Gate.
LINCOLN. 321 High Street.

LIVERPOOL. 38 Lord Street.
MANCHESTER. 53 Piccadilly.
NEWCASTLE-ON-TYNE. 89 Grey Street.
NOTTINGHAM. 3 Upper Parliament Street.
OLDHAM. 2 Mumps.
ROTHERHAM. Imperial Buildings, High St.

SHEFFIELD. 42 Fargate.
STOCKPORT. St. Petersgate.
WEXHAM. 5 High Street.

PARIS OFFICE : 212 Rue de Rivoli. HAMBURG : 21 Alsterthor.

Agencies and Correspondents in all Parts of the World
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J. WATSOM LYALL & CO., LTD.
SHOOTING

AND

FISHING
AGENTS,

No. 21 PALL MALL, LONDON, S.W.
{Entrance in St. James's Square.)

THIS AGENCY, FOR THE

LETTING AND SELLING
Deer Forests, Grouse Moors, Mansion Houses,

Low=Qround Shootings, Salmon Fishings, &c. &c.

Is one of the Largest and most important Agencies of the

kind in the Kingdom.

Telegrams : WATSON LYALL, LONDON. Telephone No. 6287, GERRARD.

^^^SS The Sportsman's

MM and Tourist's Guide

TO THE

^H|B^^n RIVERS, LOCHS, MOORS, AND

I^M^BH DEER FORESTS

If^^i^W OF

p™^l^^^ SCOTLAND.

Price Is. , or Is. 4d. by Post.

OFFICES: 21 PALL MALL, LONDON, S.W.
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TO ANGLING TOURISTS

W. J. CUMMINS
Will send his Magnificent Catalogue and Angler*s Guide

FREE to any Address.

This interesting book has over 200 pages, many hundreds of Illustra-

tions, and Original Articles on Fly, Worm, and Minnow Fishing for

Trout, Salmon Fishing, Hints to Anglers visiting Norway, Canada, New
Zealand, &c.

This publication has been highly praised and recommended
by all the principal Sporting Papers.

SALMON, SEA TROUT, TROUT, PIKE,
AND SEA RODS.

Information gladly given regarding Fishing and Fishing
Outfits for any part of the World.

Write for particulars of Cummins' "Angler's Information Bureau."

Special Salmon and Trout Flies for Ireland, including Lough
Conn, Connemara District, Killarney, the Rosses Fishery, &c.
Selected List of over Seventy Patterns for the Trout Rivers
of the United Kingdom. Special Patterns for the Scotch
Lochs. Special Flies and Tackle for Norway.

W. J. CUMMINS,
North of England Rod YiTorks, Bishop Auckland.

ESTiLBLISHBD 1857.
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ALPINE SPORTS, Ltd.,
Beg to announce that they have secured for their clients

accommodation in the following Hotels in some of the sunniest

Swiss Eesorts for those who desire a Winter Holiday with

SRI-ING, CURLING,
TOBOGGANING, SKATING,

SLEIGHING, 8lc. "

BBATBNBERG—Grand Hotel Victoria.
Hotel Bellevue.

CHESIERES—Hotel Chamossaire.
KANDBRSTEG—Grand Hotel Victoria.

LENZERHEIDE—Hotel Kurhaus.
MURREN—The Palace, and four other Hotels.

MONTANA—Palace Hotel.

MORGINS—Grand Hotel des Bains.

VIIiliARS-SUR-OLLON—Grand Hotel Muveran.
Grand Hotel.
Hotel Bellevue.
Hotel du Pare.

IVENGEN—The Palace, and seven other Hotels.

All the rooms in some of the above Hotels have already been booked
for certain periods. All rooms must be booked in London, and Plans of

any of these Hotels will be forwarded on application to the Secretary,

Alpine Sports, Ltd., 5 Endsleigh Gardens, London, N.W.

"This delightful collection of clever drawings."

—

The Younq Mnn.

A WINTER=SPORT BOOK
By REGINALD CLEAVER

With Introduction by the Rev. HON. EDWARD LYTTELTOX, M.A.

And a Chapter contributed by Sir HENRY S. LUNN.
containing 22 page illustrations in black and white, and smaller line drawings

ON THE INTERLEAVES FACING PICTURES. SMALL CROWN 4T0, CLOTH

PRICE 5s. NET. (By Post, 5s. 4d.)

The illustrations of this book not only take one right into the midst of the ex-

hilarating life and sport of the Alps, but give dozens of glimpses of the fun and joyous
abandon which even the luckiest snapshots of the camera fail ignominiously to convey.

Published by A. & C. Black, 4 Soho Square, London, W.
May he obtained through any Bookseller.



GENTLEMEN'S

FUR-LINED OVERCOATS
READY FOR IMMEDIATE WEAR

At prices ranging from £10

Suitable for Travelling,

for Motoring, for

Driving, &c., also

Carriage and Motor

Rugs

(extra large)

in great variety, made in

Black Goat, Wallaby,

Japanese Fox, and many

other Furs.

TAXIDERMY.

To Sportsmen and

Travellers Abroad.

Special Department for

Curing and Preserving

Raw Skins intended for

mounting into Animals

or for use as Rugs, 6cc.

The International Fur Store
163 & 165. REGENT STREET.
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Scftweppes
BV APPOfNTMENT

'mm The TableWaters of Kings

SODA NATTER.
DRY GINGER ALE..
QUININE TONtCv/
LIME JUICE /''

&.OTHER CORDIALS. /

As suppliedtotheRoijal Households. ^
and Leadine Clubs t Hotels,

BUMSTED'S
PURE

"RoyalBritish"—.^ ^1 _ OAI ^
"Economical" I nDLaC OA4^ I

D. BUMSTED & CO., Ltd., 36 mg William St., London, EX.

The IHTant of

the Day.

Makes Starched

liinen like Nemr.

CR ITCHLEYS

STARCH CLOSS
BMtavKMsa a«

The Greatest Boon

ever offered to the

Laundrus for im-

parting an Ivory

Finish to Starched

Linens, Laces, etc.

It does not stick to Spider-Web-like materials. Once tried always wanted. Used in

the Royal Laundries. Should be used in every house. Sold by most Starch-sellers, in

packets, Id., 3d., and 6d. each. Prepared only by T. CRITCHLEY, Chemist, Blackburn.
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K FROM 3 GUINEAS
THE ALL-WOOL
WATERPROOF.
WORN|THE|WORLD

OVER.
Write for our New Patterns and

lit. ,. f,
'•''' 1 Illustrated. Catalogue " V."

'^'M^ Aquascutum Ltd.

® -i^
100 Regent Street London W.

The Country Life Coat. The Mobile Coat.

TRY

CAMBRIAN
Table Waters,

MANUFACTURED FROM THE
ONLV—

=

=^^^

ARTESIAN SPRING AT

RUTHIN.
Telephone No.: " 15 RUTHIN.

6



MISCELLANEOUS.

SYMONS'
Prize

Medal
Bngland*s

finest Vintage,

DEVONSHIRE CYDER.
" Symonia " Brand, specially prepared for Export.

Also " Sydrina," delicious Temperance Beverage.

Fruit Mills: Totnes, Devon; and Ratcliff, London, E., etc.

Sold in casks of assorted sizes or bottled by all Leading Bottlers.

C. & G. KEARSLEY'S ORIGINAL

Widow Welch's
Female Pills.

Prompt and Reliable, for Ladies. The only Genuine.

AWARDED CERTIFICATE OF MERIT at the

Tasmanian Exhibition, 1891. 100 Years' Reputation.

Ordered by Specialists for the Cure of all Female Com-
plaints. Sold in boxes, l/lj and 2/9, of all Chemists

;

or post free, 1/2 and 2/10 from

CATHERINE KEARSLEY
{Dep, B,G.\ 42 Waterloo Road, London, S.E.

wmmMMMMm
DAVI ICC JONES AND IRON and
DAlLlQQ BAYUSS, Ltd. WIRE

FENCING,
GATES, etc.

ii M4H4Mf4H4l iiii

\^'
lU
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WOLVERHAIVI PTON , and cannon street, London, e.g.

CATALOGUE FREE. Please mention this Guide.
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Universally acknowledged to be the Most Valuable

Medicine known. Doctors and the Public have

used it for upwards of 60 years with unvarying

success, and have testified to its efficacy.

Dr. J. CoUis Browne's

The Best and Surest Remedy for

COUGHS, COIiDS,
ASTHMA, BRONCHITIS.

The only Palliative in Cuts short all attacks of

NEURALGIA, GOUT, SPASMS,
RHEUMATISM, HYSTERIA,
TOOTHACHE. PALPITATION.

Acts like a charm in

DIARRHOEA, CHOLERA, and DYSENTERY.

When you ask for Chlorodyne see that you get

Dr. J. COLLIS BROWNE'S,
the ORIGINAL and ONLY GENUINE.
Purchasers should see the name on the Stamp

and emphatically refuse substitutes.

Convincing Medical Testimony with each bottle.

Of all Chemists, i/i|, 2/9, 4/6.
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A. S. LLOYD'S EUX-E-SIS.
EUX-E-SIS versuB SOAP.

LliOlTD & CO., 23 PANTON

A DEMULCENT CREAM.
FOR SHAVING

WITHOUT SOAP, WATER
OR BRUSH.

And in one-half the ordinary time.

BUX-B-SIS and a Razor
—that's all.

Caution.—Ask for the Widow Lloyd's
Eux-e-sis at Chemists or Stores. A
tube sent post free for 1/6 by sole
Proprietors

—

LEICESTER SQ., LONDON, S.W.

BURROW'SMALVERN
WATER-

(Alpha Brand.)

" FROM THE

HISTORIC

MALVERN

SPRINGS"

THE GREAT
PROTECTION

against the dangers ol
Hard or Impure Waters. Purer

and Softer than any other English or
Foreign Table Water, and far cheaper.

W. & J. BURROW, The Springs, Malvern.

BLACKS' BOOKS OF REFERENCE.
Who's Who, 1912.

An Annual Biographical Dictionary.

This year's issue contains about 23,000 biographies.

Crown 8vo, cloth. Price IDs. net. {By Post 10s. 6d.)

" Almost as necessary as daily bread."

—

vide Press.

Who's Who Year-Book, 1912-13.
Containing Tables complementary to the information given in

Who's Who. Price Is. net. {Bij Post, Is. 3d.)

*' Contains a great many lists of various kinds, ranging, for example, from the names
of Bishops, Deans, and Archdeacons, to those of owners of winning race-horses."

—

Truth.

Englishwoman's Year-Book and Directory, 1912.

Edited by G. E. Mitton. Thirty-first Year of Issue. Crown 8> o,

cloth. Price 2s. 6d. net. {By Post, 2s. lOd.

)

" Every branch of feminine activity appears to be included in this volume, which is

as useful to the society lady as to the young girl in search of a profession."—^to7ufard.

The Writers' and Artists' Year-Book, 1912. {Seepage 57.)

The Social Guide for 1912.

Third Year of Issue. Edited by Mrs. Hugh Adams and Miss E. A.

Browne. Crown 8vo, cloth. Price 2s. 6d. net. {By Post, 2s. lOd.)

" It is all-comprehensive, and deals in alphabetical order with every social function of

note. . . altogether a most useful publication supplying a very real need."

—

Court Journal.

Published by A. & C. BLACK, 4, 5, & 6 Soho Square, London, W.
And obtainable of all Booksellers,
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ROWLAND'S

MACASSAR OIL
IS an

absolute

necessity for all who wish to PreserYe, Strengthen^

Nourish and
Beautify the HAIR

No other preparation produces such a Dressy and Bea.uti'Pul
effect on the Hair or stimulates its growth so effectually* It is

prepared in a Golden Colour for Fair Hair* Sold in 3/6,

7/-t l0/6t and 21/- sizes, by Stores, Chemists, Hairdressers, and
ROWLANDS, 67 Hatton Garden, London* Avoid cheap, spurious

imitations.

Rowland's
Kalydor

For the Skin. The only safe and efficacious

preparation for Preserving and Beautifying;
the Skin which scientific research has yet dis-

covered. Ladies Motoring, exposed to winds

and dust, or frequenting crowded and heated
rooms will find it soothes all irritation, prevents

Freckles, Tan, Redness, and Roughness, and
imparts a delicate whiteness to the face, neck,

hands and arms unobtainable by any other

means. It is sold in 2/3, 4/6 and 8/6 bottles,

by Stores, Chemists, and ROWLANDS, 67
Hatton Garden, London.
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TEMPERANCE

PERMANENT BUILDING SOCIETY,

4, 6, and 8 LUDGATE HILL, LONDON, E.G.

REDUCED MONTHLY REPAYMENTS
For each £ioo advanced, including Principal, Premium,

and Interest:

—

lo years. 12 years. 14 years. 15 years.

£1 : 1 : 1 18s. 4d. 16s. 4d. 15s. 6d.

These are believed to be the Lowest Repayments of any Building

Society in London.
EDWARD WOOD,

MANAGER.

BONUS YEAR 1912.

NATIONAL PROVIDENT INSTITUTION
For Mutual XilFE Assurance

Founded 1835. Incorporated 1910.

Write for particulars of—
ENDOWMENT ASSURANCES l ESTATE DUTY POLICIES
INVESTMENT POLICIES

I
EDUCATIONAL ENDOWMENTS

TO

48 GRACECHURCH STREET, LONDON.

"Healthy Houses."

SANITARY PROTECTION ASSOCIATION.
ESTABLISHED 1878.

Head Office: No. 5 ALVA STREET, EDINBURGH.
Telegraphic Address—'' HEALTH, EDINBURGH." Telephone No.—662 Central.

The Association employs a permanent staff of experienced Engineers, and is thus
able to furnish REPORTS, at the shortest notice, on the SEWAGE DISPOSAL,
DRAINAGE, SANITARY APPLIANCES, and WATER SUPPLY of HOUSES in
TOWN or COUNTRY, or to prepare plans, obtain estimates, and supervise the execu-
tion of any such new work required. The Rates of Subscription and any other in-
formation may be obtained from the Secretary, R. BLACKADDER, Esq.
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MARINE ACCIDENT
Capital fully Subscribed £2,950,000

Capital Paid Up £295,000

Life Fund £4,395,282
Special Trust Funds:—

" Ylest of England " 597,402
" Hand in Hand " 3,747,487
" Union Life Fund " 3,979,178

Other Assets 9,574,307
Total, 31st December 1910 . £22,293,656

Total Annual Income exceeds .... £7,250,000

The following classes of Insurance effected :

—

FIRE, LIFE and ANNUITIES, MARINE, LEASEHOLD REDEMPTION
and SINKING FUND.

ACCIDENT, including Personal Accident, Third Party, Burglary,

Plate Glass, Fidelity Guarantee, Employers' Liability, Workmen's Com»
pensation, and Servants' Insurance.

The Company will act as TRUSTEES and EXECUTORS under Wills.

Prospectuses and all information needful for effecting Assurances may
be obtained at any of tbe Company's Offices or Agencies throughout
the world.

EDINBUJaGH BRANCH . . 10 North So. David Street.

LOCAL BOARD.
Wm. Beveridge, Esq., Dunfermline.
Geo. Bennet Clark, Esq., W.S., Edin.
Isaac Connell, Esq., S.S.C, Edin.
RoBT. F. Dudgeon, Esq., of Cargen,
Dumfries.

James M. Grav, Esq., Solicitor, Dundee.

Alexander Lawson, Esq., of Bumturk,
Kettle, Fife.

P. Ronaldson, Esq., C.A., F.F.A., Edin.
John C. Scott, Esq., of Synton, Hawick.
Graham G. Watson, Esq., W.S., Edin.

W. p. WILSON BRODIE, C.A., District Manager.
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m IRo^al Warrant i^^^ to 1b.m. XLbc Mm

POLISHED FLOORS.

RON UK, Ltd.
are prepared to Estimate for

the Polishing and the niainten«

ance of all kinds of floors in

PRIVATE HOUSES
AND INSTITUTIONS.

Write for Pamphlet.

MANUFACTURERS OF "RONUK" SANITARY POLISH.

Awarded Bronze Medal of the Royal Sanitary Institute.

Only Award ever granted to a Polish.

RONUK, LTD.
Head Office and Factory, Portslade, near Brighton.

West End Showrooms

:

16 South Molton Street, London, W.

Manchester Depot, 285 Deansgate.



THE PILGRIMAGE SERIES
LARGE CROWN OCTAVO, CLOTH, ILLUSTRATED

Price 3/6 net each

THE SCOTT COUNTRY
BY THE REV. VV. S. CROCKETT

CONTAINING 1 62 ILLUSTRATIONS

The "Scott Country" tells the story of the famous
Borderland and its undying associations with Sir Walter,
Its greatest son, sketched by one who is himself a native
of that very district. Not a spot of historic and romantic
interest but is referred to all along the line of Tweedside
and its tributaries from Berwick to the Beild.

THE BURNS COUNTRY
BY CHARLES S. DOUGALL

CONTAINING
32 FULL-PAGE ILLUSTRATIONS

This is a companion volume to the "Scott Country."
It describes the homes and home-life of Burns, it contains
sketches of his contemporaries and his surroundings, and
incidentally it traces his development as man and poet
from Alloway to Dumfries.

THE DICKENS COUNTRY
BY F. G. KITTON

CONTAINING
32 FULL-PAGE ILLUSTRATIONS

This work traces the footsteps of Dickens himself, and
points out the direct personal associations of " Boz " with
various towns and localities in Great Britain, beginning
with his birthplace at Portsmouth (now a Dickens
Museum) and concluding with interesting details con-
cerning his favourite home at Gad's Hill.

THE THACKERAY COUNTRY
BY LEWIS MELVILLE

CONTAINING
32 FULL-PAGE ILLUSrRATIONS

"The Thackeray Country" treats of those localities
which are of primary interest to those who are acquainted
y}^}^'?^

-n^^.
^^^^ ^"^ writings of the great novelist. Mr.

Melville is careful to give all the biographical information
connected with Thackeray's residence from his arrival in
England from India at the age of six until his death.

THE HARDY COUNTRY

BY C. G. HARPER

CONTAINING
OVER 100 ILLUSTRATIONS

Extract from Preface: ".
. . These pages

are, in short, just an attempt to record impressions re-
ceived of a peculiarly beautiful and stimulating literary
country, and seek merely to reflect some of the joy of the
explorer and the enthusiasm of an ardent admirer of the
novelist who has given tongue to trees and a voice to
every wind."

THE INQOLDSBY COUNTRY
BY C. G. HARPER

CONTAINING 92 ILLUSTRATIONS
BY THE AUTHOR

Reading the "Legends," you cannot choose but see
that when " Ingoldsby " sat down, often at the midnight
hour, to dash oft the fun and frolic that came so readily to
his mind, it was part of himself that appeared upon the
page. The next best thing to knowing him is to know
something of the Ingoldsby country.

THE BLACKMORE COUNTRY
BY F. J. SNELL

CONTAINING
32 FULL-PAGE ILLUSTRATIONS

This is a work dealing with the tracts of Devonshire
and Somerset embraced by the late R. D. Blackmore's
most characteristic romances, " Lorna Doone," "TheMaid of Sker," and " Perlycross." Hitherto there has
been no endeavour to trace the relations between Black-
more and the region which he made famous, and which
also made him famous.

PUBLISHED BY A. AND C. BLACK. SOHO SQUARE, LONDON. W,



THE MOTOR ROUTES SERIES

THE MOTOR ROUTES OF ENGLAND
A Guide to the Beautiful Scenery and
Interesting Localities in the Country

SOU
(South

Containing 2XfuIl
tions in Colou
Maps and PI;

m. ai^h Uf' post, 5/5)

]y^y^ (by post, 7/1 1)

^ WESTERN SECTION
AND WALES

Containing 24 full-page Illustra-

tions in Colour and 42 Sketch
Maps and Plans in the Text

OPINIONS
' One of the finest booV^j^ing with motor subjects that we have had the

pleasure to handle for a long time. . . . Every motorist who fails to obtain a copy
thereof richly deserves to lose his way, as well as miss the best of the scenery en
rotite on his next and succeeding trips."—" The Road" Review of iMotoi- Roiites—Southern Section.

^
"With this volume in hand the motorist can set out from London amply provided

with a charming guide to all the beautiful country that lie will traverse, while the
book will remain an interesting souvenir of manv delightful days' journeying. I

can cordially recommend it."—" The World" Review of Moto7- Rotates—Soiithern
Section.

THE MOTOR ROUTES OF FRANCE
TO THE CHATEAUX COUNTRY, BIARRITZ,
THE PYRENEES, THE RIVIERA, AND THE

RHONE VALLEY
Large crown 8vo, containing 16 full-page Illustrations in colour,

16 in black and white, and 6^ Maps and Plans.
Cloth, price 5s. net {by post, 5/5); Leather, price 7s. Sd. net {by f^ost, 7/11).

SOME PRESS OPINIONS
"The traveller who has this work for a companion may feel assured that he will

miss little of interest or importance along the wBiy ."—IVestjninste?- Gazettr.
" A guide book of a modern and very superior kind ; eminently practical, admir-

ably concise, sufficiently detailed and comprehensive, and, in addition, beautifully
illustrated and bound. . . . The book is admirably adapted for its purpose, and
tourists motoring in France will do well to take it with them."— ZZ/t' Standard

Ofher I ohiines hi Preparatio?i.

Published by

A. & C. BLACK, 4 SOHO SQUARR, LONDON. \\;
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